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CORPORATE PROFILE
AN

Maoye International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 8 August
2007. The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the operation and management of department stores and
property development in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5 May
2008 (the “Listing Date”).

With a unique operation model of “retail + commercial property”, the
Group has been growing rapidly since its establishment, and has
achieved scale expansion across the country by duplicating this
model. Supported by lands acquired at low costs, the Group uses its
physical retail to nurture property, building a closed ecological cycle in
which its core business supplements and supports each other.

Since Shenzhen Dongmen store, the first store of the Group, opened in
1997, the Group has been concentrating on development and careful
planning for over 20 years, and leveraging its strong competitiveness
and reform and innovation keeping pace with times, the leading
position of the Group in Southern China has been strengthened step
by step. The Group has also further expanded into the most developed
markets with the fastest growth rate in Eastern China, Southwestern
China and Northern China, becoming the industry leader in numbers of
regions. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 57 stores with total
gross floor area of 2.89 million sg. m., of which self-owned properties
accounted for approximately 76% in gross floor area. The major cities
under its coverage include Shenzhen and Zhuhai in Southern China;
Chengdu and Chongging in Southwestern China; Nanjing and Wuxi
in Eastern China; and Hohhot, Baotou and Qinhuangdao in Northern
China.

The Group actively grasps the development trend of medium-to-
high end physical retail in China, empowers new retail through the
integration of online and offline advantages and opening up upstream
and downstream channels to create new offline consumption
experience featuring multi-scenario and high efficiency at all times, and
strives to achieve the transformation from traditional department store
retail to new retail.

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available
on the Company’s website at www.maoye.cn.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of language(s) (either
English only or Chinese only or both languages) of the corporate
communications of the Company (including but not limited to annual
reports, interim reports and circulars) by sending reasonable prior
notice in writing to the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive the Company’s corporate
communications in either English or Chinese version will receive
both English and Chinese versions of this annual report since both
languages are bound together into one booklet.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED f& 2B B2 G R A )

EEERERAERAR(ARAT]) AR2007
FoHASHAEHREHREAMKNIMNBEREEA
Al e AARIMEMBAR([ARER])EBEF
EAREME([HEDEERERFEIENY
HBRER - AAFE 2D HR20084F5 A5H
([EMBDEEBHAERZMERAR ([HBX
Fr)ERET »

AEBERIIAR LB TE+R %M
EIRARIERE  THEZHRBENERRE
LR SHRR - AEBIAMERAEHHIE - B8
TEBMERR  TEROEBEH M LR
PR °

B1997F £ —RPIEFYIRFIEFRZELR
REERLOFBLERLBIEMGD RS
H KNS N N AR EERNRERIF - B
FEREGRIEMLELEL - WEATRRES
Bl E R E  HERERIROER - 7R -
T EBIEEHTE - KAZERIERNAITERE
98 o HIEE2018F12H31H » NEEHEAR
JESUESTR - AEEMBA288.7EF HK -
Hbh O AMEmMBEGELIETE.0% @ BEERW
e EErFEY| - WF  mREaRE - B
B EROER - & LA RRDEE -

BE REEF -

AKERGEEFET SR EETENERS
g BRER LG TES - TR LT - BeeH
TE ITERTERE - 258 - RMENH
WHERR  BHEREREETEANTE
H B RSB A o

AEFEHRERF

www.maoye.cn °

C RYAEBH#HRA R AR

PR AT BER A AR RAEE BRI 1B P Bk
SERBFELBRARGIURBBERFAE
R1B3FRA M L2218 ) 48 T A IR T IATR
SEEEEAME W HE WA QA A REA (K
REEERRNFER - PHBRE MER)BE
F RS 2 38 122 (B RUER S 3 i 3k R ER XX
AREKRIFFULER P ~ RAR)

ENAFRIRE 2 X XHRTENFI R —
fFA - ERBEREFWIA R B Z KX KA
XHREY A BB - 1R UKENRERE iR 2
FEHRE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 €


http://www.maoye.cn/f/index

MISSION STATEMENT
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Intelligence
Creates A HAPPY LIFE
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity for the last 5 financial years is set out below:

ARENEEREMRFEENES  EE AELESHENT

OPERATING RESULTS REEE
For the years ended 31 December
EZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20184 20174 20164 20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
IS ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
(Restated)  (Restateds)
(BPEide) (BHERS)
Total sales proceeds and HEMEHRIER
rental income' HEWA LR 15,787,762 15711849 13,433,479 9,362,084 10,968,235
Total operating revenue? QT PN 7,848,911 7174316 6,925,377  4,115464 4,400,460
Operating profit R FIE 3,007,175 2749613 1,359,829 995,013 2,322,984
Profit for the year FEME 1,127,221 1,268,409 112,061 289,533 1,449,933
Profit attributable to: JE(EFz -
— Owners of the parent —BRAERFEA 799,403 1,071,973 46,382 298,627 1,365,189
— Minority interests — DY R ER 327,818 196,436 65,679 (9,094) 84,744
Basic eamnings per share (RMB) SREREFN(ARET) 0.16 0.21 0.009 0.058 0.263
Total sales proceeds and rental income Total operating revenue
HEFSFIERBEWRAZLRE KEWAEER
(RMB million (RMB million)
(AREHET) (NRHEEET)
20,000 8,000 7,849
7,174
6,925 '
15712 19788 7.000 ]
16,000 !
13,433 o000
12,000 10,968 i o000 4,400
4,115
9,362 4,000 b ;
8.000 [ | | | 3,000 { !
2,000 I F
4,000 | I | |
1,000 I I
0 4 1 . 4 J 0 4 4 " N L
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

HIGHLIGHTS OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBRRRBE

As at 31 December

M12A31A8
2017 2016 2015 2014
20174 20164 20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AR®TFT AR%®Fr
(Restated4)  (Restateds)
(BPEs)  (GBPES)
Assets and liabilities BENAE
Total assets BERE 50,969,724 47,831,805 45975332 31,774,937 24,461,197
Total liabilities BEeE 35,674,838 34,043,632 33,898,763 22,128,489 16,260,197
Total equity e e 15,294,886 13,788,173 12,076,569  9,646.448 8,201,000
— Attributable to owners —BRREEHAA
of the parent e 12,300,008 11,072,182 10,135,809 8,256,505 7,141,989
- Attributable to Minority interests  — > BiUIR SE {25 2,994,878 2715991 1,940,760 1,389,943 1,059,011
Notes: BIEE -

1.
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Total sales proceeds and rental income represent the sum of total sales
proceeds from concessionaire sales and revenue from direct sales at the
department stores of the Group.

Total operating revenue represents the sum of the Group’s revenue and other
income.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of
approximately RMB799,403,000 and weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of
approximately RMB1,071,973,000 and weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2016 is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of
approximately RMB46,382,000 and weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 5,141,489,556.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2015 is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of
approximately RMB298,627,000 and weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 5,160,924,290.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2014 is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of
approximately RMB1,365,189,000 and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 5,197,910,878 in issue.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has changed the accounting
policy for investment properties from the cost model to the fair value model, and
accordingly restated the financial report of 2015.

Restated the comparable figures for the year 2014 according to the actuarial
valuation report of defined benefit plan.

1.

5.

HEMMSFIENEERAREREREEMA
IERFFFEIEHE A EHRAREERAGEE -

BN B EEE A R B A R AU A R RN -

HZE2018F12A31B LFENESRERNEAF
TIRET AR EEEE AREFIEOARE
799,403,000 7T K 2 %17 B% 7 69 A4 735 @ AR
5,140,326,000/% 5+ & -

HZE2017F12A31B LEFENEREARRF
DIRBEERARBRIFE ABREFIEHARE
1,071,973,0007T & B 84T (7 &) hn e 15 X i@ Ak
5,140,326,0000% 51 & -

HE06F12AMALFENSTREREF
DIREBEEARBERFE ABREFIBHHARE
46,382,000 7T } B B 1T AR 19 #) oA 15 E i@ AR
5,141,489,556% 51 & °

HZE2015F12A31BLFENEREARNAF
DIRET AR EEEE AREFIEOARE
298,627,000 7T K 2 % 17 B% 7 &Y A1 4 735 L @ AR
5,160,924,290/% 5+ & -

HZE2014F12A31B LFENEREARRF
DIRBEERARBRIFE ABREFIEHNARE
1,365,189,0007T & B BT (7 &) hn it 45 X i@ Ak
5,197,910,878/% 1 & -

F2016F 12 A AAKEREMREEEHER
BEFEEXHR AT EEXEE AA A EE
EER - H2015F E I BRI TBPEML o

RIBRE X AT 8 2 FERE H2014F 7] L BUR
EITEPEL -
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RETAIL NETWORK
TE

< = Y [l

Operating Area
Store Name Province (sq.m.)  Open Date Ownership Retail Format
KEmR

FIIE B8 H#1 (FFHK) BRXEH VIR X

1 Shenzhen Dongmen Guangdong 40,709  Mar-1997 Owned Department Store
RYIRPIIE BER 1997438 BA BE

2 Shenzhen Huagiangbei Guangdong 63,243  Oct-2003 Leased Department Store
RYIZERAL IR R 2003%F108 & El

3 Shenzhen Shennan Guangdong 10,407  Dec-2004 Leased Department Store
RIYIRRE S &R 2004128 ME BE

4 Shenzhen Nanshan Guangdong 44,871  Sep-2009 Owned Department Store
RN LLE BER 200949 A BA BE

5 Zhuhai Xiangzhou Guangdong 35,701 Nov-2001 Leased Department Store
wEEME BR 2001F11 A THE =

6 Shenzhen Outlet Guangdong 23,141 Oct-1999 Leased Outlet
R RS HEHT I BR 1999F10A MHE BRAFIRHT

7 Chongging Jiangbei Chongging 67,537  Oct-2004 Leased Department Store
BETILE BE 2004108 ME BE

8 Rendong Sichuan 31,078  Sep-1998 Owned Department Store
ARG il 199849 A 848 BE

9 Guanghua Sichuan 67,914  Dec-2009 Owned Department Store
KEE 7)1 2009128 EBH BE

10 Chengdu Chunxi Sichuan 29,866  Nov-2013 Owned Department Store
PREREERIE il 2013F11A EBA BE

11 Chengdu Maoye Complex Sichuan 87,309  Jun-2005 Owned Shopping Centre
PREB I FE R il 200546 A BH By

12 Nanchong Wuxing Sichuan 25,695  Nov-2001 Owned Department Store
MAREE )l 2001118 BA BE

13 Mianyang Xingda Sichuan 27,595  Sep-2008 Owned Department Store
s EEE )l 200849 A BA BE

14 Zibo Maoye Times Square Shandong 88,923  Feb-2015 Owned Shopping Centre
SEIEXERRES ITES 201552 BH By

15 Laiwu Maoye Complex Shandong 110,000  Dec-2017 Owned Shopping Centre
AR R IR 201712 EBA YL

16 Heze Huihe Shandong 31,187  Mar-2011 Owned Department Store
SEEBMIE R 201143 A BA BE

17 Zibo Maoye Complex Shandong 113,724  Oct-2010 Owned Department Store
NHEBE il ITES 20106108 BA ELS
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RETAIL NETWORK
TERS

Operating Area
Store Name Province (sq.m.)  Open Date Ownership Retail Format
KEmR

FEER # (FFHK) BEXEH VIXBEERE X

18  Zibo Maoye Plaza Shandong 36,791 Nov-2010 Owned Department Store
HIBXEES R 2010F11A EBA BE

19  Zibo Maoye Taikerong Mall ~ Shandong 25,337 Nov-2010 Owned Department Store
HERERTRES TS 2010%F11A  EBE BE

20  Zibo Maoye Shopping Mall  Shandong 8,415  Nov-2010 Leased Department Store
LT ESEL ITES 2010F11 A 7THE BE

21 Wuxi Shopping Mall Jiangsu 200,433  Oct-2007 Managed Shopping Centre
EHBEYT L L&k 2007108  EEIE YL

22  Taizhou Maoye Complex Jiangsu 86,066 Jan-2015 Owned Shopping Centre
FTINK R AR 201514 BH By

23  Nanjing Maoye Complex Jiangsu 88,786  Nov-2016 Owned Department Store
MREKERRML N3 2016118 BA BE

24 Wuxi Yibai Jiangsu 78,695  Mar-2016 Owned Shopping Centre
=mHEMAIE a3 201643 A BA YL

25  Yangzhou Wenchang Jiangsu 21,485  Jan-2011 Owned Shopping Centre
BN EIE T 201141 A BA B

26 Taizhou First Department Store Jiangsu 40,358  Oct-2009 Owned Department Store
FMNE—FE N3 2009F10A EBH BE

27  Taiyuan Maoye Complex Shanxi 246,224  Dec-2016 Owned Shopping Centre
KRIREFERM g 20165128 BA BT

28  Taiyuan Liuxiang Shanxi 31,448  Oct-2008 Owned Department Store
PNGIESS (INis} 2008F10°A HBEEAE BE
Baotou Maoye Complex

29 Phase | Inner Mongolia 70,245  Jan-2017 Owned Shopping Centre
BFAK R —Hf NESE 2017%F1 1 EES] By

30 Victory Times City Inner Mongolia 190,915  Nov-2010 Leased Shopping Centre
HZ SR e 2010F11 A 7HHE YL

31 Victory Mall City Inner Mongolia 131,897  Dec-2013 Owned Shopping Centre
HEZ IR S AEN 2013F12A EA By

32 Baotou Donghe Victory Plaza Inner Mongolia 74,692  Nov-2014 Owned Shopping Centre
BRI R Z T ES DESE 201411 BE B

33  Victory Commercial Building  Inner Mongolia 44,221 May-2003 Owned Department Store
wENEE e 2003454 SEE) EL

34 Victory International Plaza Inner Mongolia 116,347  Jan-2008 Owned Department Store
HZFIBR EI5 5 RENE] 20084 1A BA BE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k
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RETAIL NETWORK

g%m nH
Total GFA
Store Name Province (sg.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
REERE

FEER N (FFK) FRXBH YXREER X&

35 Victory Shopping Center Inner Mongolia 63,695  Sep-2006 Owned Department Store
HZ BT AES 20069 A BA BE
Baotou Victory Commercial

36 Building Inner Mongolia 77,500  Jan-2010 Owned Department Store
BHEESNEE ER 20101 A BA BE

37  Zhongshan Inner Mongolia 7,119  Mar-2003 Owned Supermarket
L NES 200354 BA iR

38  Xintiandi Inner Mongolia 6,200 Dec-2005 Leased Supermarket
RIS AE 2005128 ME feriER

39  Shoufu Inner Mongolia 6,680  Sep-2007 Leased Supermarket
BIE E 200749 A HE friER

40  Xilongwang Temple Inner Mongolia 1,000 Jan-2010 Leased Supermarket
il =) NES 20101 A Gizh-+ iR

41 Jingiao Inner Mongolia 13,855  Jan-2012 Leased Supermarket
TIRE AE 201241 A HE iR

42  Huochezhan Inner Mongolia 3,300 Jan-2013 Leased Supermarket
NEUhE AER 2013514 HE iR

43  Daxuedonglu Inner Mongolia 11,000 Jan-2013 Leased Supermarket
REBRIKIE AE 201314 Gizh-+ frita

44 Tiyuchang Inner Mongolia 5,600 May-2013 Leased Supermarket
BESE NEH 2013%5H HE iR

45  Beimen Inner Mongolia 2,277  Jun-2013 Leased Supermarket
P& AER 201346 A HE friER

46 Mall City Inner Mongolia 5800 Dec-2013 Owned Supermarket
FEE BRI AE 2013F12A EBA iR

47  Jinchuan Inner Mongolia 7,472  Jan-2014 Leased Supermarket
2)IE WERE 201451 A HE iR

48 Donghe Inner Mongolia 6,634  Jul-2012 Owned Supermarket
ROAE AE 2014118  BE e

49  Shenyang Tiexi Liaoning 49,600  Jun-2010 Owned Outlet
S ETE B 20125 7R SEE] R HEAT

50 Xiandai Shopping Plaza Hebei 36,897  Jun-2010 Leased Department Store
BREBYES JAdE 201056 A Gizh= BE

51  Qinhuangdao Mall Hebei 26,697  Jun-2010 Owned Department Store
RESEW Ak 201046 A BA BE

52  Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Hebei 10,800  Sep-2008 Owned Shopping Centre
REBRRE Ak 201046 A BA By

53 Qinhuangdao Jindu Hebei 46,610  Jun-2010 Owned Department Store
RESSHEE JAdE 200849 A BH =

54 Hualian Commercial Building Hebei 10,355  Jun-2010 Owned Department Store
EHERE R e 201046 A BA BE
Qinhuangdao Maoye

55  Supermarket Hebei 10,470  Jun-2010 Owned Supermarket
REBKEBT A 201046 A SEE) iria

56  Baoding Yanzhao Hebei 61,491  Sep-2014 Owned Department Store
RIE A IE Ak 2014%F9A BAE =

57  Baoding Guomao Hebei 24,826 Dec-2010 Owned Outlet
REBEE Ak 20106128 EBA B R HEHT

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED f& 2B B2 G R A )
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RETAIL NETWORK
TENE

TOTAL SALES PROCEEDS AND
RENTAL INCOME IN 2018 BY REGIONS

2018 FHEMBREREERA
mEh L

12%

Eastern China

ER

40%

Northern China 1t 75

»

20%

Southwestern
China

il

28%
Southern China
g

Northern 1t 7

Baotou F5E

Hohhot  FFANE R
Qinhuangdao R£5
Baoding 1RE
Shenyang L&
Jinzhou (under decoration)
R (FAEH)

Taiyuan KR

Eastern ¥R
Zibo 18
Heze a7
Nanjing R
Taizhou Z=/M
Wuxi 85
Yangzhou &M
Laiwu Az

Huai’an (under decoration)
R (FfETf)

Southwest FAR

Chengdu A #B
Mianyang 435
Chongaing &
Nanchong 7

Shenzhen &3
Zhuhai K&
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERHBEE

In respect of economic environment, the previous year saw China
immersed in a global landscape with unprecedented changes for
a century. Downward pressure was mounting on the country for
economic growth as it faced tremendous difficulties and challenges
arising from economic and political changes in the international stage
and from domestic economic restructuring. Adding to such pressure
was the enhanced domestic macro-control policy to counter cyclical
factors, as well as increasing China-US trade frictions. Against the
backdrop, China recorded a 6.6% year-on-year increase in GDP
for 2018, 0.3% slower than the previous year. Such slowdown was
accompanied by slower growth in personal income, which constrained
the growth of the consumer market. The retail sector was also beset
by severe challenges in a historic period when the declining traditional
consumption cycle coincided with the new retail cycle.

Confronted with the complexity and changes in external economic
environment, the Chinese government has issued a series of policies,
including individual tax reform and reduction of corporate tax and fees,
to improve the competitiveness of Chinese businesses and consumer
confidence, drive consumption and supply upgrades effectively,
stimulate demand in the domestic consumer market and boost resident
consumption. Following its rapid development for the past few years,
online retail has witnessed dwindling growth dividend, lower growth
rate and rising operating cost, the combination of which led to a
weakening impact on brick-and-mortar stores.

Having examined the situation, the board of directors and the
management of the Company remained attentive to the external
market and adapted to the prevailing changes in consumer demands.
In deepening the reform of its store operation model, the Company
promoted data-driven refined operations, accelerated the disposal
of its non-core assets, and ramped up its operational efficiency
by multiple approaches. During the reporting period, the Group’s
total operating revenue was RMB7,848.9 million, representing an
increase of 9.4% compared to 2017. EBITDA was RMB3,836.5
million, representing an increase of 4.2% compared to 2017. Without
taking into account the effect of non-operating gains and losses, net
profit for the year was RMB752.3 million, representing an increase of
67.2% compared to 2017. During the period, operating cash flow was
RMB4,895.3 million, representing an increase of 135.6% compared
to 2017. Cash and cash equivalents were RMB3,304.9 million,
representing an increase of 126.9% compared to 2017. Basic earnings
per share was RMB15.6 cents. The board of directors recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HK3.64 cents. During the reporting
period, the Group completed the upgrade and transformation of its
four stores such as Taiyuan Maoye Complex, which boosted their
passenger flow and purchase rate. This demonstrates the effect of
the strategy of transforming department stores into shopping malls.
Maoye’s “Internet+” ecosystem further penetrated the offline business
and accelerated the online-offline integration, making it possible to fully
utilize the infrastructure achievements of the new retail era to enhance
the shopping experience of consumers.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED f& 2B B2 G R A )
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERHBEE

Looking into 2019, despite the multitude of internal and external
uncertainties, China remains one of the fastest-growing economies
in the world, with short-term fluctuations in the market. However,
stable economic development will be maintained by many favorable
factors in the long run. Optimistic about its business in the medium
and long term, the Group will continue to work intensively on the
consumer markets of its four strategic regions and tap into the Group’s
advantageous resource integration capability. The Group will sustain
its innovation on theme, scene, brand, model and service, explore
new profit growth points, and ramp up the operating efficiency of its
stores continuously. While focusing on its main business with intensive
engagement, the Group will be market-oriented, speed up the
implementation of the light asset output model and dispose some non-
core assets to maximize asset benefits and give back to shareholders.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our employees

for their dedication and express my gratitude to our shareholders and
customers.

Huang Mao Ru
Chairman

14 March 2019

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEmEDT

. MACRO ECONOMY OVERVIEW — CEHRERE

In 2018, China faced grim international situations and arduous
domestic reform and development tasks. In accordance with the
general requirements for high-quality development, and with the
deepening supply side structural reform as its main task, China
has made coordinated efforts to achieve steady growth, promote
continued reform, make structural adjustments, improve people’s
livelihood and guard against economic risks. At present, the
PRC’s economy is operating within a reasonable range. Despite of
uncertainty and volatility, the overall situation of the PRC economy
maintained stable performance with good momentum. The
gross domestic product of the PRC exceeded RMB90.0 trillion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 6.6%, and continued to
maintain a steady growth trend.

The economic structure continued to be optimized. Consumption
has become the first driving force underpinning economic growth
for five consecutive years with a contribution rate to economic
growth was of 76.2%, representing an increase of 18.6 percentage
points over the previous year. Although the growth of infrastructure
investment has slowed down, the growth of manufacturing, real
estate and private investment remained stable, and demand for
service consumption was strong. The growth of resident income
was in line with economic growth, and the income gap between
urban and rural residents has been gradually narrowing down.
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According to relevant report data, in 2018, the retail sales of 100
key large-scale retail enterprises nationwide increased by 0.7%
year-on-year, and the growth rate slowed down. Department stores
and supermarkets continued to close down, and department
stores have been transformed into shopping centers. Enterprises
have commenced multi-channel promotion of online and offline
commercial segments, but new retail segment has not developed
as expected. A number of foreign brands have encountered
obstacles and completely withdrawn from the Chinese retail
market. The retail industry was in a period of critical change, and
the fittest would survive under such intense market competition.

OPERATION REVIEW

In 2018, in the background of China’s economic restructuring,
the Group deepened the reform of its operation model, vitalized
marketing in various ways and enhanced the operation efficiency.
In the meanwhile, the Group strengthened effective control
measures, and reduced costs and controlled expenses. In 2018,
the Group recorded operating revenue of RMB7,848.9 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 9.4%; net profit attributable
to owners of the parent of RMB799.4 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 25.4%; basic earnings per share of RMB15.6
cents, representing a year-on-year decrease of 25.4%.

In addition, by continuing to pay attention to market changes,
the Group actively grasped the opportunities brought by the new
retail model. With data-driven and refined operations, the Group
accelerated the disposal of the non-core assets. Its achievements
were mainly reflected in the following respects:

1. Deepening reform of operation model to adjust
income structure gradually

With the continuing change of industry and consumer market,
the Group carried on deepening the operational restructuring
and driving the performance growth. Firstly, the income
structure was adjusted, which shifted to a more stable rental
model by reducing the joint area and increasing the leased
area, income structure turned into a more stable rental model.
Under this strategy, the rental income of the Group’s stores
in 2018 reached RMB1,003.2 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 31.1%.

Secondly, the Group continually optimized the category
portfolio through increasing the proportion of categories with
high gross profit, such as children, education, catering and
cosmetic products, adjusted the business solicitation relying
on brand, and focused on the introduction of cost-effective,
young and trendy brands to meet the demands of the current
mainstream consumers.
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Successful transformation into shopping malls to
help enhance the operation efficiency

With continuous attention and adaptation to current changes
of consumers’ demands, the Group has promoted the
transformation of department stores into shopping malls in
a steady and robust way. Based on the characteristics of
the demands of local consumers and the realistic condition
of business districts, the Group has provided distinctive
and diversified services, hence to create continuous
improvement in physical stores service experience and
operating efficiency. The Group has also been building theme
streets and increasing the proportion of supporting facilities
in order to satisfy consumer experience and enhance the
customer retention capability of the stores. At the same time,
the improvement in store shopping guide sign function and
shopping experience aimed to facilitate the efficiency of stores
operation.

During the reporting period, the Group completed the projects
of transforming four stores into shopping malls, including Wukxi
Shopping Mall, Victory Times Plaza in Inner Mongolia, Taiyuan
Maoye Complex and Chengdu Maoye Complex, and the
strategy of transformation into shopping malls has gradually
yielded results. Among them, Taiyuan Maoye Complex carried
out the “shopping mall + department store” operation model,
which boosted the customer flow as well as the consumption
rate. The transformation of Chengdu Maoye Complex into
shopping mall effectively drove a significant increase in
counter commission and income from sales promotion.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED f& 2B B2 G R A )
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Capturing opportunities brought by new retail
development with consumer-based, data-driven and
refined operations

During the reporting period, the Group paid close attention
to the new trends of “retail industry” development. Based
on innovative thinking and internet technology, the Group
has developed the “Internet+” Maoye digital life circle,
which conducts deep fusion by integrating the entire offline
physical business. As of 31 December 2018, the Group
has had 18 online products in nine provinces, 19 cities and
two municipalities, in various forms like department stores,
shopping centers, offices, hotels, properties and others.

The Group has built a consumer-based marketing system
and a new membership management system, with which
omni-channel data was integrated to reflect a clear picture
of its members. Through the continuous refinement of the
label dimension and the continuous optimization of the data
algorithm, the member’s accurate profile insight is finally
realized. On this basis, the Group has carried out precise
marketing, and different information templates for different
timeframe can be customized to deliver marketing information
under different circumstances according to the consumption
habits of members, browsing time, personal preferences,
purchasing categories, spending power, etc.. As of 31
December 2018, the “Mao Le Hui” (fX£45) APP achieved a
total online sales of RMB367.6 million.

In addition, the Group has begun to test and promote data-
driven refinement operations in some stores and analyze
modeling and achieve data to drive the Company’s decision-
making, brand strategy and marketing activities adjustment
through the data on customer base of the stores, consumption
power, category brand, and surrounding competitive market
conditions. Moreover, the Group also independently developed
the “Payment Collection in Second” (¥} UY$R) APP applet
for the shopping centers. Its main function is to implement
comprehensive processes of management on shopping
centers, which can achieve the same refined management as
that of the department stores. The traditional payment time can
also be shortened to several seconds, which helps improve
the shopping experience of consumers and reduction of the
rate of avoidance of payment.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In the meantime, via the “Xiao Hong Mao” (/)N4I /%) merchant
service APP, the Group also helped merchants to improve
management efficiency and sales performance with functions
including sales discount management, online customer
support for Express Payment and Collection (1RfFUER),
sales report of merchants, daily sales alert, advertisement
placement on refined and diverse channels, supplier data
verification, etc.. In addition, the Group has started to offer
the all-in-one precise marketing paid service to suppliers. As
of 31 December 2018, the “Xiao Hong Mao” APP has been
launched in all our stores in China, accumulating total users
of over 54,000, daily active users of over 4,000, and daily
initiated frequency of approximately 34,000 times a day.

Vigorously implementing the “Purchase and
Leasing” strategy and achieving significant process
in destocking

In 2018, the real estate control policy has created a more
complicated macroeconomic environment for the Group.
While the fiscal policy was loosening up, the macroeconomic
control policy on real estate remained stringent. Under
the overall pressure on the national real estate market and
given the declining performance, the Group has shifted its
strategy actively and managed to grow in times of adversity.
During the reporting period, the Group recorded a significant
increase in proceeds from pre-sale from property contracts of
RMB3,016.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 81.4%. Due to certain contracts not meeting the
requirements of recognition of revenue, the sales revenue of
properties carried forward to this year was RMB1,001.6 million,
representing an increase of 14.9%.

The above achievements were mainly attributable to the
Group’s vigorous implementation of the “Purchase and
Leasing” strategy in a bid to seize the market opportunities.
The Group formulated effective and targeted sale program
according to the characteristics of each project and local
market condition, while exploring sales and lease channels
for property business. As for key marketing and management
positions, the Group recruited talented staff. In order to
improve employees’ incentive, the Group also expedited the
payment of commission. Moreover, the Group put more efforts
on the property leasing and shifted the strategy from leasing
to selling through rental advantages. As such, the assets
were revitalized and the destocking progress of the property
business was accelerated.
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5. Strengthening effectiveness of management and
reducing costs to improve corporate governance
continually

In terms of cost control, the Group maintained the proportion of
self-owned property in stores up to 76.0% and the proportion
of related party leases achieved to 83.7%. This could
effectively reduce the impact of price fluctuations in the rental
market and control expenditure. Meanwhile, with the strategic
integration of supply chain resources and effective operation
mode, the Company provided resources and management
to cross-regional stores to achieve economy of scale and
improve operation efficiency.

In respect of enterprise risk management and control, the
Group used electronic information technology to deal with
risk management and control, carried out fine management
of financial system, strengthened close cooperation between
financial department and legal department, conducted risk
control and management synchronously, and improved
corporate governance. Specifically, the measures including
the control of key nodes, cross-validation and personnel
supervision were adopted to carry out major tasks, such
as related party reconciliation management and account
management of construction in process.

lll. FUTURE OUTLOOK

In 2019, the external environment faced by China amidst the
economic development is more complex and tough than in 2018.
At the same time, the effect of supply-side structural reform on
stabilizing the economy will continue to show. The Group will keep
on maintaining a steady strategy, and seize the opportunities
brought by the new retail development. It will also pay attention to
the improvement of business scale and efficiency, actively explore
diversified retail formats, optimize operation, strengthen cost
control, and fully promote the healthy and sustainable development
of the Group so as to secure better returns for shareholders. The
highlights of which are as follows:

Firstly, to keep implementing the strategy of transforming
department stores into shopping malls actively and fully carry out
the stores renovation works in 2019. Through focusing on exploring
the growth potential of stores and emphasizing the synergy of
stores in the region, the Group will further consolidate its leading
position in the strategic regions.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Secondly, to proactively capture new trends in consumption,
innovate based on the theme, scene, brand, pattern and
service, and cater for consumers’ experiential shopping needs
while focusing on the development of high-margin, high-growth
operations and categories and capitalizing on the ability to attract
investment and resources, thereby enhancing the efficiency of
store operations continually.

Thirdly, to make full use of the Group’s rich industry resources
and management experience while opening up the light
asset output model through brand output, resource grafting,
operation management and other means and in virtue of content
empowerment and data operation.

Fourthly, to quicken the comprehensive application of the
digitalization of Maoye, accelerate the pace of achieving
comprehensive data-driven and refined operations and promote
the upgrade of Maoye’s new retail model. The Group will further
strengthen the online marketing to encourage consumers to take
delivery of the goods on their own and convert online traffic into
offline consumption to drive store passenger flow.

Fifthly, to strengthen the value analysis, management and
supervision of inefficient and non-core assets, and combine the
Group’s strategic planning and business plans based on market-
orientated and the goal of maximizing asset efficiency in order
to optimize disposal combination and increase its efforts in the
disposal, which in turn achieve the goal of revitalizing assets.

Sixthly, the Group proactively establishes linkage with the multi-
level capital markets in the PRC and overseas, explores innovative
financial instruments, seizes opportunities and strives to build the
multi-level, diversified and complementary financing channel to
control financing costs and further optimize debt structure.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % 2B =R GR A T
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PERFORMANCE OF MAJOR DEPARTMENT STORES! FEMERR

Total Sales
Proceeds and Operation Operation
Store Rental Income Period? Area
HEMBRIER
JEA& HEWRALE JEHR? KeEEE
(RMB’000) (Year) (m2)
(AR®EFT) (%) (FFT7K)
1 Shenzhen Huagiangbei 1,963,278 15.3 63,243
RYIFERIEE
2 Guanghua 974,858 9.1 67,914
S5
3 Shenzhen Dongmen 868,483 21.8 40,709
RYIFRPIE
4 Victory Commercial Building 831,894 15.7 44,221
HwENEE
5 Victory International Plaza 803,751 11.0 116,347
#E 2 N B B35 15
6 Shenzhen Nanshan 790,641 9.3 44 871
wRYIE LS
7 Taiyuan Maoye Complex 682,359 2.1 246,224
RIRCEER M
8 Taizhou First Department Store 675,776 9.3 40,358
FMNE—BE
9 Chengdu Maoye Complex 561,770 13.6 87,309
PREDI SR,
10 Victory Shopping Center 524,888 12.3 63,695
wZNBYH O
11 Xiandai Shopping Plaza 453,177 8.6 36,897
BREYES
12 Qinhuangdao Jindu 441,700 10.3 46,610
RESHEIE
13 Rendong 409,826 20.3 31,078
ARE
Notes: Ea

1 Major department stores are stores with annual total sales proceeds and rental 1
income over RMB400 million.

2 Operation period was calculated till 31 December 2018. 2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERENmED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Total Sales Proceeds and Rental Income

For the year ended 31 December 2018, total sales proceeds and
rental income of the Group were RMB15,787.8 million, representing an
increase of 0.5% compared to the year of 2017. The increase of total
sales proceeds and rental income was primarily due to the upgrading
and transforming of department stores has achieved a preliminary
success with a significant increase in rental. Same-store sales
proceeds and rental income were RMB15,700.6 million, representing
an increase of 0.1% compared to the year of 2017.

g E)
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HEC018F12A31HIEFE - AEBHHE
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BT - 82017518 H10.1% °

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT

Total sales proceeds from R EEEERs
concessionaire sales 12,990,329 13,186,780
Direct Sales HIEBA 1,794,280 1,759,881
Rental HEWA 1,003,153 765,188
Total Sales Proceeds and Rental Income $5&FTSRIENFHEW A 425 15,787,762 15,711,849

Among the total sales proceeds and rental income of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018, total sales proceeds derived
from concessionaire sales accounted for 82.3%, those derived from
direct sales accounted for 11.4%, and those derived from rental
income accounted for 6.3%. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
sales proceeds from concessionaire sales were RMB12,990.3 million,
representing a decrease of 1.5% compared to the year of 2017; rental
income were RMB1,003.2 million, representing an increase of 31.1%
compared to the year of 2017.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % B IZR B R A )
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The total sales proceeds and rental income of the Group in the four
regions are set out as follows:

R SR B 0K [ 35 O $H PSSR R R HE URA
ERRB RN TR -

Total sales proceeds and rental income

For the year ended 31 December

HEMBREREERARE
BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

2017 Growth Rate
20174 HR=E

RMB’'000
AREEFIT %
Eastern China HEH 1,925,452 1,981,681 —2.8%
Southern China HERG 4,419,351 4,133,221 6.9%
South-western China 7ir 3,166,855 3,271,923 -3.2%
Northern China it7 6,276,104 6,325,024 -0.8%
Total A&t 15,787,762 15,711,849 0.5%

For the year ended 31 December 2018, sales of apparels (including
men’s and ladies’ apparels) accounted for 34.2% (2017: 34.5%),
jewelries accounted for 16.5% (2017: 15.6%), leisure and sports goods
accounted for 11.4% (2017: 10.9%), cosmetics accounted for 9.0%
(2017: 7.8%), shoes and leather goods accounted for 8.3% (2017:
9.2%), others (including branded merchandise, children’s items,
bedroom and household goods, home appliances, supermarket and
others) accounted for 20.6% (2017: 22.0%).

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue of the Group
amounted to RMB6,117.2 million, representing an increase of
RMB360.6 million compared with RMB5,756.6 million for the year of
2017. The increase of revenue was mainly because (1) the upgrading
and transforming of department stores has achieved a preliminary
success with a significant increase in rental; and (2) the revenue
derived from the real estate project of Chuzhou Guorun, Huai’an Zhiye
and Maoye Haoyuan of the Group has recorded a significant increase.

Other Income

For the year ended 31 December 2018, other income of the Group
amounted to RMB1,731.7 million, representing an increase of
RMB314.0 million compared with RMB1,417.7 million for the year
of 2017. The increase of the other income was primarily due to the
significant increase of revenue deriving from administration and
management fee and sales promotion.
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Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2018, cost of sales of the Group
amounted to RMB2,225.8 million, representing a decrease of 1.3%
compared with RMB2,255.9 million for the year of 2017. This was
primarily because: (1) the cost of sales carried forward for the property
projects was at a lower level, and (2) the structure of revenue and cost
of sales has changed due to the preliminary success achieved in the
upgrading and transforming of department stores.

Employee Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2018, employee expenses of the
Group amounted to RMB608.1 million, representing an increase of
2.0% compared with RMB595.9 million for the year of 2017, which was
mainly due to the increase in employee cost of some subsidiaries.

Depreciation and Amortization

For the year ended 31 December 2018, depreciation and amortization
of the Group amounted to RMB801.4 million, representing a decrease
of 11.6% compared with RMB906.3 million for the year of 2017, which
was primarily due to the transformation into investment property at fair
value of Victory Mall City by the end of 2017.

Operating Lease Rental Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2018, operating lease rental
expenses of the Group amounted to RMB440.5 million, representing an
increase of 3.9% compared with RMB424.0 million for the year of 2017,
which was mainly due to the increase of rental expenses of certain
department stores compared with that in the year of 2017.

Other Operating Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2018, other operating expenses of
the Group amounted to RMB1,265.8 million, representing a decrease
of 5.1% compared with RMB1,334.0 million for the year of 2017. The
other operating expenses as percentage of total sales proceeds and
rental income has been decreasing steadily.

Other Gains

For the year ended 31 December 2018, other gains of the Group was
recorded as gain of RMB499.9 million, representing a decrease of
54.2% compared with RMB1,091.4 million for the year of 2017. This
was primarily because the Group recorded one-off investment gains
from the disposal of part of the equity interest in ZhongdJia Bochuang (7
52184l for the year of 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W DA

Operating Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2018, operating profit of the
Group was RMB3,007.2 million, representing an increase of 9.4% as
compared to that of RMB2,749.6 million for the year of 2017. This was
primarily due to (1) the upgrading and transforming of department
stores has achieved a preliminary success with a significant increase in
rental; (2) the revenue derived from the real estate project of Chuzhou
Guorun, Huai’an Zhiye and Maoye Haoyuan of the Group has recorded
a significant increase; and (3) the transformation into investment
property at fair value of Victory Mall City, and depreciation expiration
of part of the assets, resulting in a large decrease in the depreciation
expenses.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2018, finance costs of the Group
amounted to RMB1,010.2 million, representing an increase of 9.3%
compared with RMB924.6 million for the year of 2017. This was
primarily due to the increase of interest rate for the newly interest-
bearing loans.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2018, income tax expense of the
Group amounted to RMB897.6 million, representing an increase of
53.6% compared with RMB584.2 million for the year of 2017. This was
primarily due to the increase of the operating profit before tax.

Profit for the year
As a result of the foregoing, for the year ended 31 December 2018:

—  Profit for the year was RMB1,127.2 million, representing a decrease
of 11.1% as compared with the year of 2017;

—  Without taking into account the effect of non-operating gains and
losses*, profit for the year was RMB752.3 million, representing an
increase of 67.2% as compared with RMB449.9 million for the year
of 2017.

* non-operating gains and losses represent the gains and losses in respect of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, investments in subsidiaries
and associates, the disposal of property, plant and equipment items, investment
properties and land lease prepayments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WD AT

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB3,304.9 million, representing an increase by
RMB1,848.1 million compared to RMB1,456.8 million as at 31
December 2017. The main cash inflow and cash outflow are set out as
follows:

(1)

(2

Net cash inflow of RMB4,895.3 million arising from operating
activities;

Net cash inflow of RMB275.8 million arising from investment
activities, which mainly includes: 1) cash inflow from disposal of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounting to
RMB540.5 million; 2) cash inflow of RMB108.4 million by releasing
pledged bank deposits; 3) cash inflow of RMB401.2 million from
disposal of Dashang Shares and Shenwan Hongyuan Shares; 4)
the payments for properties, equipment, investment property in
construction progress and land amounting to RMB518.8 million;
5) payments for the consideration with respect to the acquisition
of 38.24% of the equity interests of Shenzhen Ugo E-commerce
Co., Ltd. (“UGO”) amounting to RMB193.4 million; 6) cash outflow
from the profit distribution of Maoye Commercial amounting to
RMB111.8 million; and 7) dividends received from associates
and equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income amounting to RMB41.9 million; and

Net cash outflow of RMB3,191.7 million arising from financing
activities, which mainly includes: 1) increase in cash inflow
arising from bank loans of RMB8,032.1 million; 2) cash outflow
arising from repayment of bank loans and other borrowings of
RMB9,531.1 million; 3) cash outflow arising from repayment of
interest of approximately RMB1,214.8 million; 4) cash outflow
arising from increasing in the equity interest of Maoye Commerciall
of approximately RMB119.9 million by Baotou Maoye Dongzheng;
and 5) cash outflow arising from allocating dividend amounting to
RMB177.5 million by the Company; and 6) net cash outflow arising
from repayment of borrowings to fellow subsidiaries amounting to
approximately RMB180.5 million.

Interest-bearing Loans

As at 31 December 2018, total bank loans, USD senior guarantee notes
and corporate bonds of the Group were approximately RMB18,241.9
million (31 December 2017: RMB19,739.0 million). The gearing
ratio’ and net gearing ratio?2 were 35.8% and 97.7%, respectively (31
December 2017: 41.3% and 132.6%, respectively).

Gearing ratio = total debt/total assets = (bank loans + corporate bonds + USD
senior guarantee notes)/total assets

Net gearing ratio = net debt/total equity = (bank loans + corporate bonds + USD
senior guarantee notes — cash and cash equivalents)/total equity
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W DA

Contingent Liabilities

On 14 December 2011, Taizhou First Department Store Co., Ltd. (3=
MNE—AERERMD AR AR (“Taizhou First”), a subsidiary of the
Group, entered into the Property Lease Agreement (the “Agreement”)
with Liyang Fenglian Property Development Co., Ltd. (R[5 LS %
EREAR AT (“Fenglian Company”), pursuant to which, Taizhou
First will rent the property of Fenglian Company to operate Maoye
Department Store Liyang Pingling Square Branch (35 &%
[E35)E) (“Liyang Store”). On 19 December 2014, Fenglian Company
filed a lawsuit at the Changzhou Intermediate People’s Court (& M T #
& NEEBT) over the unilateral termination of the Agreement by Taizhou
First. On 17 July 2018, Fenglian Company amended its litigation
claims, requiring an order that Taizhou First shall pay a property use
fee of RMB81,126,129, a rental loss of RMB14,316,376, a commercial
service fee of RMB239,700 and interest.

On 28 November 2018, the Court adjudicated that the lease agreement
and supplemental lease agreement entered into between the two
parties were terminated on 30 November 2014 and that Taizhou First
shall compensate Fenglian Company for the use of its property in the
amount of RMB66,611,996, the interest from 1 December 2014 to
the date of full settlement which shall be calculated at the prevailing
lending rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China, and the handling
fee relating to the case. The court judgment also rejected the other
litigation claims from Fenglian Company. Both Taizhou First and
Fenglian Company appealed against the court judgment.

Upon consulting with the external counsel, the management of the
Company is of the view that Taizhou First exercised its right by closing
the store in advance, instead of committing a breach of the Agreement.
The trial is still in progress and the management of the Company
is unable to estimate the potential loss or gain from the case at the
present stage.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

RAREE

MR2011EFE12H 148 - KEEZ FRAIZFM
F-AEmERDERAE (A TERE =M
—BRZEGEBELEREBRAF(AT
B EEAT D BEIEERERTIAT
EEMGE]) AN —ERELYHEAAE
EARKEERETERGFERESE (AT
R EBRIE]) - 2014128190 - LA
AIAEMN—BE T ERGRpEARRBMT
PR ARERIRRFR - WH20184F7 A17
A& B RAER  BRHS  TMN—EXZH
E E{F A &RMB81,126,129 T - A& 8%
RMB14,316,3767T * & % Ak 2 RMB239,700
TTRFIE -

ZARFAR2018F 11 A28 HERIE —F Hk ¢
BINTARRARERHREFHER T R
HHRWBER2014F11 A30H #E - =N
—EREEBRAFEERFERA 2ABER
RMB66,611,9967T * B2014F 12 H1H 1L+
BARBITRAPERFEAEEFEZH LN
FMEURERHREFESE  KOoZH AR Hi
BREAREK o TN —E REB A TIR—FH
R WHB IR EEF e

REARRINRIMER - ARERER /R
IN—BRAIEEBTITITA - WIF—FHIRE
BRES - BRRMFREA—FRE - —FH
RIEARER - RAIEEEEHZRITAREELEN
BRI T AR

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED f% 2B iE G R A7)

25



26

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W DA

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s collateral interest-bearing
bank loans amounting to RMB9,909.5 million were secured by
approximately RMB3,171.4 million, RMB409.3 million and RMB704.3
million respectively of the Group’s land and buildings, land lease
prepayments and properties under development measured at cost,
and approximately RMB7,693.1 million of investment properties
measured at fair value.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company issued US$300,000,000 senior guaranteed notes in 2017
and due 2018, and US$250,000,000 senior guaranteed notes with term
of 2 years in 2018 which is exposed to the effect of foreign exchange
fluctuation risks. During the reporting period, the Group recorded a
foreign exchange loss of RMB128.2 million on exchange. Since the
business of the Group was mainly focused on mainland China, its
operation was not exposed to any foreign exchange fluctuation risks.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had not entered
into any arrangements to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group'’s
operating cash flow is not exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation
risks.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

EENHERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (E & #0), aged 53, is the founder of the Group and
the Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and the
Chairman of Nomination Committee of the Company. He is also a
director of various companies in the Group. Besides, he is a director
and owner of Maoye Department Store Investment Limited and MOY
International Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Huang is responsible for the overall development
and strategic planning of the Group. He has extensive experience
in department store and commercial real estate industries and has
been engaged in department store business for over 20 years. Before
commencing his department store business, Mr. Huang established
Maoye (Shenzhen) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (f£% CRYI|) Bt
EFRZEAER A R]) in 1992 and Shenzhen Maoye (Group) Co., Ltd. (Z3|
KE(ER)RMARAT]) in 1995. Mr. Huang had been a director and
the Chairman of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. (K2R MH AR AT (a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600828)
since July 2005 and resigned on 9 February 2009.

Mr. Zhong Pengyi ((2/E2%), aged 63, is an Executive Director and the
Vice Chairman of the Company. He joined the Group in August 2007.
Mr. Zhong received a master’s degree in business administration from
Hong Kong Baptist University in 2003. Mr. Zhong has over 30 years
of experience in the operational management of the department store
industry, real estate industry and trading industry. Mr. Zhong has been
an independent director of Shenzhen Centralcon Investment Holding
Co., Ltd. ORI MIEEIEAAR D BBRAF]) (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000042) since 4 July 2017. He
has been the chairman of Friendship Trade Center Company Limited (&
SHWE 5T ERAT]) since February 2006 and deputy director of the
expert committee of China’s Urban Commercial Planning Management
Association (FEIH T EREIEERHETEREZEE). Heis also a
councilor of China Commerce Association for General Merchandise
(PR BEEMEBHE) and a vice chairman of China Friendship External
Supplier Association of Commerce (Bl K sE/MNE 2 ). On 6
June 2018, Mr. Zhong has been appointed as a director of Shenyang
Commercial City Co., Ltd. (J&B5 i 3 W K 5 B R A 7], “Commercial
City”) (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600306). He has also been a director of Maoye Commercial since 14
July 2016.
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Mr. Liu Bo (2I3%), aged 49, is an Executive Director, Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. He joined the Group in September 2015 and has been
appointed as the vice president of the Company since September
2015 and as the chief financial officer of the Company since December
2015. Mr. Liu holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
Webster University, obtained the Senior International Finance Manager
Certification from the International Financial Management Association,
and is a senior member of CPA Australia. Mr. Liu has over 20 years
of financial management experience in China. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Liu worked as the vice president for CR Double-Crane
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (28 & #5 %2 2 Ik {p B R A 7)), the general
manager of the finance and accounting department, director of finance
department and vice president for CR Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(M= s % F AR A 7)) and the business director of the strategic
development department of China Resources (Holdings) Co., Ltd (2=
(EE)AERRR).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Bin (£3&), aged 52, joined the Group in 2010. He was an
Executive Director of the Company before his re-designation as a
Non-executive Director on 5 May 2017. He is also a director of various
companies in the Group. Mr. Wang had been the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company since 20 October 2010 and resigned on 7 December
2015. He had also been the Vice President of the Company since 14
January 2013 and resigned on 7 December 2015. Mr. Wang is a senior
accountant. He received a bachelor's degree majored in finance and
accounting from Shanghai Maritime University in 1988 and received
a Master of Business Administration degree from Murdoch University
of Australia in 2001. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang worked for
China Merchants Group (¥ B%[#) and served as financial controller
of Huafu Holdings Limited (2 F1ZR% AR A 7). He has more than 20
years of experience in financial management. Mr. Wang had been a
director of Maoye Communication and Network Co., Ltd. (¥ B {548
IR BBR A R]) (formerly known as Maoye Logistics Corporation Ltd.
(EEMRBEDBR AT (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 000889) since December 2010 and ceased to
be a director after the conclusion of its 2015 annual general meeting
held on 30 June 2016. Mr. Wang has been appointed as a director of
Maoye Commercial on 14 July 2016 and a director of Commercial City
on 5 June 2018.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Chan Lum (&B#£4k) (Alias: Chow Chan Lum, Charles), aged
68, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of both the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. He joined the Group in
October 2007. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and is the precedent partner of Wong Brothers
& Co., Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow obtained a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1974 and received a Postgraduate Diploma in
Accountancy from the University of Strathclyde in Glasgow, United
Kingdom in 1975. He has been qualified as a Scottish Chartered
Accountant since 1979 and was awarded a Postgraduate Diploma in
China Law by the Research Institute of University of East Asia (now
known as the University of Macau) in 1987. Mr. Chow is a member of
the Foreign Experts Consultative Committee on China Independent
Auditing Standards of the PRC Ministry of Finance and had served
on a number of committees of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, including as the deputy chairman of the Auditing
& Assurance Standards Committee and a member of the Investigation
Panel and the Professional Standards Monitoring Committee. He
was the Chairman of the Chinese Opera Advisory Committee of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (2010-
2016), a member of the Cantonese Opera Development Fund Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and was
the Chairman of the Chinese Entrepreneurs Organization (2013-2014)
and the Treasurer of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts
(2010-2015). He was a past President of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Chow serves as an honorary advisor and committee member
of various social groups and has been a member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Guangdong Province, the
PRC from 1997 to 2012. Mr. Chow was awarded the Medal of Honor by
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region on 1
July 2013 and also the Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy for
Performing Arts in October 2017. He is an independent non-executive
director of China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 85).
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Mr. Pao Ping Wing (A& &), aged 71, is an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. He joined the Group in August 2007. Mr. Pao obtained
a Master of Science degree in Human Settlements Planning and
Development from the Asian Institute of Technology in Bangkok,
Thailand in 1980. In the past years, Mr. Pao has been appointed to
serve on various government policy committees and statutory bodies,
especially those involving town planning, urban renew, public housing,
culture and arts and environmental matters. He is an honorary fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Housing. He was elected as one of the Ten
Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1982 and one of the Ten
Outstanding Young Persons of the World in 1983. He was also an ex-
Urban Councilor of Hong Kong. Mr. Pao was appointed as a Justice of
the Peace in 1987 and was a special committee member of the 9th and
10th session of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Guangzhou Committee. Currently, he is also an independent non-
executive director of a number of companies listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Leung Hon Chuen (%), aged 67, is an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.
He joined the Group in October 2007. He is currently operating a
consultation company providing corporate finance services. Mr. Leung
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree with a major in economics from the
University of Western Ontario in Canada in 1976. He has over 25 years
of experience in financial services industry in Canada and Asia. Since
1976, Mr. Leung worked for the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce
in Canada and Asia for 15 years, where he held senior management
positions in investment banking, retail and corporate banking and
private banking.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. So Ka Man (&% #&), aged 45, was appointed as the Secretary of
the Company in November 2017. She is a director of the Corporate
Services Division of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional
services provider specializing in integrated business, corporate and
investor services. Ms. So is a Chartered Secretary and a fellow of both
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. Apart
from the Company, Ms. So, has been providing professional secretarial
services to a number of listed companies.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognizes the vital importance of good corporate
governance to its success and sustainability. The Group is committed
to achieving a high standard of corporate governance practices as
an essential component of high quality and has introduced corporate
governance practices appropriate to the operation and growth of its
business.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). In the opinion of the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”), the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2018, save and except for the deviation from code provision
A.2.1. Key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company as well as the details of the deviation are summarized below.

The Board will continue to enhance its corporate governance practices
appropriate to the operation and growth of its business and to review
such practices from time to time to ensure that the Company complies
with statutory and professional standards and aligns with the latest
developments.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for overall management and control of the
Company. Its main roles are to provide leadership and to approve
strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing the interests of
shareholders. All directors carry out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, making decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management. Any director may request independent professional
advice under appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making reasonable request to the Board.
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The Board reserves its rights for making decision on all major matters
of the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive directors and senior management of the Company. These
responsibilities include implementing decisions of the Board and
directing and co-ordinating day-to-day operation and management
of the Company. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
aforesaid officers.

Board Composition

The following chart illustrates the current structure and membership of
the Board and the Board Committees:

EXSARMARARIMAERFHELRE -
BREIEREFRMERRER « BEKENE
8 AEEkEREERS  TBX5(F
RIS ENGERE)  HBEHN  ZEES
REMBAPHENEEEE

B0 ETERTARRNITES
LEREREE ZEEERE MITEREN
RTE - HERMBAAARNEEEENREE -
EZETRAARERGELEE - LAR
ERANEAEER 5 ARRBEFSH
e ©

ExamdE
TRETESTREFRREFNHRTRE I

8 :

Board of Directors £ &
Executive Directors #/7EZE

HXIEE (BEFERREEHTE)
Mr. Zhong Pengyi, Vice Chairman
BISELE (FIEFR)

B SEE (BIHEEREEIEE)
Non-executive Director FE$/TEZE

Mr. Wang Bin X85t 4

Mr. Chow Chan Lum SFEEM L E
Mr. Pao Ping Wing SEfR&8 54
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen 22& 2 %4

Mr. Huang Mao Ru, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Liu Bo, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Independent Non-executive Directors & v #H1TEE

Remuneration Committee

FHEES

Audit Committee

EREEg
Mr. Chow Chan Lum (Chairman)
BEMEE ()
Mr. Pao Ping Wing

SRR EE (FE)
Mr. Chow Chan Lum

IRER e A MEMTE
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen Mr. Liu Bo
RERFTLE IR

Mr. Pao Ping Wing (Chairman)

Nomination Committee
REZES
Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman)
HIRWSE (FE)
Mr. Chow Chan Lum
BREMEE
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
THIRES S
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The Board members have no relationship with each other. The
biographical details of the directors are disclosed under the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Secretary” in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has at all
times met with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
(representing at least one-third of the Board) with one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and
related financial management expertise.

All directors have brought a wide range of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Moreover, through active participation
in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving
potential conflict of interests and serving on the Board committees, all
independent non-executive directors have made various contributions
to the effective business direction of the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive directors are independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Mr. Huang Mao Ru is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. As Mr. Huang is the founder of the Group
and has extensive experience in the department store industry and
commercial real estate industry, the Board believes that it is in the
best interest of the Group to have Mr. Huang taking up both roles for
continuous effective management and business development of the
Group.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All directors are appointed for a specific term. All the executive
directors, non-executive director and independent non-executive
directors of the Company are engaged on a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles of
Association”), all directors of the Company are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and are eligible for re-
election at annual general meetings of the Company. Any new director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting and
any new director appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the
following annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Liu Bo, Mr. Chow
Chan Lum and Mr. Pao Ping Wing shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming 2019 annual general
meeting of the Company. The Board and the Nomination Committee
recommend their re-appointments. The Company’s circular, sent
together with this annual report, contains detailed information of the
above three directors as required by the Listing Rules.

Training and Continuing Development for Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and of the business activities and development of the
Company and comply with the code of conduct of the Company at all
times.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and that
he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction
is normally supplemented with visits to the Group’s key business sites
and/or meetings with the senior management of the Company.
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Under code provision A.6.5, directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for
directors will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics will
be issued to directors where appropriate. All directors are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, all the directors were
provided reading materials or regulatory update on corporate
governance matters and responsibilities of the directors for their
reference and perusal. Besides, Mr. Chow Chan Lum, Mr. Pao Ping
Wing and Mr. Leung Hon Chuen attended other seminars and training
sessions arranged by other professional firms/institutions.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transaction
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as its code of
conduct governing directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities.
Specific enquiry has been made of the Company’s directors and all
the existing directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the period
from 1 January 2018 to the date of this annual report.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the
Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for

dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its
directors and relevant employees in advance.
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BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees have been established with defined
written terms of reference, which are posted on the Company’s
website “www.maoye.cn” and the Stock Exchange’s website. All
Board committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises a total of three members, namely,
Mr. Chow Chan Lum (Chairman), Mr. Pao Ping Wing and Mr. Leung
Hon Chuen, all of whom are independent non-executive directors.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Chow Chan Lum who
possesses the appropriate professional qualification, and accounting
and financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; (ii) review and monitor the external auditors’
independence and the objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process; (iii) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and (iv) review the
accuracy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system as well as
internal audit function.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee has
held three meetings and performed the following major tasks:

e Review of the scope of audit work and the auditors’ remuneration;

e Review and discussion of the annual financial results and report in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 and interim financial
results and report for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and
discussion with the management of the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group;

e Discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

e Review of the financial reporting and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group together with the effectiveness of the
internal audit function of the Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings held during the year to discuss with the Audit Committee
members issues arising from the audit and financial reporting
matters. The Chairman of the Audit Committee provided the Board
with a briefing on the significant issues after each Audit Committee
meeting. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of three members,
being two independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Pao
Ping Wing (Chairman) and Mr. Chow Chan Lum; and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Liu Bo. Accordingly, a majority of the members
are independent non-executive directors.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code); and (ii) review and approve performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee has held one meeting and performed the following major
tasks:

e Review and discussion of the remuneration policy of the Group;
and

e Review and discussion of the remuneration packages of directors
and senior management of the Company.
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The senior management of the Company are the directors of the
Company. Details of the remuneration for each director of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 8 of the
financial statement.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises a total of three members, being
one executive director, namely, Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman) and
two independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Chow Chan Lum
and Mr. Pao Ping Wing. Accordingly, a majority of the members are
independent non-executive directors.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (i) review the
Board composition, develop and formulate relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of directors; (ii) make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of directors;
and (iii) assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. The Company believes that greater diversity of directors
is good for corporate governance and is committed to attract and
retain candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies from
the widest possible pool of available talents; and to assess regularly
the diversity profile of the Board and, where applicable, senior
management prepared for Board positions under the succession
planning of the Company and the progress on achieving diversity
objectives, if any.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Board diversity policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss
and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.
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During the year under review, in response to the amendment to
the CG Code effective on 1 January 2019, the Company has also
adopted the Director Nomination Policy. Such policy sets out the
factors for assessing the suitability and the potential contribution to
the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited to the
followings: character and integrity; qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant
to the Company’s business and corporate strategy; diversity in all
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age (18 years old or
above), cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service; requirements of
independent non-executive directors on the Board and independence
of the proposed independent non-executive directors in accordance
with the Listing Rules; and commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or
Board committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new directors and re-election of directors
at general meetings. The Nomination Committee will review the Director
Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee
has held one meeting and performed the following major tasks:

e Review of the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company;

e Recommendation of the re-appointment of those directors standing
for re-election at the 2018 annual general meeting of the Company;
and

e Assessment of the independence of all the independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board has performed such corporate
governance functions as follows: (i) reviewed and developed the
Company'’s corporate governance policies and practices, (ii) reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, (iii) reviewed and monitored
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, (iv) reviewed and monitored the compliance
of the Model Code and the Employee Written Guidelines, and (v)
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance records of each director at the Board and Board
committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the table
below:

EERZEEHENEREFERLRE

TREVZEETHFHE2018F12A31H 1t
FERITHNESRSER  BEFZECEENE
NEERAGHREE

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY SRR

Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BExpg Ezg ERERS FHESS REZ8E RREFAE
Mr. Huang Mao Ru HRWEE 1111 - 11 11
Mr. Zhong Pengyi EEELE 10/11 - - 11
Mr. Liu Bo L)oot 10/11 11 11
Mr. Wang Bin Tk 8/11 - - - 0/1
Mr. Chow Chan Lum FEMELE 111 3/3 n n n
Mr. Pao Ping Wing ARREE 1111 33 11 11 111
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen REDEHE 10/11 3/3 - - 111
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held one B FHETHEEFSSHIN EZRTRER

meeting with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of other directors during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The management has
provided such explanation and information to the Board as necessary
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Group put forward to the Board for
approval.

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018. The directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has acknowledged that it shall be responsible for risk
management and internal control systems and review of their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. These systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and provide only reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board shall be fully responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives and to establish and maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted different risk management
procedures and guidelines with a clear division of power and
responsibility. The Company would conduct self-assessment each
year to confirm that all departments and the Company have properly
complied with the risk management and internal control policy.

During the year, all departments conduct regular internal control
evaluation to identify risks with potential impact on the Group’s
business and other aspects including major operational and financial
procedures, regulatory compliance and information security. The
management with the leader of the department would evaluate the
chance of risk occurrence to provide response plan and monitor the
progress of risk management.

The internal audit department is responsible for independent review
of the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems. During the year under review, the internal audit
department reviewed important issues such as the relevant strategic
management, major operational and financial reporting procedures,
human resources management, adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experiences, regulatory compliance and information
security, and provided its findings and recommendations to the Audit
Committee for improvement.
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During the year under review, the Board, with the support of the
Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2018 by reviewing the report from
the management and the internal audit results, and confirmed the
effectiveness and adequacy of risk management and internal control
systems of the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy to provide the
general guideline on handling confidential information, monitoring of
information disclosure and response to queries to its directors, officers,
senior management and the relevant employees. The Company has
executed supervision programs to confirm the strict prohibition from
unauthorized access to and use of inside information.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors by the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit service for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is set out as follows:

FOEFN  EESEERZEENHITE
ERARA MRENB AR R2018F12H831H
HFERBREERNBELZFENEGRE - &

BAEMEEERERATENER - WHERAN
NAEINERERMATEEE RGBT
DM e

RRAREBE BB ER AR BN R IR R
BHE - B *QT)EZEE&@@%% ST
8- Dﬁ&a£¥@%ﬂ$ﬁfﬁ1@%é’ﬁﬂ?ﬂﬁ’ﬂ—QTE%I °

ARBDERITE B ARERBARZE LR
}’*ﬂiéﬁﬁxﬁ’ﬁﬂﬂﬂ% ANEER -

SNBRZBET R Z BT £

AR AIINIS A BEM 1 1 F B AN A BB = 2018
F12A31 B IEFEPHHRRN BRI TR
TE AN F R B AL BAD RS | —E -

HZE2018F12831HILFE » ARG EX
AR K FEE AL R TS [A) AN A B HNIBAZ A /Y Bl
BT

Type of services RMB’000
PR ER AR%T T
Audit expenses of the Group AEENEZER 4,300
Non-audit expenses of the Group AEERIEEZER

— Review on the interim financial report of the Group — RSB BB 75 RS 2 R 1,100

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”) as
external service provider. Ms. So Ka Man of Tricor has been appointed
as the company secretary of the Company. The primary contact of
Ms. So Ka Man at the Company is Mr. Liu Bo, an executive director,
the Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, Ms. So Ka Man has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings to update her skills and
knowledge.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy
(including but not limited to the Group’s financial results, cash flow
situation, business conditions and strategies, future operations and
earnings, capital requirements and expenditure plans), dividends
may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a financial
year and any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the
shareholders’ approval.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information, which enables shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at “www.maoye.cn”, where extensive information and updates on the
Group’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for
public access.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to
the Company as follows:

IR EBE

ARBDBIRA SRR BBOR » RIBAL
A N7 S B B TS A 00 DA B BB = P AR O B
AE(BREEMNRRAKETHER - B2R
AR - IR SRS - REE R AF -
B2 ERE M)  EFSRMEMTEK
FEEZNR/REIRRE - MAMRFREHE
AR SRS IR AR - TTATEE o

ERRRIREERE

ARARA - BERRFARER - HRER
BEBARLIMNAREEHARBEEBRE LK
RERERER - ARENABRTEREM
ERREAREHNEEN - AHEAFMNKER
FAREEFRFERERE -

RIEEBRANRE  ARARAEB/UW
[www.maoye.cn] » % R AR & B E 1523 R K8
1 MIBER  REELATHAREMAENE
BRI 3T SR B A R ER o

BEREIREEA BB TAXARRFAFTES
EEAHEKL

Address: 38/F, Tower A, World Finance Centre, 4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic
of China (For the attention of the director of the Investor Relations Department)

HIE EE A R HANBIRYI TR R SR ER400355% th R Bhh O ARE3BIE (Ui A R & E BRR AP 48 E)

Email: ir848@maoye.cn

BT - ir848@maoye.cn

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. Board members and appropriate
senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to answer any
questions raised by shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationship
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed
of the Group’s developments.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. The Company’s shareholders may convene
an extraordinary general meeting or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings as follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company may
request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association by sending a
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in the PRC. The objects of
the meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

(2) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, the
shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the general meeting shall send a written
notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These
notices should be lodged at the Company’s principal place of
business in the PRC, or the office of the Company’s share registrar.
The period for lodgment of such notices shall commence on the
day after the dispatch of the notice of such general meeting and
end 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the Company and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the
Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of
Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.maoye.cn) immediately after the relevant general
meetings.
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The Group is committed to the mission of being a leading department
store chain operator in China with endeavor in providing urban
residents with fashionable and diversified portfolio of goods. In
accordance with objective, normative, transparent and comprehensive
principles, the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) report
on our retail business for the period of 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2018 (“The reporting period”, “the financial year of 2018") is
prepared pursuant to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In order to
identify the significant ESG affairs of the Group, our major subsidiaries,
department stores and various functional departments involved in the
preparation of this ESG report to assist the Group in assessing the ESG
issues related to our operating environment and the corresponding
importance to the stakeholders.

The following table summarizes the significant ESG issues of the Group
in this report:

ESG guidelines

Significant ESG issues

REE T EFREAEEMUN T EEHD
¥EFEm  BHAETEREHEE M EZ T
MEmEs - AERE - R#E - BRMEEL
FRA - ks ET AR B8 — +ECGRIE -
HERERREIESDESME2018F1A1H
F2018F12A31B ([ HR&EHM | - [2018F
BEEDBRARMEEERIRE ek
JR(TESG])MRE - AZERIAEBEANESGE
B RMASEBTAR - BETEMEUEE
AR REBL P9 B 2 R R AESGRE © BB
EEFMHER M ERBBENESGET LY
EROENEZ N -

TREABREMBE A EEBEANESGER
ZHE

ESGIESIRE EARESGEEH
A. Environmental
B
Al Emissions e Disposal of hazardous waste and carbon emissions
7367 BEERERIE RIRHER
A2. Use of resources e Energy and water consumption
BIRE A o BEURRIHERE
AS. Environment and natural resources e Environmental impact management on physical stores
BREERAER s ERTEMERRVEEE
B. Social
fan-
B1. Employment e Remuneration and compensation system for employees
= EEFBRIMHE
B2. Health and safety e Health and safety of employees
fEREZ 2 BTIfFREZS
B3. Development and training e Development and training for employees
B RIE BT EERE
B4. Labour Standards e Prevention of child labour or forced labour
S THER| BribE TakeaHls T
B5. Supply Chain Management e Environmental management on the supply chain
HEEE IR HERIREER
B6. Product responsibility e Product and service quality, customer service and data privacy policy
EmaE EnERBEE  XPRBEERLEEE
B7. Anti-corruption e Anti-corruption
RES RES
BS. Community Investment e Social welfare
HERE ZaR=g/N

Note: Since the main business of the Group is operation of physical retail stores,
there was no significant emissions and hazardous waste generated during
the reporting period, hence the relevant disclosure requirements in the
ESG Guidelines (Key Performance Indicators A1.1, A1.3 and A1.5) are not
applicable to the Group.
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We are committed to continuously creating a sustained and objective
return for our shareholders. At the same time, we also make positive
impacts on shareholders and the communities we are serving. Details
of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” of the annual report.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1 Emission

The Group complies with the relevant requirements of
environmental protection laws and common principles of
corporate management. It correctly handles the relationship
between business and environment in accordance with
characteristics of corporate environmental management, so
that the economy and environmental protection are mutually
reinforcing.

Our environmental policy advocates the prevention of
environmental pollution, with integration of governance for
comprehensive management to achieve maximum economic
benefits under minimum impact on the environment.
Meanwhile, we also attach importance to education and
technical trainings to raise awareness of all employees
about the environmental protection. In view of this, we have
established a sound environmental responsibility system for
the garbages from construction or renovation of the stores and
kitchen waste from restaurants, under which special personnel
supervise the classification and disposal of garbages.

The Group continues to monitor the operation of environmental
protection facilities and regularly checks the implementation of
environmental protection facilities.

All subsidiaries and retail stores of the Group are required
to strictly abide by the internal environmental management
system to ensure the compliance with laws and regulations.
During the reporting period, no violations of environment laws
and regulations were found.

Disposal of harmless waste

During the reporting period, the direct production of harmless
waste in the course of business of the Group was mainly
papers, ink cartridges and cartridges, amounting to about
19.56 tons, 0.16 tons and 0.28 tons, respectively, which
decreased 38%, 69.23% and 72.28% respectively compared
with those in the previous year due to the promotion of
paperless operation in the Group. The Group classified and
collected different types of waste and carried out fixed storage
and centralized processing. Recyclable harmless waste was
recycled as far as possible, while the non-recyclable waste
was handled by professional qualified service providers
in accordance with the relevant environmental protection
regulations.
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Carbon emission

Our carbon emissions are mainly due to the consumption of
electricity. During the reporting period, the relevant carbon
emissions from the consumption of electricity in our business
were approximately of 314,993.16 tons, which is increased
by 24.6%, compared with the year of 2017, mainly due to the
increase of energy consumption and increase of operation
areas for the department stores. We have implemented various
energy-saving measures to reduce the corresponding carbon
emissions. For details, please refer to the section of “Use of
resources” below.

Note: The calculation of carbon emissions is based on the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol published by the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development and the World Resources Institute,
Reporting Guide for Environmental Key Performance Indicators and
the Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in China
issued by the National Development and Reform Commission for the
climate changes.

A2 Use of resources

The Group is committed to becoming an environmentally
friendly enterprise by saving electricity and encouraging
the collection and recycling of office supplies and other
resources to save natural resources. Our stores also integrate
environmental protection publicity with marketing activities to
advocate green lifestyle, so as to strive to become a model
store for recycling economy.

We adhere to the preparation of analysis report on statistics
of water and electricity consumption, and continue to update
the standing book for equipment to enhance the management
level. In the financial year of 2018, the energy saving indicators
was even included as the performance indicators of the
employees to reward outstanding model of energy efficiency,
as well as penalizing irregularities.

Use of energy

Our energy consumption during the reporting period is
mainly due to the electricity consumption of all retail stores
and supermarkets (excluding the utility electricity that are not
directly controlled by the Group) with a total of 467,019,188.00
kWh, which is increased by 11.09% compared with
420,415,199.86 kWh for the year of 2017. This is because
there are more stores operating floor.

A2
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In order to strengthen the monitoring of the energy
consumption of the Group, a number of energies saving
measures were implemented during the reporting period
in addition to the preparation of statistical analysis reports,
namely

Enhancement of annual and monthly budget management
to continuously promote water and electricity saving;

Strict implementation of the operating time for various
types of electrical equipment, with timely adjustment of air
conditioning temperature;

Enhancement of inspection and examination, with
timely troubleshooting and repairs for failure in energy
consumption and prevention of waste of water and
electricity;

Continuous innovation for upgrade of energy-saving
equipment and techniques, such as energy-saving
lightings, zone management on lighting, elevator
frequency conversion, energy-saving water valves and use
of energy-saving environmental protection materials; and

Capital investment for optimization of environment of
stores to establish a model enterprise for clean energy
and environmental protection.

Water Consumption

The total water consumption of all the retail stores of the Group
in the financial year of 2018 was 4,587,461.94 cubic meters.
which was decreased by 0.95% compared with approximately
4,631,389.50 cubic meters for the year of 2017, mainly due to
the strengthened awareness of cost control in the department
stores and reduced energy consumption.

Some of the water saving measures implemented by the
Group during the reporting period are as follows:

Regularly carry out water conservation education on
various departments of the Group to raise awareness of
staff on water conservation and conduct supervision as
well;

Send special personnel to check whether the water taps
are closed or pipelines are in a leakage condition;

Promote water saving awareness by posting reminders of
water conservation in public toilets;

Install sensor valves in public toilets to control the amount
of water used; and

Reduce water consumption through regular water
management and strict control of waste.
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The Group has always attached great importance to the impact
of operations on the environment and natural resources. In
addition to complying with relevant national environmental
regulations and international standards, the Group has
also incorporated environment protection awareness into
its daily management to meet the objectives of sustainable
development for the environment.

In addition to managing the aforesaid emissions and resource
consumption, we will also consider the possible environmental
impact by the renovation design of our retail stores.
Environmentally friendly materials will be used for renovation
of stores. Decoration companies are also required to use
soundproofed wooden walls and dustproof cloth to minimise
the noise from our renovation works. Moreover, no reflective
glass was used in all of our stores to reduce the light pollution
to the surrounding environment.

B. SOCIAL
B1 Employment

The Group regards employees as the most important assets
and is committed to providing employees with a fair and
sound working environment having open space for personal
development to ensure that Maoye International keeps
company with its employees for advancement.

The Group has established the corporate values, which
employees are guided to recognise, so that attitudes and
behaviors of every employee will conform to and reflect the
corporate culture. We have established a sound compensation
system to provide all employees with remuneration level and
welfare policies that are competitive in the market, so as to
ensure that employees enjoy fair remuneration and benefits.

For the recruitment and promotion, fair opportunity is provided
for each employee under a just and non — discriminatory
principle to ensure that employees are not affected by
factors such as gender, race and other factors in hiring and
promotion. At the same time, while ensuring the contribution of
employees to the Company, the personal ability and value are
also promoted to have a rapid improvement and development.

We also strictly adhere to national and local laws and
regulations in terms of working hours and holiday
arrangements so that employees can enjoy their due leaves to
maintain physical and mental health after industrious works.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the
labour related laws and regulations.
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B2 Health and safety

Maoye International provides employees with an ideal and
safe working environment. In addition to taking all appropriate
measures to protect the health and safety of employees,
the Group also pays attention to the balance of work and
healthy living among employees. Corresponding system and
measures for leaves and medical needs of employees in
special stages (such as pregnancy, illness, work injury etc.)
have been developed to ensure that there is a reasonable
guarantee for rights and interests of the employees.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to health and safety of the workplace.

B3 Development and training

The Group focuses on the growth of employees and establishes
a scientific and effective training system to formulate and
implement training programs according to job nature and
needs of employees to promote their improvement and growth.
The training contents are divided into induction training,
business training, quality training and personnel training
program of “Maoye University”.

Induction training

In order to help new employees to integrate into the Company
as soon as possible and quickly adapt to job requirements,
regular new staff trainings are organised. Through these
trainings, employees can understand the development,
corporate culture and the rules and regulations of the Group.

Business training

In-service employees regularly receive different types of
trainings in accordance with the needs of their works. For
example, retail stores regularly held services etiquette
trainings, while financial department held skills training for
financial employees.

Quality training

Through arrangements such as “reading club” and online
learning platform, the Group provides employees with personal
quality training programs to enable them to obtain personal
growth and advancement.

Personnel training program of “Maoye University”

With deep integration of the Internet economy and
traditional industries, the transformation of department
stores is imperative. In order to meet the needs of talent
in the “new retail” era, the Group provides employees with
more systematic and rich personnel training programs. By
formulating comprehensive training plans, employees can
grow rapidly to realise personal value in the Company and
make contribution to the growth and development of the
Company.
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All of our departments and stores comply with local laws and
regulations and strictly prohibit the use of child labour and
forced labour. Maoye International pays special attention
to the verification of identity information of employees.
Comprehensive recruitment review procedures will be
conducted by the human resources department to ensure
that the information provided by the candidates is accurate.
In addition, the Group will regularly examine whether there is
existence of children labour or forced labour in the operation
of the business.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to children or forced labour.

B5 Supply Chain Management

The Group has been considering environmental issues from
various perspectives when negotiating the store leasing with
the suppliers. The Group will directly examine the qualifications
of the customers for new storage goods and supply of new
products, including environmental protection indicators,
and the quality of portfolio of regional and store suppliers to
provide consumers with a variety of choices. The Group will
directly interface with large suppliers to introduce attractive
products that comply with environment regulations to promote
the strategic cooperation between the two parties. In addition,
environmental information is also shared with retail tenants and
other visitors from time to time to promote sustainable green
business model.

At the same time, all suppliers operating in our stores are
required to establish labour relations with employees in
accordance with local laws and regulations and provide
remuneration and benefits (such as social security, provident
fund etc.) that meet legal requirements. The aforesaid
requirements are clearly included in the “counter contract” and
cooperation agreement of the two parties. For the employees
of suppliers, we also require suppliers and their staff to provide
written supporting documents and records to ensure that
interests of the employees of the suppliers are guaranteed.
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B6 Product responsibility

Policy on product and service responsibility

The Group is responsible for the products and services and
pays attention to marketing ethics to ensure no engagement
in any form of unfair business practices. The procurement
and service processes of the Group ensure the transparency
and security of the information on products and services. The
policy on rights and interests of customers of the Group is
not only formulated and publicised, but also be implemented
in the operating activities to prevent products or services
from harming interests, health and safety of the consumers.
The Group complies with the relevant product and service
regulations and national standards, without any cheating,
misleading, deception or any other acts that undermine the
trust from customers and damage to their rights and interests.

Customer service policy

Our business model is based on the needs of customers for
the premise, with an ultimate goal of providing customers
with the best quality services. We not only provide customers
with the best quality products to meet their needs, but
also implement relevant examination measures to fulfill
the commitment. In case a complaint about the service is
lodged, the Group will conduct an independent investigation
in accordance with its internal guidelines. The Group also
collects the satisfaction questionnaire from customers regularly
to gather valuable opinions from customers.

In addition, we are committed to establishing a deep
partnership with the tenants, shoppers and visitors by
understanding their needs and working closely with them.
In summary, we are committed to providing customers with
a unique and enjoyable experience. As such, we must fulfill
our commitment to excellence in quality of services and
sustainable value-added assets, creating a good place full of
life enjoyment, working joys and shopping leisure.

Data privacy policy

The Group strictly abides by the provisions of the law and
attaches great importance to the privacy of personal data to
resolutely maintain and protect personal information. Only
personal information needed for the business are collected
and used subject to purposes mentioned in the course of
collection unless with agreement from customers. We will not
transfer or disclose any personal data to any entities other than
the members of the Group without consent, unless otherwise
required by the laws or notification is given to customers in
advance. In addition, we maintain appropriate safety systems
and measures to prevent unauthorised access to personal
data.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the
laws and regulations relating to the quality of products and
services.
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The Group has been committed to upholding the principle
of integrity and all employees are required to strictly abide
by personal and professional conducts. The internal control
and human resources centre of the Group have standardised
channels to accept internal and external reports on corruption,
bribery and other violations of professional conducts, together
with investigation and disposal of reports having evidence.
During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to corruption.

B8 Community investment

The Group is committed to exert available resources to support
our community and encourage our employees to participate in
various charitable and voluntary activities.

The Group will continue to uphold the principle of being
responsible for its shareholders and investors, employees,
suppliers, customers, public community and will seek
further development opportunities to maintain a harmonious
relationship with its stakeholders.
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The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 8 August 2007. The Group
principally engages in the operation and management of department
stores and property development in the PRC. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 78.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators, an indication of likely future developments in
the Group’s business and a discussion on the relationships with its
key stakeholders, are set out in the “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman
Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report. Particulars of important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in note 46 to the financial statements.
The review forms part of this directors’ report.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK3.64
cents in cash per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the
“Proposed Final Dividend”) (2017: HK3.88 cents), subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Thursday, 9 May 2019 (the “2019 AGM”). The Proposed
Final Dividend will be paid in cash on Friday, 31 May 2019 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company as at the close of business on Tuesday, 21 May 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(i) Determining the eligibility to attend and vote at the 2019
AGM

The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from Monday,
6 May 2019 to Thursday, 9 May 2019 (both days inclusive), during
which no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at 2019 AGM, unregistered
holders of shares of the Company should ensure all share transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
3 May 2019.
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(ii) Determining the entitiement to the Proposed Final
Dividend

The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from Friday, 17
May 2019 to Tuesday, 21 May 2019 (both days inclusive), during
which no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to be entitled to the Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered
holders of shares of the Company should ensure all share transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 16 May 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 82 to 83 and note 37 to the financial
statements. The reserves are calculated in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution was approximately RMB1,728 million, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company. Pursuant to the 137
of Articles of Association, dividends may be declared and paid out of
the profits of the Company, realized or unrealized, or from any reserve
set aside from profits which the Directors determine is no longer
needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution dividends may also
be declared and paid out of share premium account or any other fund
or account which can be authorized for this purpose in accordance
with the Law.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Movements of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 36
to the financial statements.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Interest bearing bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2018 amounted to RMB18,241.9 million, details of which are
set out in the heading under “Interest-bearing Loans” above and note
34 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company were
as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Zhong Pengyi (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Liu Bo (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Bin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Chan Lum
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen

According to Article 87 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Liu Bo, Mr.
Chow Chan Lum and Mr. Pao Ping Wing, the existing directors of the
Company, will retire from office by rotation at the 2019 AGM. All the
above retiring directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the 2019 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the 2019 AGM has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. The Articles of Association provide that the Directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices;
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said persons. Save
for the above, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
up to the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’ Report)
Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) being in force
for the benefit at any of the Directors (whether made by the Company
or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company (if made
by the Company).

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Secretary” in this annual
report.

PENSION SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in retirement schemes administered and operated by
the local municipal government. The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China contribute funds to the retirement schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees which are calculated on certain percentage
of the average employee salary as stipulated by the local municipal
government. Such retirement schemes are responsible for the entire
post-retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2018 were RMB66 million. Details of the pension scheme
are set out in note 8 to the finance statement.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements, no director
nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to their duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the directors of the Company
in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in the Listing Rules were
as follows:
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(1) Long position in the shares of the Company

(1) ARBARGVEE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of director Capacity interested capital*
LERNE
mEERZ CEITRAHN
EEpnA 514 ZBEREE BB
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Interest of controlled corporations 4,200,000,000 81.71%
HKAEE RiEH AR (Note)
(F3E)
Beneficial owner 50,000,000 0.97%
EmlEEA
4,250,000,000 82.68%

Note: These shares were held by Maoye Department Store Investment Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of MOY International Holdings Limited, which
in turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2018.

(2) Long position in the shares of associated corporations

(2.1) Maoye Department Store Investment Limited, the immediate
holding company of the Company

MiEE © 5% % % 15 B MOY International Holdings
Limited /) 2= & K B X 7] Maoye
Department Store Investment Limited
¥ & -+ M MOY International Holdings
Limited B &K E 2 EHER ©

© ASHKRREHEBRBERUAATN018
F12A31AEHTRG 2 HE -
(2) HBCEERD ZHR

1) X 2 B B ¥ F R 2 A Maoye
Department Store Investment

Limited
Percentage
of the issued
share capital
Number of in such
ordinary shares associated
Name of director Capacity interested corporation*
IhZAEEE
BEERZ CEITRAN
EEpnA 56 HERHA BMAOBE D
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Interest of controlled corporation 2 100%
bt REHLEE RS (Note)
(BEE)

Note: These shares were held by MOY International Holdings Limited,
which was wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided
by the number of Maoye Department Store Investment Limited’s
issued shares as at 31 December 2018.
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(2.2) MOY International Holdings Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company

22) & » A & &K #F R 2 A MOY
International Holdings Limited
Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Number of in such

ordinary shares associated

Name of director Capacity interested corporation*
{52 L

BEEZ CEBITRAK

EEnA 56 EBERHE OB 2
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Beneficial owner 100 100%

=R IASEE BEmBEBA

*  The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by
the number of MOY International Holdings Limited’s issued shares as
at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than the
directors of the Company, whose interests have been disclosed in the
above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company and
its Associated Corporations”) had interests of 5% or more in the shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in the shares of the Company AATRPZHE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity interested capital*
EART
BERERZ CRITRAMN
FTERRER 51 EBEREE MAE D
Mrs. Huang Jingzhang Interest of spouse 4,250,000,000 82.68%
REFH T i (B (Note (a))
(FifE(a))
Maoye Department Store Investment Limited  Beneficial owner 4,200,000,000 81.71%
EREAA (Note (b))
(FEE(D))
MOQY International Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 4,200,000,000 81.71%
Rt EE R (Note (b))
(FifE(b))
Notes: 3T

(a) Mrs. Huang Jingzhang was deemed to be interested in these shares through the
interest of her spouse, Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

(b) Maoye Department Store Investment Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of MOY International Holdings Limited. Such interests were also disclosed as
the interests of Mr. Huang Mao Ru in the above section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company and its Associated Corporations”.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person
(other than the directors of the Company, whose interests have
been disclosed in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company and its Associated Corporations”) had an
interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

(a) FELTEBRRGSERMAENES  HEA
A RS KRS o

(b) Maoye Department Store Investment Limited J3
MOY International Holdings Limited 2 2 &} /&2
Al ZERm MR ENEFREETHAERAK
NRREAEEORE 2 IR1D KA G 2 B ok
Bl—HPREAZXINEE 2 o

* BoHRERTEREEBUARARR2018F 124
J1ABEITROZHE -

B EXET#EEEESN 0 BR2018% 128318 @ I
EAMAT(EZEREXEEREZITHA
BN R R E G E®E 2 D RAEREKR D

BmMAR |- ENARRRESHRINESR
RIEES R EIEDIE336 IR A T ETFEN
EReMATRE SRR AR R B D sk AR R R 1 2 2

AR o
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company are
disclosed under the below paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme”.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include: (a) the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors; (b) the management
of the Company and its subsidiaries; (c) key business persons and
persons with special contributions to the Company, and (d) consultants
or advisors with special contributions to the Company. The Scheme
became effective on 20 January 2010 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED f& 2B B2 G R A )

iR A 9 1

AR B H R R h R MO AR BRI T — R [ Bt
HARERT &) PR EE -

B4 FRE Rt &

ARBES— AR 8 ([ et 8 ) R
REBLEXRNML BRI Z & BRSEER M
RERLEOR - LB ZABR2EE B (a)
ARBZEE  BEBIUIFATES (O)A

REINREMBARNEREAR ; (C)FBEEM
BARRBRREBMOAR © (EAEEE

ROk B R A A T 3B - %5t 81702010
F1R20B8 43K - FRIFWEEHAIER] - KA
ZBREI0FABR

RTTEARRRZ AT 8 R AN~ BEHEA E A5+ B
R BRI TERFTA M AR TE AR A M A T
BITHRMEAE LR - EEAEES TSRS
RRAEBITRDEIB0% © RIEBEZTE] - IME
+— @A HE - AT TZABTRERS
HENRERNHE LR RARB TR ET
B HI1% o #E— S TR IB % L IR A A 1
RBREIRINBERAE L3 -

AARNBES  TRAHEEERRAKEN
EEER AR LRI - BRI ERITE
FREHERIT AT o tbIN - PMER+ —(E
AHRARARREERRIBLIFNTES
S FREMABEA LR T A BER
R HBBARATRFEETRHIN01% K
BEGRELAHARFRNBRETE)EBS
BEETE  ARRRRBERAS EEE4E
BITAIETT ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 €



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within seven
days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of RMB1.00 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the Share Option Incentive Scheme
Committee, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of grant of the
share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Share
Option Incentive Scheme Committee, but may not be less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings. The total number of securities available
for issue under the Scheme of the Company was 471,502,600 shares,
which was approximately 9.17% of the issued share capital as at the
date of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had no outstanding share
options. During the year ended 31 December 2018, no share options
of the Company have been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 7,340 employees.
Salaries, bonuses and benefits are determined with reference to market
terms and performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employees.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company
confirmed that based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company
had maintained sufficient amount of public float as required under the
Listing Rules and agreed by the Stock Exchange.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

On 9 October 2018, the Company early redeemed 13.45 million shares
of US$300 million 7.00% senior guaranteed notes due 23 October
2018 with a nominal value of US$13.45 million, and the Company has
completed the redemption of the outstanding notes in full in aggregate
principal amount of US$286.55 million together with accrued interest
up to the maturity date.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 18 June 2018, Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, purchased 38.24% of equity interests
in UGO, for an aggregate cash consideration of RMB218,279,300.
When aggregating with the 18.64% of equity interests in UGO held
by Zhongzhao Investment Management Co., Ltd, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, UGO became an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company upon completion of the transaction.

GENERAL DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

As detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 7 June 2018, the
Company (as borrower) entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility
Agreement”) with a bank (the “Lender”), pursuant to which a revolving
loan facility up to HK$92,000,000 and US$21,370,000, respectively,
were made available to the Company (the “Loan Facilities”). The Loan
Facilities are for a term of 12 months commencing from the first date of
the Facility Agreement.

Under the Facility Agreement, a specific performance covenant is
imposed on Mr. Huang Mao Ru, the chairman of the Board, executive
Director and the controlling shareholder of the Company, requiring
him to remain as the controlling shareholder of the Company and the
chairman of the Board. Failure to comply with the aforesaid covenant
by Mr. Huang Mao Ru will constitute an event of default under the
Facility Agreement and the Lender shall have the right to declare
the Loan Facilities to be cancelled and/or all or part of outstanding
amounts under the Loan Facilities, together with accrued interest and
all other sums payable to be immediately due and payable.

As the above specific performance covenant under the Facility
Agreement continues to exist as at 31 December 2018, the Company
is required to make the above disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.21 of
the Listing Rules. In addition, the above performance covenant has
been duly complied up to the date of the approval of these financial
statements.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Under the deed of non-competition dated 17 April 2008 given by Mr.
Huang Mao Ru, Maoye Holdings Limited and Richon Holdings Limited
(collectively known as the “Controlling Shareholder Group”) in favour
of the Company, details of which were stated in the prospectus of the
Company dated 21 April 2008 (the “Prospectus”), the Controlling
Shareholder Group had undertaken to use its best endeavour within
three years to (i) resolve the existing litigation between Chongging
Jiefangbei Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. (EE RIS X XA EH
f2 A 7] ) (“Chongqing Jiefangbei Store”) and Chongging Xin Long
Da Real Estate Development Company Limited (2 & 22 [% 1 /= ith &= 57
AR A T) (“Xin Long Da”); (i) obtain all necessary consents and
approvals for the transfer of the interest of the Controlling Shareholder
Group in Chongging Jiefangbei Store and Wuxi Maoye Department
Store Company Limited (& £ % % & & A R 2 7] ) and Wuxi Maoye
Baifu Supermarket Company Limited ({5 X 2 A RBBRTHEER L
7] ) (the latter two collectively known as “Maoye Wuxi Store”) to the
Group; and (iii) obtain all necessary consents and approvals for the
transfer of the Controlling Shareholder Group’s interest in Guiyang
Friendship Group Holdings Company Limited (&[5 &8 (£ &) & %D
A PR A &) (“Guiyang Friendship Group”), to serve a notice on the
Group within ten business days of any of the issues in clauses (i) to
(iii) above having been resolved, and to use his/its best endeavour to
transfer the interest in Chongging Jiefangbei Store, Maoye Wuxi Store
and Guiyang Friendship Group to the Group as soon as practicable
once the relevant issues impeding such transfer have been resolved.
The Controlling Shareholder Group had further undertaken to keep the
Company informed every six months from the Listing Date as regards
the progress on the matters described above.
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Since the Supreme People’s Court has adjudged that the leasing
agreement entered into between Chongging Jiefangbei Store and
Xin Long Da was valid and binding, the litigation between Chongging
Jiefangbei Store and Xin Long Da has been resolved. However,
the Group is still considering as to whether to acquire the interests
of the Controlling Shareholder Group in the Chongging Jiefangbei
Store and Maoye Wuxi Store. As the original master management
agreement has expired on 4 May 2017, the Company entered into the
new master management agreement (the “New Master Management
Agreement”) with Maoye Holdings Limited on 4 May 2017 to govern
the terms upon which the Group will provide store management
services to the Controlling Shareholder Group with respect to the
Maoye Wuxi Store and/or department stores owned by the Controlling
Shareholder Group in order to avoid conflict of interests between
the Group and the Controlling Shareholder Group. The New Master
Management Agreement has a term of three years with effect from
5 May 2017. As Maoye Holdings Limited is a connected person (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company, the entering into of
the New Master Management Agreement constituted a connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, as all the applicable percentage ratios in relation to the
New Master Management Agreement were less than 0.1%, the New
Master Management Agreement was fully exempt from the reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules. As Chongging Jiefangbei Store has ceased operation
since February 2011, the Group did not manage Chongging Jiefangbei
Store thereafter. Approval from the relevant government departments
has not been obtained in relation to the Group’s application for transfer
of interest in Guiyang Friendship Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted the following transactions
with certain connected persons of the Company. These transactions
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions and are subject to the disclosure requirements under the
Listing Rules.

Profit Guarantee concerning the discloseable and
connected transactions in relation to the reorganization

On 12 June 2015, Maoye Shangsha, Shenzhen Demao Investment
Enterprises (Limited Partnership) and Shenzhen Hezhengmao
Investment Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (collectively, the
“Vendors”) entered into a framework agreement (as amended by
a formal agreement) and a compensation agreement with Maoye
Commercial that the Vendors agreed to sell the entire issued share
capital of Shenzhen Maoye Department Store Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Maoye Department”), Shenzhen Maoye Department
Store Shennan Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Maoye Oriental Times Department
Store Co., Ltd., Zhuhai City Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. and
Shenzhen Maoye Department Store Huagiangbei Co., Ltd. (collectively,
the “Target Entities”) to Maoye Commercial at a total consideration of
1,161,542,889 shares of Maoye Commercial.
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According to the compensation agreement, the Vendors promised
to Maoye Commercial that the total audited net profits of the Target
Entities for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 would
be not less than RMB711,011,000 (the “2017 Profit Guarantee”),
RMB779,222,200 and RMB839,703,400, respectively. According to the
special audited accounts of the Target Entities for the year ended 31
December 2017 audited by Ruihua Certified Public Accounts the total
net profits of the Target Entities was approximately RMB762,212,400,
without taking into account the effect of non-operating gains and
losses. The amount was lower than the 2017 Profit Guarantee by
RMB17,009,800. Therefore, the 2017 Profit Guarantee has not been
met. According to the compensation agreement, Maoye Commercial
shall be entitled to repurchase 8,479,892 compensation shares from
the Vendors at the cost of RMB1.00, representing approximately 0.73%
of the total consideration shares (“the Repurchase”).

However, the resolution to the Repurchase was not approved by the
shareholders of Maoye Commercial at the shareholders’” meeting held
on 9 April 2018. Accordingly, on 17 May 2018, pursuant to the terms of
the compensation agreement, the compensation shares of 8,479,892
will be transferred from the Vendors, respectively, to the shareholders
of Maoye Commercial (other than the Vendors) as listed on the
shareholders’ register of Maoye Commercial as of the close of trading
on 27 March 2018, in proportion to their then shareholding in Maoye
Commercial, for no consideration. Upon completion of such transfers,
Maoye Shangsha’s shareholding in Maoye Commercial has decreased
from 1,414,838,703 shares to 1,406,857,724, representing a decrease
in percentage shareholding from 81.69% to 81.23%.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are of
the view that the Vendors have fulfilled their obligations under the
compensation agreement, and the transfer of 7,980,979 compensation
shares in Maoye Commercial by Maoye Shangsha to the shareholders
of Maoye Commercial is fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 17 May 2018, 15 March 2018, 18 July 2017, 21 March 2017, 29
February 2016, 15 October 2015, 17 September 2015, 7 July 2015, 14
June 2015 and 15 April 2015, and the circular of the Company dated
31 October 2015.
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Extension of Loan to a Connected Person at Subsidiary
Level of the Company

On 28 December 2018, Shenzhen Maoye Department, an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Supplemental
Loan Agreement with Mr. Zou Zhaobin (“Mr. Zou”), a shareholder of
Inner Mongolia Victory Commercial (Group) Co., Ltd, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which Shenzhen Maoye
Department agreed to extend the maturity date of the loan to Mr. Zou
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 in the principal amount of
RMB399,933,400, bearing interest at a rate of 10.5% per annum. Save
as supplemented by the Supplemental Loan Agreement, all other terms
and provisions of the Loan Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 28 December 2018, 29 December 2017 and 12 December 2017.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Master Leasing Agreement

As the 2013 master leasing agreement entered into between the
members of the Group and Mr. Huang, any of his associates and
companies majority-owned or controlled by Mr. Huang and his
associates (the “Controlling Shareholder Group”) has expired
since 31 December 2015, and the Company expected to continue
the continuing connected transactions thereafter, the Company
entered into the new master leasing agreement (the “Master Leasing
Agreement”) with Maoye Holdings Limited on 29 December 2015,
which has a term of three years and is effective from 1 January 2016.
Pursuant to the Master Leasing Agreement, the maximum aggregate
rent and miscellaneous expenses to be payable by the Group to the
Controlling Shareholder Group for each of the year 2016, 2017 and
2018 is RMB177 million.

The Controlling Shareholder Group owns several commercial
complexes in the PRC, all of which are situated at the core commercial
district of the cities. The Master Leasing Agreement allows the
Company to take advantage of the Controlling Shareholder Group’s
resources to maintain the operation of its department stores at core
commercial districts. Furthermore, the Group has been operating
several department stores at the Controlling Shareholder Group’s
Premises for a long time. The cost to be incurred and the adverse
impact on the operation of the Group’s stores in the event of their
relocation will be substantial.

According to the Master Leasing Agreement, the Group paid leasing

fees of approximately RMB163.1 million (2017: RMB161.9 million) for
the year ended 31 December 2018.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed and confirmed that such continuing connected transactions
were:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) entered into on normal commercial terms or on terms better than
the normal commercial terms; and

(iii) carried out in accordance with respective agreements that regulate
such transactions on fair and reasonable terms and in the interest
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Group have confirmed in a letter to the Board that,
with respect to the aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board,;

(ii) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors
to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(iii) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and

(iv) with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing connected
transactions, nothing has come to their attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the relevant caps as mentioned in relevant agreements
and announcements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2018, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors or their respective associates had any business or interests
in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group:

(i) Mr. Huang Mao Ru held interests in Chongqging Jiefangbei Store,
Maoye Wuxi Store and Guiyang Friendship Group. Details of these
companies and Mr. Huang’s interests in these companies are
set out in the Prospectus. As mentioned in the Prospectus, the
Controlling Shareholder Group has granted the Group an option to
purchase the whole or part of the interest of these companies
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(i) Mr. Zhong Pengyi held interests in Shenzhen Friendship Trading
Centre Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Friendship Department Store
Company Limited. Details of these companies and Mr. Zhong's
interests in these companies are set out in the Prospectus. As
mentioned in the Prospectus, to manage the conflict of interest
arising from Mr. Zhong's interests in these companies, Mr. Zhong
is required to abstain from participation, deliberation or voting at
Board meetings where matters involving these companies are
discussed or resolved, and he will not be counted for purpose of
determining quorum for such Board meetings.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Since the Group mainly engages in retail business, for the year ended
31 December 2018, none of its customers or suppliers accounted for
more than 5% of the Group’s revenue or purchases. In addition, for the
year ended 31 December 2018, none of the directors, shareholders
or their respective close associates who owned 5% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital had any interest in any of the five
largest customers and the five largest suppliers of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmental-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimize the environmental impact by saving
electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials. Details of the environmental policies of the Company are
set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out in the Mainland
China while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with the
relevant laws and regulations in the Mainland China and Hong Kong.
As far as the Directors are aware, during the year ended 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this report, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on its business and operations.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in note 46 to
the financial statements.
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AUDITORS ZEED

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, will retire and, being eligible,  ARXF Z ZEEM LK & 5TEI B ST 2 (EHEE
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed @ BEKRITFEEESFTHEZIE - 2019F K
at the 2019 AGM to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the HEFAE FiSIRE—IERZE  EHLEL

Company. KEETRN BT AN A BIZEED ©
By order of the Board FEES®

Maoye International Holdings Limited REBIRZERERAT

Huang Mao Ru =R

Chairman EER

14 March 2019 2019F3H14H

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED &% BB IEAE B R A A 71



72

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B RN E

EY:

To the members of Maoye International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Maoye
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 78 to 234, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

RRETEE

Goodwill — impairment

& — B
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

M Er N AHARETERETRE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group reported
RMB1,395,097,000 of goodwill as a result of previous
acquisitions. Management performs impairment test for
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired, by comparing the carrying
amount of the unit, including the goodwill, with the
recoverable amount of the unit. The impairment test
is complex, and significantly relies on management’s
judgement and estimation about the discount rate and
the expected future operation results, such as long
term growth rate, purchase price inflation, revenue and
margin development which are affected by future market
and economic conditions.
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The accounting policies, significant estimates and
related disclosures are included in note 2.4 Business
combinations and goodwill, note 3 Impairment of
goodwill and note 20 Goodwill to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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We evaluated the key assumptions used in cash flow
forecasts, such as the sales growth and gross margin,
through comparison with historical performance and
business development plan. We involved our internal
valuation specialist in the assessment of the discount
rate and long term growth rate with reference to general
market indicators and comparable companies. We
also tested management’s sensitivity analysis of the
impairment test.
BfRAEBERREB L ERERABFERSRER
RIFFE A RIS - MHEIR R NEME - HFIEAB
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We also assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

RRETEE

Investment properties — valuation

REYF—141E

BREFTEE@E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

M Ft N AHRARETERETRE

The Group is engaged in the operation and management
of department stores and property development in
Mainland China. The underlying investment properties in
operation, investment properties under construction and
lease incentives are recognized as investment properties
and measured at fair value. Management engaged
external appraisers to evaluate the fair values of the
investment properties annually. As of 31 December
2018, the Group’s investment properties amounted
to approximately RMB16,334,049,000. The fair value
measurement of investment properties is complex and
highly dependent on a range of estimates made by
management, such as the rental value, rental growth,
vacancy rates, discount rate, budgeted construction
cost, remaining percentage to completion and profit
margin.
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The accounting policies, significant estimates, fair value
hierarchy and related disclosures are included in note 2.4
Investment properties, note 3 Estimation of fair value of
investment properties, and note 18 Investment properties
to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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We assessed the objectivity, independence and
expertise of the external appraisers, as well as obtained
an understanding of the external appraisers’ scope of
work.
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With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
we obtained an understanding of the valuation process
and techniques adopted by the external appraisers to
assess if they are consistent with the requirements of
industry norms. We obtained the detailed work of the
external appraisers and assessed the reasonableness
of the significant unobservable inputs and the accuracy
of the source data adopted by the management of
the Group and the external appraisers by comparing
them, on a sample basis, to existing tenancy profiles,
publicly available information of similar comparable
properties and our knowledge of the real estate industry.
We also evaluated the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management on the significant unobservable inputs
to evaluate the magnitude of their impacts on the fair
values.

EHPNEEEZROHE T - BT T HEBRE RS
DML ERMFTER AN 77 5 PART AR B = B BT AR R —
B MATBUSIMBIAERTE A A TIEE R RamB B3R A1
SR - BUR L EMENRRER RERMEEETTE
BT RRETTIEE - RS R EARTABREAEN
BEM R EEBEEIEE RIMEDE ER TR 8 BUR R
HEHEM - ZMBETE T EEEREETATERBAERE
WBRES AT EREH R A ENTERE -

We also reviewed the adequacy of the disclosures of the
fair value of investment properties.

BATBEREMEAABENRBERSRED °
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2 REN R

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B RN E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2 REN R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is LAW KWOK KEE.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

14 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 128318 ILFE

2017
20174
Notes RMB’000
BifEE ARBTFT
REVENUE WA 5 6,117,247 5,756,639
Other income HA WA 6 1,731,664 1,417,677
Total operating revenue B AR 7,848,911 7,174,316
Cost of sales SHE A 7 (2,225,826) (2,255,870)
Employee expenses EEMAX 8 (608,096) (595,886)
Depreciation and amortisation e RS (801,432) (906,334)
Operating lease rental expenses EHe Y 10 (440,542) (424,037)
Other operating expenses HAbfe ¥ 11 (1,265,784) (1,333,974)
Other gains and losses HAb e Rk E1E 12 499,944 1,091,398
Operating profit 4R 3,007,175 2,749,613
Finance costs BhE AR 13 (1,010,188) (924,616)
Share of profits and losses of: FEMEAT & THEE
a joint venture AEDE (1,218) (79)
associates i lNE] 29,082 27,707
PROFIT BEFORE TAX CSNTE b 2,024,851 1,852,625
Income tax expense FriSfiFE 14 (897,630) (584,216)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ARERIE 1,127,221 1,268,409
Attributable to: LA AL FEMS -
Owners of the parent [SYNEILFSSV N 799,403 1,071,973
Non-controlling interests IR N A R 327,818 196,436
1,127,221 1,268,409
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBEREEA 16
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY ERERAEF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic E-WIN
— For profit for the year —ARFFHEEE RMB15.55 cents RMB20.85 cents
ARM¥15.555 AR¥20.859
Diluted s
— For profit for the year — RFFEEA RMB15.55 cents RMBZ20.85 cents

AR#¥15.550 ARK2085%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SmeEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 128318 ILFE

2017
20174
RMB’000
AREF T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REFHE 1,127,221 1,268,409
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit 2 HE K
Other comprehensive income that LA BRI EF H =18
may be reclassified to profit Ky E b 2R ¢
or loss in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale equity investments: AHHERERIRE
Changes in fair value NREEE = (163,700)
Income tax effect Fristis & = 40,924
- (122,776)
Defined benefit retirement plans RERKENETE (683) (438)
Exchange differences on translation INERS I E E A RIEN =5
of foreign operations (3,259) 23,164
Other comprehensive income that LAT& BRRS S N E 3T
will not be reclassified to NDEEERN
profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hin 2 mUkas
Net loss on disposal of equity HEEERAUAAREBEFER
investments designated at fair value HEs it AHM2Ekan
through other comprehensive income BRI EBBTE (95,856) -
Changes in fair value on equity BEAUAAEBITER
investments designated at fair value HEB) AEMEEREER
through other comprehensive income ERIREN AR EBEE (444,516) -
Income tax effect FriStim 2 111,129 -
Gains on property revaluation Y E I E 1,594,911 840,676
Income tax effect Fristis 2 (398,728) (210,169)
Net other comprehensive income LA T e &3
that will not be reclassified to DEEEZEAEAM
profit or loss in subsequent periods: FHEWEFEE 766,940 630,507
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FERREEMEE KRS
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 762,998 530,457
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FERBEDEKWSEEE
FOR THE YEAR 1,890,219 1,798,866
Attributable to: AT A
Owners of the parent [SYNEIL TSV N 1,502,772 1,331,100
Non-controlling interests P I AS BR A 2R 387,447 467,766
1,890,219 1,798,866
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M BARRR

31 December 2018
2018%12H31H

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
20185 20174
12H31H 12H31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b ARMT T ARBTF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB MR 17 9,918,778 10,937,682
Investment properties WEME 18 16,334,049 12,890,379
Prepaid land lease payments T FREFBT A 19 4,417,142 4,813,295
Goodwill [l 20 1,395,097 1,409,574
Other intangible assets Hib A& E 21 50,611 39,594
Investment in a joint venture RELhERE 22 1,703 921
Investments in associates REtZ N RIRE 23 2,129,808 1,839,748
Equity investments designated EERNUAREEBEER 25
at fair value through other HEsst AR b2 ERER
comprehensive income EESRE 1,312,915 -
Financial assets at fair value through AR EEFTZAR 25
profit or loss BEEF BRI EE 208,080 -
Available-for-sale equity investments At HHERERIRE 24 - 2,937,478
Prepayments TEfRRIE 30 424,646 357,358
Deferred tax assets BRI IAE = 26 587,435 576,534
Total non-current assets ERBNEELRRE 36,780,264 35,802,563
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories e 27 234,870 236,103
Completed properties held for sale BEEGEDERDE 1,371,672 922,108
Properties under development BERPME 28 5,686,270 5,886,069
Financial assets at fair value through UAREETEAHE 25
profit or loss FEETABRNSREE 144 212
Trade receivables JEUE 5 FE 29 6,800 7,991
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTRIE - Efth EUCRIE 30
other assets FEMEE 3,382,845 3,209,654
Pledged deposits [REERTVES 31 201,948 310,322
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREeEEY 31 3,304,911 1,456,783
Total current assets MENE E AR 14,189,460 12,029,242
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade and bills payables JERTE 5 FIE R RIE 32 3,757,829 2,953,491
Deposits received, accruals and PliEe - EETERAK 33
other payables Hi e oE 9,254,049 7,583,674
Interest-bearing bank loans and STERITERE 34
other borrowings EAh &R 7,083,421 8,721,632
Income tax payable FEBFTIS TR 529,953 336,676
Dividend payable FERTRR B 433 433
Total current liabilities V=R TR 20,625,685 19,595,906
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEFHE (6,436,225) (7,566,664)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 30,344,039 28,235,899
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
20184 20174
12A31H 12H831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARET T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans and RERITERE 34
other borrowings EAh &R 11,158,502 11,017,391
Deferred tax liabilities FEETHIEEE 26 3,882,199 3,416,085
Other long-term liabilities HiyREEE 204 6,117
Provision for retirement benefits IRIREFIREEAE 35 8,248 8,133
Total non-current liabilities R AERTE 15,049,153 14,447,726
Net assets BEFH 15,294,886 13,788,173
EQUITY S
Equity attributable to owners of the BARERFEA
parent B
Issued capital BEITRR 36 460,153 460,153
Equity component of convertible bonds — AJ 8 & Az 25 55,538 55,538
Other reserves HAunE s 37 11,784,317 10,556,491
12,300,008 11,072,182
Non-controlling interests B Y 2,994,878 2,715,991
Total equity AR 15,294,886 13,788,173
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2018

EHE20185F12A318LFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATEERAEARR
Disposal
of partial
interestina Equity
Acquisition  subsidiary  component Defined
Share  ofnon- without of Statutory st benefit  Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium  controlling losing  convertiole Contributed ~ surplus ~ revaluation ~ refirement  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account  inferests  confrol bonds  suplus  reserve  reservet plans  reserve profts Total interests equity
HE-F
=]
W B
AR WEA: TEEER hivd BE  REEN SHE FER
BEARE RhREE KREs  BHE  BEYS  mERE  EBLNE  BMRR RNHE RBER  BRE A BREs  ERSE
RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBIOOO
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETRL ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARBTT ARETT ARMTR AREfR
(note 36) (note 37)  (note 37)
(Kiiz3p) (e (Wean)
At 1 January 2017 RO17E1A18 460153 1575001 (323129 332871 55538 28191 574208 2234587 216 (120644) 5007850 10,135809 1940760 12,076,569
Profitfor the year KEHR - - - - - - - - - - 10119713 107973 196436 1,268,409

Other comprehensive income for the year: REEMRTNG :
Changes i fair value of avallable-for-sale TRHEERRE

equity investments, AEEEY - - - - - - - (165629) - - - (1656%) 1929 (163,700)
Revaluation o propertes upon transfer 5% - BRREER
from property, plant and equipment to ERENENNEER
investment properties - - - - - - - do - - - 40724 350952 840,676
Exchanges diferences on BNEHAEELY
iranslaton of foreign operafions EjzE - - - - - - - - - Bl - Bl - Bie
Defned benef refement plans RERflEfHE - - - - - - - - (358) - - (358) 80
Tax flectof components of E2EYEERSS
other comprehensive income it 7 - - - - - - - (18714) - - - (18774)  (90471)  (169,245)
Total comprehensive income for the year FERANEES - - - - - - - 883 (58) 28164 1071973 1331100 467766 1,798,866
Compensaton shares ransferred to ERTHRRERY
non-controling interests (note 37) BERN (M3E37) - - - - - (381,069) - - - - - (381069) 381,069 -
Purchase of non-controling nerests BEHIRBRES - - - - - - - - - - - - (103 (103
Deregistration of subsidiaries HHIEAT - - - - - - (317) - - - - (317) - (317)
Profit appropriated to reserve fedia={one] - - - - - - 1513 - - - (1513 - - -
Final 2016 dividends paid BR016ERERE - - - - - - - - - - (13341)  (13341) - (18341)
Dividend paid by subsidiaries to HEAFmEER
non-controling interests RRERRANRE - - - - - - - - - - - - (73501 (73501)
At 31 December 2017 RO1TE12A318 460,153 1575001 (32312  362871" 55538 (352878  699,119" 2470908* (82 (97480)" 5941344" 11,072,182 2715991 13788,173
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

Year ended 31 December 2018

BZE2018F12A31RILFE
Atributable to owners of the parent
BAAREREARE
Disposal
of partial
interestina ~ Equity
Acquisition  subsidiary - component Defined
Share  ofnon-  without of  Capital Statutory ~ Asset  benefit Exchange Non-
Issued  premium controlling losing convertible redemption Contributed  surplus revaluation retirement fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capitl  account interests  control  bonds  reserve  surplus  reseve reserved plans  reseve  profits Total interests  equity
tE-E
il D%
WE  Brgk
R EKE TEAES § HE ERd HE FER
BRARA RHEER KREE  EME  BES MERRE  RHER RWOR  EGER  EMHH REERE  EEA At BREE RREE
RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'0O0 RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBTn ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETn ARMTR ARMTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARBTR ARMTZ ARMTR
At1 January 2018 ROBEIAA 460,153 1575001 (32317  3528M 55538 (361,069 28191 699,119 2470908 (62)  (o7480) 504134 11,072,182 2715991 13,788,173
Adoption of IFRS 9 AR RS ENER - - - - - - - - N - - (4508 552 200 %7
At January 2018 (Restated) R018E1A1R(ER) 460153 1575001 (32312 362871 5558 (361,069) 28191 699,119 2,501,006 (62)  (97480) 5916838 11,077,774 2,736,191 13813965
Proft for te year pisai}| - - - - - - - - - - - 799403 799403 3788 122
Other comprehensive income for the period: ~ AERB2ENE
Changes nfarvalue o equiy ivestmerls ¥R AL AL BEFERESS
designated at fai value through other FTAEAENGNERRE
comprehensive ncome, before tax DERZH(RRE) - - - - - - - - (M6129) - - - (M6128) (28308  (M4516)
Exchanges differences on franslaton of BERaEEE
foreign operations HERZE - - - - - - - - - - (3 - (3% - (39
Defined beneft refrement plans RERHRRTY - - - - - - - - - (569) - - (563) (120) (683)
Revaluation gains on properties upon trensfer —~ #7% » BiE R ER
from property, plant and equipment to EREMEONZER
nvestment propertes, before tax (B - - - - - - - - 1,488,052 - - - 148805 106899 1594911
Tax effectof components of other EhrEiEadn
comprefensive income llif - - o o - - - - (6r9) - - - (67981)  (19518) (267,599)
Disposal ofequity invesiments designaledat ~ hEHF AN AL EfsEA
fair value trough other comprenensive ERE \Eb2EkEN
income EERE o - - - - - - - (%75 - - - (%75 8% (95,856)
Total comprehensive income for the period TRk EE - - - - - - - EE (174 1'| (663)  (3250) 799403 1502772 36T4AT 1890219
Compensaion shares ransered o ERTHARRES
nor-controling inerests HEERH - - - - - (4559 - - - - - - (55%)  455% -
Disposal of partal nterest in LEMBLTHER
subsidiaries without osing contrl fEkEE - - - (1) - - - - - - - - (T 5T -
Purchase of non-controling inerests BEHRRRER - - - - - - - - - - - - - (119922) (19922
Proit appropriated o reserves iz - - - - - - - 3085 - - - (3085) = =
Figldicend for 2017 NIERERE g 2 g 5 g 5 g 5 g 5 - (T (1754 - (mp)
Dividend paid by a subsidiary o -EHBLA R
non-controling shareholders THRE - - - - - - - - - - - - - (111.828) (111,828)
4131 Decemer 208 HAIBFIO331E B LSO (R AT AR (G B9 TS SART (' (10070 R 1200008 2004878 15204886

EEEHRBERANE  BF  RBMARERK
BEYE  BoABEREESUAABENER
HEHHALMEZERGEHRSRE THTE
MESIREN DA BEZEIIE -

# The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from property, plant #
and equipment to investment properties carried at fair value and changes
in fair value of equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income/available-for-sale equity investments.

ZERBIRE RRESRETBHRARTREGRE EAM
i A R111,784,317,000 7T (20174 = AR
10,556,491,0007T) °

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of *
RMB11,784,317,000 (2017: RMB10,556,491,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN o~ —1 'IE—FZ
117 N == ‘I"Erﬁﬂlbi
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 128318 ILFE

2017
20174F
Notes RMB’000
Bt ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEENESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 75 A 1 2,024,851 1,852,625
Adjustments for: A TRIERE -
Interest income FEYA 6 (64,395) (83,327)
Depreciation and amortisation e M 801,432 006,334
Gain on deemed disposal of RIERE —HBE R ERG5 12
shares in an associate ol (48,269) -
Gain on partial disposal of & — MR AR o iR 12
shares in an associate i = (621,812)
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net HNERSHE, (MR ) F R 12 128,160 (50,727)
(Reversal of impairment)/ EUE 55808 11
impairment of trade receivables CRERE), RE (839) 3,901
Impairment of other receivables H b IR IE R B 11 10,459 6,478
Impairment of goodwill R (E 12 14,477 183,081
Impairment of equity investments EERNARBENZAEH 12
designated at fair value through S ABRNER
profit or loss "ERE 2,000 -
Impairment of property, HEYE - BEX 12
plant and equipment HAERE 48,649 -
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - BER 12
property, plant and equipment REHEEER 3,560 459
Gain on disposal of financial assets at  HENU QAR BETEAE 12
fair value through profit or loss FHEFT AR
REEKE (7) -
Dividend income from financial assets ~ RKEUARBETEEE 12
at fair value through profit or loss FEETABEHN
DEEERSWA (6,551) -
Gain on disposal of an available- HE A ERERIRE W 12
for-sale equity investment = (812,441)
Gain on disposal of equity investments  HE&EETEAUAREBES 12
designated at fair value through BHEHESHH ABROER
profit or loss TE W= = (89,605)
Fair value gain on investment properties $&& ¥ A 5t EEWE 12 (525,887) (175,073)
Fair value gains on equity investments LA QR BETEAE 12
at fair value through profit or loss FHFTAE R
BRIRE N EERE = (52)
Dividend income from equity BEAURAAREBENER 12
investments designated at fair value HEEFHT AL MEAERE
through other comprehensive income KRR IR E R BIA (36,362) -
Dividend income from available-for-sale 38 & A {f HH & 25 A 12
equity investments & B A = (40,081)
Finance costs B AR 13 1,010,188 924,616
Share of profits and losses of associates  JE{EHE 4 A Al1B2E (29,082) (27,707)
Share of loss of a joint venture Eh—RAaEEER 1,218 79
3,333,602 2,526,748
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
llV_\ é IE! ﬁiﬁi %

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 128318 ILFE

2017
20174
Note RMB’000
BifEE ARBTFT
Decrease in completed properties EEFECERMERD
held for sale 570,502 546,111
Additions of properties under ERAPYIZEIE N
development (1,073,351) (921,661)
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,233 43,440
Provision for retirement benefits paid B AR IRE R B 35 (919) (847)
Decrease in trade receivables JEWE B FRIER 393 8,462
Increase in prepayments and TR I8 N E A YR IE I 0
other receivables (223,412) (82,464)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and FERE 55 R RE
bills payables a0 Cid>) 804,338 (119,915)
Increase in deposits received, BlliEe - EFER R
accruals and other payables H i fE S FRIEE AN 2,017,233 649,227
Cash generated from operations KEFTRIRE 5,429,619 2,649,101
Interest received B UF B 64,395 33,327
PRC tax paid 2R EFIIE (598,688) (604,210)
Net cash flows from operating activities &L EEEF IR S RS H5E 4,895,326 2,078,218
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 128318 ILFE
2017
20174F
Note RMB’000
Bt ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHEENESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, BEWME - BB M&EIER
plant and equipment (468,932) (517,071)
Purchase of items of investment BEREYHIER
properties (26,818) (30,990)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - BEMREEER
property, plant and equipment FriS5/18 4,732 11,295
Proceeds from disposal of financial HENAREEFEZAHR
assets at fair value through profitor loss & &hzt AIBz5H)
SRVEEEHIE 540,455 337,733
Purchase of available-for-sale equity BEHNEERIEE
investments = (1,020,139)
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEREAUNAABENEZR
investments designated at fair value HEEFHT ARMEAEKE
through other comprehensive income K 1% A PTIS IR 401,239 -
Purchase of land lease prepayments BE L HHEEBEMNIE (23,068) (76,947)
Purchase of other intangible assets BEAEMELEE (838) (2,507)
Purchase of non-controlling interests BEIHERR RS = (103)
Loans to a related party m— AR T E R (399,933) (899,933)
Repayment of a loan by a related party —#&EiHHEEE R 399,933 200,000
Loans to an associate M — B E A RNER (120,000) -
Repayment of a loan by an associate —MEENREEER 66,000 112,646
Repayment of loan by a third party —ZEZHEEER 60,000 -
Loan to a third party M—BE=ZFTRNER = (70,000)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EEM B A A = (96,418)
Increase in an investment in an associate & ANFA — B &N TR E (193,445) (4,000)
Acquisition of interests in a joint venture  WEER —I4& L2 a0 (2,000) (1,000)
Proceeds from partial disposal of HE L QRS ok
shares in an associate FriSsRIE = 1,400,000
Dividend paid by subsidiaries to ihy=UNSIEEE2 i e
non-controlling shareholders AR (111,828) (73,501)
Dividend received from an associate KE — LR ERI R R 5,569 7,938
Dividend income from equity investments K BIsE AU AR BESTER
designated at fair value through other E2FET AR
comprehensive income B IR AR B 36,362 -
Dividend income from available-for-sale & @ A] {f H & 25 A 1) 12
equity investments AR B A = 40,081
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank BIRIRIRI T
deposits WA (1) 108,374 (164,294)
Net cash flows from investing activities & EEELENIR S R EFHE 275,802 (347,210)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RS
wh 3 EE! 37 J)ILER
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 128318 ILFE

2017
20174
Note RMB’000
BifEE ARET T
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ARBETBNRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans and other borrowings FTISRITER N E A E T 8,032,128 12,404,089
Repayment of bank loans EBIRTTER (9,531,097)  (11,828,996)
Interest paid EASFLE (1,214,756) (1,189,423)
Loans from a fellow subsidiary KE—RBARWBRARKNER 429,139 232,328
Repayment of loans from fellow EBE-—RXEARMBRRINER
subsidiaries (609,640) (1,081,252)
Purchase of non-controlling interests EE IR R R (119,922) -
Final dividend paid B REAR S (177,548) (13,341)
Net cash flows used in financing ARBEESNIREREF5E
activities (3,191,696) (1,476,595)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH HRE&RBRSZEYEINEE
EQUIVALENTS 1,979,432 254,413
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERSEHHNTE T
changes, net (131,304) 74,790
Cash and cash equivalents at FUReMRSEED
beginning of year 1,456,783 1,127,580
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERBEREASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 3,304,911 1,456,783
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERBEEEMEHRIM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHERER 31 3,304,911 1,456,783
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RensRMIRS R
in the statement of cash flows REeEEY 3,304,911 1,456,783
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Maoye International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 8 August 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised). The Company’s registered office
address has been changed to P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, Ky1-1205
Cayman Islands with effect from 1 October 2016 and the head
office and principal place of business of the Company is located at
38/F, World Finance Centre, 4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the operation and management of department stores
and property development in Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company are Maoye
Department Store Investment Limited and MOY International
Holdings Limited, respectively, which were incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

RAREEER

REBBRIERAR AR ARAQT ])K2007
F8H8HEMEMHERIBEFRSHE AN
FRENRE(19B1FEIFIER - UK
A RIEE] B BE) ML AER R
REMLAR o NARK MM EE D
% ¥ & P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road,
Grand Cayman, Ky1-1205 Cayman
Islands * E20165F 1081 B4R - A
REVRHEE R T2 E BRI A EE
ARAFNE ([ Bl ) RYIRF R 5400355
HREFPO3I8E - KRFIREMEAF
(i AEE ) ETERFRIAERSERE
SR R B IR B R TS o

BEERR - ARANEEERA RAIMERL
ERABDRIRK LN EBER RS
#) Maoye Department Store Investment
Limited &1 MOQY International Holdings
Limited

TRMEARNER
ARABEEMBATNFBWT

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and Percentage
registration and paid-up share/  of equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
AL EREHR BRITRAR LN
DRER AHRERBE ROEE ERELR EiERER DL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E 553
% %
Maoye Department Store Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$2/US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
KETEERARLA 11 September 2007 2%7T,/50,000% 7T B
RBAARES
200759A 118
Maoye Department Stores (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Maoye China’) 7 December 1993 100,000 7T REER
KERE(TE)ARAR((REVE]) 3
1993 12A7H
Zhongzhao Commercial Market PRC/Mainland China HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ** 18 June 2004 1,000,000/ REER
mkERTHRE (R BRAR /B AR
200456A 188
Zhongzhao Investment Management PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Co,, Lid. (“Zhongzhao’) ** 28 October 1997 AR 50,000,0007C RARR
PREERERAR(HE]) e/ EIARE
19976107 28R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 o B =

31 December 2018
2018412A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. NAIER&EBER @
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EREHMBATNER (#)

AREEEMBEARNFENT : (B)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and Percentage
registration and paid-up share/  of equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
ML Eb SR ERTRME b
NAER AMREXBE ROEE/ EREER EihRREA L TEED
Direct Indirect
E¥ f
% %
Dahua Investment (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100/HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
RERE(PE)ARRA %8 glay 2008 10077T,/10,000 7T RERR
/
2008554286
Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China US$320,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(“Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha’) ** 31 January 1996 320,000,000 7T operation of department
AEEEERRLA(RYIKFEE])" e/ B stores
1996414318 REZERREERE
Shenzhen Maoye Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 82.38  Operation of a department
Shennan Co., Ltd. ** 20 April 2000 AR1,000,0007 store
AIFXEBEEREERAT" /B geEE
2000F4 A20H
Shenzhen Department Store Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB536,869,782 - 82.38  Operation of a department
REREBERRRE" 20 April 2000 ANEH536,869,7827C store
/B ARE BRREE
200064 A20H
Shenzhen Maoye Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 82.38  Operation of a department
Huagiangbei Co., Ltd. ** 31 March 2003 AR1,000,0007 store
RMEKRBEERIBRAF el EIARE GeRER
2003F3H31H
Shenzhen Maoye Oriental Times PRC/Mainland China RMB1,200,000 - 82.38  Qperation of a department
Department Store Co., Ltd. ** 8 August 2005 AK#1,200,0007T store
AITEERARRAEERA A e/ B B2EEE
200558 A8H
Zhuhai City Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd.**  PRC/Mainland China RMB4,800,000 - 82.38  Operation of a department
KETXERERRAA" 24 August 2001 AE#4,800,0007C store
/B BEBEE
2001587246
Shenzhen Maoye Internet Financial PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Senvice Co., Lid. ** 27 October 2015 AR10,000,00070 REER
AIXRERBERREERA A /B AR
20155104278
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M =

31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARREEER &)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERNBATMNER (#|)

AREEEZMBEARNFTWT : (B)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and Percentage
registration and paid-up share/  of equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
HMARL St SR ERTRERE VN
DRER REREREE ROEE/ ZRER BiEEERDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# ik
% %
Chongging Maoye Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 82.38  Operation of a department
Co., Lid. ** 27 August 2004 AR%30,000,0007T store
EEXFRSRRAA" el EIARE BEREE
200458A27H
Taiyuan Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,005,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
ARKXEEEBRAG 11 April 2008 AKH1,005,000,0007 store
/B AR S
200854A118
Chongging Buy First Business Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB102,481,500 - 82.38  Operation of a supermarket
BRRREHEARAA 16 September 2008 ARE102,481,5007C g2
e/ EARE
2008597 16H
Shenzhen Maoye Tiandi Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB208,320,000 - 100 Investment holding
Consultant Co., Ltd. ** 18 August 2008 AR %208,320,0007 RERR
AXERREBRBRAD A E/REAR
200858 18H
Shenzhen Maoye Commercial Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB208,320,000 - 100 Investment holding
Consultant Co., Ltd. ** 18 August 2008 ARH208,320,0007C RERR
AIXEBRREBRRERA A el EIARE
200858 18H
Shanxi Maoye Land and Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ** 18 November 2008 AR#100,000,0007 EHERE
WAXKESHEHEREERAT E/REARE
2008F11718H
Changzhou Maoye Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
Co., Lid. ** 21 May 2009 AR5,000,0007 store
ENEERERRAT" el EIARE BEREE
200955A218
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2018
2018412A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

DA REEER #)

BHEKELRNER (E)
AREEEMBEARNFENT : (B)

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and Percentage
registration and paid-up share/  of equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
ML Eb SR ERTRME A
NEER ABREFLH ROEE/ ZRER BitEERL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E¥ B
% %
Shenyang Maoye Times Property Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 100 Property development
TELERREZERAE 24 September 2007 ARE8,000,0007 EHELE
e/ REAR
2007F9H24H
Shenzhen Municipal Maoye PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 100  Provision of advertising
Advertisement Co., Ltd. ** 25 December 2002 AR2,000,0007 services
AYMEEESERAR hE/REAR REES R
2002912250
Taizhou First Department Store Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB 18,950,000 - 80.16  Operation of a department
ME-BEBERRAA 20 May 1994 AR#18,950,0007C store
el /B LeEE
199445 4200
Wusxi Yibai Property Limited ** PRC/Mainland China RMB202,500,000 - 90  Property development
BHEAERERDA 15 April 2008 AR #202,500,0007 FHELR
e/ B
20084 A15H
Shenyang Maoye Department PRC/Mainland China RMB155,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
Store Co., Ltd. ** 13 May 2010 AR 155,000,007 store
HEXEREERAF E/REAE GERER
2010654138
Jinzhou Maoye Property Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China HK$193,000,000 - 100  Property development
BHREERERLOA 9 July 2010 193,000,000/ BHEYR
e/ HEIARE
201057 A9A
Baoding Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. ™ PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
REKEREBRLA" 20 September 2010 AR5 000,0007 store
e/ REAR HEEEE
2010695208
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M =

31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ATk&EBEER@H)
(continued)
ERAME R RNER (8)
ARG EFEMBRBNFENT : (B&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and Percentage
registration and paid-up share/  of equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
HMARL St SR ERTRERE N
DRER REREREE ROEE/ ZRELR EiERERDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# Ef
% %
Huaian Maoye Property Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB206,000,000 - 100 Property development
AL REEEBRLA 30 September 2010 AEH206,000,0007T EHELE
hE/hE AR
2010569A308
Shandong Zibo Maoye Department Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB143,887,180 - 80  Operation of a department
WREEBTREBERNERAR 7 January 1999 AR#143,887,1807 store
/BB S
19991 A7H
Baoding Maoye Land and Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (Formerly 18 December 2006 AKH50,000,0007T FEHEEER
Baoding Lingchuang Land and Real W /B KR
Estate Development Co., Ltd.) 2006127184
(“Baoding Lingchuang’) **
REXERUEREERAR
Chengdu Chengshang Industrial PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 - 82.38  Investment holding
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. ** 12 July 2005 ARH#5,000,0007T REER
RANEER(ER)BRAF /BB
20055 7R 128
Linyi Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
ErkERERRAT 3 November 2010 AK5,000,0007 store
el EARE L
2010511 A3A
Taizhou Maoye Property Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China HK$1,124,800,000 - 100 Property development
FMEZEZBRRA 8 November 2010 1,124,800,0007 70 FHEER
el EIARE
2010%11 A8H
Hong Kong Maoye Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB64,643,046 - 70 Operation of a department
(Yangzhou) Co., Ltd. ™* 16 May 1996 AE™64,643,0467C store
BAKRAR(BN)BRAR" E/REAR BEEEE
199645 7168
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 o B =

31 December 2018
2018412A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. NAIER&EBER @
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EREHMBATNER (#)

AREEEMBEARNFENT : (B)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and Percentage
registration and paid-up share/  of equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
ML Eb SR ERTRME A
NEER ABREFLH ROEE/ ZRER BitEERL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
% %
Zibo Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB81,800,000 - 80  Operation of department
SEREREER AR 25 June 1994 AR 81,800,000 stores and supermarket
E /B KR chain stores
1994568258 BERGERERED
Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,731,982,546 - 82.38  Investment holding and
(“Maoye Commercial’) * 31 December 1993 ARH1731,982,5467C operation of department
KEBERHBERAR((BEHE)) E /B KR stores
1993F12A31A REBRREERER
Chengdu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB48,000,000 - 80.66  Investment holding
RBXEEEERAA 18 March 1998 AR 48,000,007 RERER
hE/ REAR
19983 718H
Chengshang Group Nanchong Maoye PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 82.38  Operation of a department
Co., Ltd. ("Nanchong Maoye") ** 20 November 2001 AR #20,000,0007T store
REEEHAXERSERAR((MARE) B/ HEAE GEBER
200111 /208
Nanchong Zefu Trade Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB21,500,000 - 82.38  Qperation of a department
HREEEERRAA 5 November 2014 AR21,500,0007 store
E/REARE BEBER
201411458
Nanchong Zhimei Trade Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB3,800,000 - 82.38  Operation of a department
HRTEBERRAA 17 November 2014 AR3,800,0007C store
el HEIARE GeEER
20145118178
Chengshang Group Holdings Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,378,417,349 - 82.38  Property leasing
RESEZRERA R 9 March 1998 ARH1,378,417,349TC ESi
e/ REAR
19983498
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M =

31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

RNAREEER (#)

BEKELTNER (E)
AREEEZMBEARNFTWT : (B)

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and Percentage
registration and paid-up share/  of equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
HMARL St SR ERTRERE VN
DRER REREREE ROEE/ EREER EiEREA DL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# 5E3
% %
Leshan E'mei Shan Chengshang PRC/Mainland China RMB33,730,000 - 65.90  Operation of a hotel and
Phoenix Co., Ltd. ** 11 March 1997 AR%33,730,0007C provision of ancillary
2|\ mRELRSERERERERAR E/REARE services
199743A 118 REmEIRERERS
Chengdu People’s Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 82.38  Operation of a department
(Group) Mianyang Co., Ltd. ** 13 September 2007 AR5,000,0007C store
RHBARES (RE) BHEERAR e/ REAR S
200749A 138
Chengshang Group Chengdu People’s PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 82.38  Investment holding and
Department Store Co., Ltd. ** 21 August 2009 AR#20,000,0007T operation of department
REEERBARBZERA A HE /B KR stores
200987218 REERREERE
Chengdu Maoye Estate Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 82.38  Property development
AR ERERRRA 15 July 2008 AR8,000,0007T BHEYR
el EARE
20085 7A 158
Heze Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 7414 Operation of a department
SERFEEERAA 29 December 2008 AR 5,000,000 store
el EIARE BEEEE
2008F12A29H
Jiangsu Maoye Department Stores ** PRC/Mainland China RMB325,000,000 - 100  Property development
THXEBERRAA 9 May 2012 AR#325,000,0007C FHEER
e/ EIARE
201265A98
Baotou Maoye Dongzheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ** 26 October 2011 AE10,000,0007 EHERE
BENKER[EHEREBRAR™ hE /AR
20115104268
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 o B =

31 December 2018
2018412A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. NAIER&EBER @
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EREHMBATNER (#)

AREEEMBEARNFENT : (B)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and Percentage
registration and paid-up share/  of equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
ML Eb SR ERTRME A
NAER AMREXBE ROEE/ EREER EihRRA L TEED
Direct Indirect
E¥ i
% %
Laiwu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
REREERRRDA 25 December 2012 ARH20,000,00070 store
/B AR BEREE
20126124258
Shenzhen Maoye Investment Holdings PRC/Mainland China RMB545,465,800 - 100 Investment holding
Co., Ltd.* 24 August 2012 AR 545,465,8007C REER
MK ERERRARAE™ /B ARE
20126824H
Shenyang Anli Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB133,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
("Shenyang Anli") ** 4 August 2005 AK133,000,0007C property management
BERUBRELAREALAR((ERRYL)) B/ HEAE REBERRDEER
200558 /4H
Maoye Hotel Shenyang ** PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 99  Hotel business
BRXEREERA 30 August 2007 ARH10,000,0007T e
e/ B
20078308
Liaoning Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB78,000,000 - 99.94  Investment holding and
(’Liaoning Logistics”) ** 12 May 2003 AR78,000,0007C property development
RENRARAR ((EEMR)) e/ ERE RELRREHESRR
2003F5H 128
Shenyang Zhanye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB245,000,000 - 50.94  Property development
("Zhanye”) ** 2 September 1999 AR 245,000,007 FHELE
BERFEHARAA(RR]) e/ HEIARE
199959 H2H
Shandong Weizhou Property Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100  Property development
WRENERBRAR 11 August 2009 AR50,000,0007C FHEER
/B AR
2009F8H11H
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31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARREEER &)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERNBATMNER (#|)

AREEEZMBEARNFTWT : (B)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and Percentage
registration and paid-up share/  of equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
HMARL St SR ERTRERE VN
DRER REREREE ROEE/ ZRER BiEEERDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# ik
% %
Qinhuangdao Maoye Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ** 4 January 2012 A H5,000,0007 BHERR
REBRERMEREERAR" el EIARE
201261R48
Qinghuangdao Maoye Property Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 82.38  Property development
REBREEEFHEREARAR 19 May 2016 AR8,000,0007T BHEXR
e/ REAR
2016554198
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB135,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd, ** 8 August 2000 AR#135,000,0007 FEHEER
REEMeRENEREERA e/ REAR
200058 A8H
Zibo Maoye Property Co., Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100 Property development
HEREEXRRAA" 29 November 2013 AE20,000,0007 FHERR
el EIARE
2013511A29H
Qinhuangdao Maoye Holdings Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB886,517,865 - 100 Operation of a department
(‘Maoye Holdings”) ** 4 August 2008 AR886,517,8657C store
REBKFBRERAA(KELR]) " el EIARE BEEEE
200858A4H
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Housing PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property leasing
Decoration Market Co., Ltd. ** 20 November 2003 AR1,000,0007C NERE
RERERRERHWABRAF e/ EIARE
2003F 1174200
Qinhuangdao Maoye Department PRC/Mainland China RMB342,301,588 - 100 Operation of a supermarket
Store Co., Ltd. ** 26 June 2001 AREH342,301,5887 S
REBKXBSRRAA" el EIARE
200156A26H
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. NAIER&EBER @
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EREHMBATNER (#)

AREEEMBEARNFENT : (B)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and Percentage
registration and paid-up share/  of equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
ML Eb SR ERTRME A
NEER ABREFLH ROEE/ ZRER BitEERL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E¥ B
% %
Qinhuangdao Hualian Jinyuan Property PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Property leasing
Management Co., Ltd. ** 26 June 2001 AE5,000,0007 NERE
REBKENERBARAT e/ REAR
2001567268
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Property PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000,000 - 100  Property management
Service Co., Ltd. ** 14 April 2001 AK140,000,0007C NEER
REBMERAFERAREELA" hE/REAR
2001547148
Anhui Guorun Investment and PRC/Mainland China RMB294,330,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Development Co., Ltd. ** 4 October 1998 AR294,330,0007C property development
ZRERRERRARAT hE/ REAR REERREHEER
199810 A4H
Chuzhou Maoye Investment and PRC/Mainland China RMB70,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ** 25 April 2003 ARE70,000,0007T FHEEE
INEERERRARAT" E/ HEAR
20034 A25H
Wuhu Guorun Investment and PRC/Mainland China RMB110,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ** 16 May 2002 AR%110,000,0007T BHEER
EHERREERARAA™ E/REARE
200245H16H
Huainan Maoye Investment and PRC/Mainland China RMB31,600,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ** 26 March 2002 AR#31,600,0007C FHELE
ERXEREERARAA" e/ HEIARE
200243 426H
Chengdu Renhe Spring Department PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000 - 82.38  Qperation of a department
Store Co., Ltd. ** 29 October 1997 AR 40,000,000 store
KEATCRERREERAR" e/ REAR HEEEE
19974 10A29H
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31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

RNAREEER (#)

BEKELTNER (E)
AREEEZMBEARNFTWT : (B)

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and Percentage
registration and paid-up share/  of equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
HMARL St SR ERTRERE VN
DRER REREREE ROEE/ ZRER BiEEERDL IEED
Direct Indirect
E# ik
% %
Chengdu Qingyang District Renhe PRC/Mainland China RMB185,000,000 - 82.38  Operation of a department
Chuntian Department Store Limited ** 29 November 2007 AR #185,000,0007 store
RATEFRCNERAEBRAT" el EIARE BEREE
2007117290
Inner Mongolia Victory Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB170,000,000 - 57.67  Investment holding
(Group) Management Co., Limited ** 16 June 2002 AR170,000,0007C and operation of a
NEL&SHEEEE (/) BRAR™ FE /B department store
20026168 REZBRREERER
Inner Mongolia Victory Xincheng PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000,000 - 57.67  Operation of a department
Commercial Management Co., Limited ** 15 January 2008 ARE#140,000,0007T store
NELESTAERERBRA A e/ REAR D
2008F1 A15H
Inner Mongolia Jinweili Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 57.67  Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited ** 24 March 2015 AR#10,000,0007 store
REDERTBEERERAR e/ REAR BEEEE
201553A248
Baotou Victory Mall Co., Limited ** PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 57.67  Operation of a department
BEMESHBEARAR" 14 April 2009 AR10,000,0007 store
E/REAR BEEEE
200954 H148
Inner Mongolia Victory Supermarket Chain PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 57.67  Operation of a supermarket
Co., Limited ** 6 March 2003 AR20,000,0007C Kewm
REGESFIBTEEFRA A el EIARE
20035 3A6H
Baotou Victory Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 57.67  Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited ** 28 October 2013 AR3,000,0007 store
BETGSNERERBRAF el EIARE BEREE
2013F10A28H
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

DA REEER #)

BRME X RNER )
AREEEMBEARNFENT : (B)

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and Percentage
registration and paid-up share/  of equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
HMAYL/ EMe SR ERTRAR N
NEER ABREFLH ROEE/ ZRER BitEERL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
% %
Baotou Victory Supermarket Chain PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 57.67  Operation of a supermarket
Co., Limited ** 30 December 2013 ARH500,0007 mewm
BENESNBETERHERAR" E/ REAR
2013F12A30A
Hohhot Victory Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 57.67  Property development
Development Co., Limited ** 29 November 2001 AR30,000,0007C BERR
WHESTRZTIEERERRAR E/ REARE
2001114290
Hohhot Victory Property Management LLC ** PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 57.67  Property leasing
WAERTAS NN ERBEEREERA 25 January 2008 AR#500,0007 NEHE
hE/ HEAR
200841 A425H
Baotou Victory Property PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 57.67  Property management
Management Co., Limited 21 May 2014 AR%1,000,0007T NEER
BETESHNEERBRAF e/ REAR
2014454210
Maoye Data Intelligence Information PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 98  Investment holding
Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Limited ** 23 January 2017 AR10,000,0007T REER
KEBEMARERRM(RI)BRAF E/REAR
2017517230
Shenzhen Maoye Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 82.38  Investment holding
Factoring Co., Limited ** 17 December 2017 AR5,000,0007 REBR
MK EEEREARAF E/ REAR
20175128178
* A subsidiary with its A shares listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in the * —RAREFRR ESESR S ETRNE
PRC AR
** Companies registered as limited liability companies under PRC law o REBEREVEEEMAEREEARINAR

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which comprise standards and interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and
International Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations
Committee Interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”), equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“‘RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB6,436,225,000. The Group’s ability to repay its
debts when they fall due relies heavily on its future operating cash
flow and its ability to renew the bank loans and other borrowings.
The directors have carefully assessed the Group’s liquidity position
having taken into account:

(1) the Group’s expected cash inflows from operating activities in
2019;

(2) the directors of the Company are also confident that bank
borrowings, which will expire during the next 12 months,
could be renewed upon expiration based on the Group’s past
experience and credit standing;

(3) the unutilized credit facility of the Group amounted to
RMB1,410,000,000 as at 31 December 2018; and

(4) subsequent to 31 December 2018, the Group has obtained
new banking facilities with an aggregate amount of
RMB200,000,000 with maturity of one year.

The directors of the Company believe that the Group has adequate
resources to continue operation for the foreseeable future of not
less than 12 months from the end of the reporting period. The
directors of the Company therefore are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2.1 mBEEE ()

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognizes (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers
Transfers of Investment Property

Amendments to IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 40

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Annual Improvements Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28

2014-2016 Cycle
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Except for the amendments to IFRS 4 and Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of the
Group’s financial statements, The nature and the impact of the new
and revised IFRSs are described below:

(a)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

Amendments to IFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects
of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet an employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment; and
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of
a share-based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify
that the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments. The
amendments introduce an exception so that a share-based
payment transaction with net share settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction when certain conditions are
met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction
are modified, with the result that it becomes an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction, the transaction is
accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the date
of the modification. The amendments have had no impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group as the
Group does not have any cash-settled share-based payment
transactions and has no share-based payment transactions
with net settlement features for withholding tax.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces |AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments:
classification and measurement, and impairment.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 prospectively, and has
recognised the transition adjustments against the applicable
opening balances in equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the
comparative information was not restated and continues to be
reported under IAS 39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of adopting IFRS
9 on the statement of financial position, including the effect of
replacing IAS 39’s incurred credit loss calculations with IFRS
9’'s expected credit losses (‘ECLSs”).
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31 December 2018
2018%12H31H

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 222:BENEBLIEE @)
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (continued) (b) (&)
Classification and measurement (continued) DR E ()
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under IAS 39 201851 A1 B IRIEER 25 2R 5
and the balances reported under IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is 3955 &Y B T B B AR 5 B PR B 7 sl 5
as follows: BIZE o5k E A A ER KRR A -
1AS 39 IFRS 9
measurement measurement
L -Rp R ] ERHBREEAHINHE
Re-
Category Amount  classification ECL Amount Category
B Ea ENPE REEERE k2 B
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
iR ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR
Financial assets SREE
Equity investments designated atfair &2 LA EEGHEE NAZRER - 2187462 - 2187482 Fvoct!
value through other comprehensive  EEE AZ 2 ENED
income B
\ From: Available-for-sale investments /1 : AEHERE (i) - 2,187 462 -
Available-for-sale investments ARIERE AFS 2937478 (2,937478) - NA%EH
To: Equity investments designated 2 : EEANALBE ) (2,187 462) -
at fair value through other SEREREI AR
comprehensive income BiER
To: Financial assets at fair value 2 s EEHER (i) (750,016) -
through profit or loss ARUH\BRNEBEE
Trade receivables [EWESZE (iil L8R 7991 - (1,636) 6,355 AC
Financial assets included in SHABME L&R 3,209,654 - (31,039) 3178615 AC
prepayments, EEiEER
oher recelvables and other assets  EHAENSBAE
Financial assets at fair value through L% BEHEEEEE FVPLE 750,016 750,016 FVPL
profit or loss HAERNEBAE
\ From: Available-for-sale investments & @ A HERE (i) 750,016
Pledged deposits BERER L&R 298522 - - 298522 AC
Cash and cash equivalents BeRELEEN L&R 1,686,034 - - 1,686,034 AC
Total assets BEE 47831805 - (32,675) 47,799,130
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and hills payables ENESTEREE ACE 2953491 - - 293401 AC
Financial liabilties included inother 3t AEMEFVAREHBR AC 7,583,674 - - 7,583,674 AC
payables and accruals oEaE
Interest-hearing bank and HERTERR AC 19,739,023 - - 19,739,023 AC
other borrowings EfbfEs
Total liabilties BELE 31,625,148 - - 31,625,148
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (continued)

1 FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

2 AFS: Available-for-sale investments

3 L&R: Loans and receivables

4 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost

228 RSB R IKE )

(b) (&)
T FVOCI: MARBEEEEZHA

Hi2mRaENemEE

2 AFS: A[EHERE

3 L&R: B M EWGIE

¢ AC IR AT ENSREER SR

BfE
5 FVPL: Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit 5 FVPL: LAAREEFEEEZEHTAE
or loss mMEeREENESHAE
Notes: MHE -

(i) The Group has elected the option to irrevocably designate certain
of its previous available-for-sale equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

(i)  The Group has classified its unlisted investments previously classified
as available-for-sale investments as financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss as these non-equity investments did not
pass the contractual cash flow characteristics test in IFRS 9.

(i) The gross carrying amounts of the trade receivables under the
column “IAS 39 measurement — Amount” represent the amounts after
adjustments for the adoption of IFRS 15 but before the measurement
of ECLs.

Impairment

The following table reconciles the aggregate opening
impairment allowances under IAS 39 to the ECL allowances
under IFRS 9. Further details are disclosed in notes 29, 30 and
33 to the financial statements.

(i) AEEEERTABMEMMETSE TRE
AHHEESRARIEERNAAEE
AAEAEREHHARMEE RENER
RE -

(i) ARZEFERREREBBERSG
BEFEAFIRNENRDRERF LR
A MAKERELEN S BERARHEE
BRENRETRESER/AARBEER
EREZHFABRNSREE

(i) [EFREEERFE39RTE -] —18
THIEWRE 57BN REFEER AR
R B 7 o 5 AR R S 1SR EF TR LA R
FTEEAEEEIBAINESE -

JR1E

TRABBEBBR R399/
T ) (B 1 45 48 RE EAR 4R B B B S R
LEBFIOFM IR EEBERED
HEITHER o E— P BRI B HRERMN
5F29 « 30 33H#EE -

Impairment ECL

allowances allowances

under IAS 39 under IFRS 9

at 31 December Re- at 1 January

2017  measurement 2018

20184

H20175F 1818

12831H R BB B 7%

RBERET R

%R 55395 EOR T

HRERE EfittE GEBERE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETTT ARETT

Trade receivables EWE 5708 19,338 1,636 20,974

Financial assets included in STAFERFE -

prepayments, other Hoth e Ok IE &2

receivables and other assets HEMWEENEREE 17,561 31,039 48,600

36,899 32,675 69,574

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED &% BB IEAE B R A A



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M =

31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 223 BURmESE RIEE @)
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b) (continued)
Impact on reserves and retained profits
The impact of transition to IFRS 9 on reserves and retained

(b) (&)
HiFmE REFENZE
HABEIRMBEREERFOR L iR

profits is as follows:

MBFANOZENT

Reserves
and retained
profits
RER
BEFEEF
RMB’000
AREFT
Asset revaluation reserve under IFRS 9 BB EREEUNFIRNEE
(including available-for-sale investment EfLEE(EEREERETTER
revaluation reserve under IAS 39) FEIFM A HHERE S A RE)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 RIE B 25 R £ 395%
R2017F 12 A31 BRI & 2,470,908
Remeasurement of equity investments Bt ERERURAARBEER
designated at fair value through other HEB AR EmmmERIE
comprehensive income previously (L RiBIE R R 2 5+ XERI 53955
measured at cost under IAS 39 RKAETE) 67,064
Deferred tax in relation to the above B LR RERIR (16,766)
Non-controlling interests in relation to the above B L R R R IR S R R R A (20,200)
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 RIBBIFR B 75 R &5 2ERIZE 955
F20184F 1 5 1 H A4 84 2,501,006
Retained profits BIEEF
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under I1AS 39 R 283958
72017612 431 BEV 4584 5,941,344
Recognition of expected credit losses AR I B PR B 745 R A5 2 BI| S5 9SR FERR
for trade receivables under IFRS 9 R E 5 IR TR EME BB 18 (1,636)
Recognition of expected credit losses AR5 B PR B 745 R 5 2 B S5 O SR AERR
for other receivables under IFRS 9 H b W R IE R TR ER(E B B 18 (31,039)
Deferred tax in relation to the above B L aiaRER A 8,169
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 RIBBIFR B 75 R & ¥ERIZE 955
7201841 5 1 HEYAEER 5,916,838

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % B IZR B R A )
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22&:tBRMEE NINE @)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) IFRS 15 and its amendments replace IAS 11 Construction (c) EURRBFRs3REAERIFE155% REERT AR

Contracts, 1AS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and
it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. IFRS 15 establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account
balances between periods and key judgements and estimates.
The disclosures are included in notes 3 and 5 to the financial
statements. As a result of the application of IFRS 15, the Group
has changed the accounting policy with respect to revenue
recognition in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the
standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of
initial application or only to contracts that are not completed
at this date. The Group has elected to apply the standard to
contracts that are not completed as at 1 January 2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of IFRS 15
was recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits as at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the
comparative information was not restated and continues to be
reported under IAS 11, IAS 18 and related interpretations.

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 1 January 2018 as a
result of the adoption of IFRS 15:

BR TR ERFENRELS
#7 - B EHERIE 185U A M AR
e ARBRAIIMERI - HiEM
RIIBEP AN - BRI BHRE
BRIFE1GRET — B A SER - A
ARRERF &K - RIBEERY
BIREERNFE155 - WERRE
BEAMAEFPERERAREME
BB ET R - BRMBER
HEAFASSEANRAE A E MR
Yeas e it — B2 RSB IERITE © %
ERITRS| NEZHEM e 8RR
E o BRRARENDT BEED
BEEMEN BHNEERBEREA
SRR IR EE) - ARBEAHE
Kfbat - BRARBEER SR M B REK
FIE3 K5 o F i P BB B 7 3 o5
AIEE155% - NEE LI SRR T
AW A TER N ESHEUR -

AEEDEBFEALIBETOEMNEBEN
SRR BUPR B 75 sk A 2RI 155 © 1R
B A% AEBTHREXAERB
HARFT A A B % B M AR 5T
MEHEAZER - REEDHIERE
20181 A1 B BRI B LR
FARZ R o

B X R B B i R S ZE R S 1557 A
B EWHR AE2018F1A1HE
SRR « Bt @ BRI &
FY) - WERBREBRER 2 ERE 11
9% BIRR e £ERIF 185 AR AR
HEITIESR -

T X H RN B B 53R & RIS 15
SR¥20184F1 A1 B &AM kK IAE
SHENTE

Increase

&

Notes RMB’000

BfaE AREF T
Assets EE

Completed properties held for sale BEFECERYE (i) 29,772
Liabilities =V

Deposits received, accruals and other payables BWi%xs - EHERR
Hih eI (i) 29,772
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M =

31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(¢) (continued)

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 31 December 2018
and for the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of the
adoption of IFRS 15. The adoption of IFRS 15 has had no
impact on other comprehensive income or on the Group’s
operating, investing and financing cash flows. The first column
shows the amounts recorded under IFRS 15 and the second
column shows what the amounts would have been had IFRS
15 not been adopted:

22 RN BB R E @)

(c) (#&)
T SCET IR AN B PR B 7 R S 2RI B 15
FRE2018F 12 A31H RE £20184F
12A31HILFERIBYHBRKIEE S
BIER R E o FRINBIRR B Tg R & 2
B 1550 S W E it 2 RS sk AN
ErgeE REKRERSREEK
ML - 5 FERBIEBIBR B R
LREBIFISRIRSHEEE - MET
Bl 78~ BFR B T R 5 B R S5 1557 10 £

BEHEWHERTHEE
Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 HZE2018F 12 A31HIEFENLGE
December 2018: BmE
Amounts prepared under
REATERSHNESE
Previous Increase/
IFRS 15 IFRS (decrease)
T PR B 5 3 BENEIER &,
ZEH|ZE155% HIIEHREER (R 2)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT AR%¥TR
Revenue WA (i) 6,117,247 6,090,702 26,545
Cost of sales SHEA (i) (2,225,826) (2,199,281) (26,545)
Gross profit E7 3,891,421 3,891,421 -
Finance costs BhE AR (i) (1,010,188) (987,562) (22,626)
Profit before tax B F5 Al AR 2,024,851 2,047,477 (22,626)
Income tax expense FriSEiFx (897,630) (903,287) 5,657
Profit for the year IREFE 1,127,221 1,144,191 (16,970)
Attributable to: LA AL RS -
Owners of the parent SRRERFE A 799,403 816,373 (16,970)
Non-controlling interests FEIE A AR R M S 327,818 327,818 -
1,127,221 1,144,191 (16,970)
Earnings per share BARIE@ER
attributable to ordinary BH AWM
equity holders of the parent ~ GRZEF|
Basic HA RMB15.55 RMB15.55
cents cents
AR#¥1555%0 AR#¥15.55% =
Diluted e RMB15.55 RMB15.55
cents cents
ARK¥15.557 AK¥15.55% -

108 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED & 2 BB =R AR A A

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F /& 4



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2283 BEMNESEIRIFE @)
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) (continued) (c) (&)
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 20184 12 A 31 H M 4r & B 54K %
December 2018: =

Amounts prepared under
BB T ERSHNEEE
Previous Increase/
IFRS 15 IFRS (decrease)

BAFR I 55 R BIERIEIFR #m
ZRISE155E MR ELER (ED)
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTRT AR®TR

Properties under development 3R (i) 5,686,270 5,576,377 109,893
Deferred tax assets EEFIEEE (i) 587,436 581,780 5,656
Total assets BEE 6,273,706 6,158,157 115,549

Deposits received, accruals B Uigs - B EE

and other payables R E e /IR (i), (i) 8,455,686 8,323,167 132,519
Total liabilities BERRE 8,455,686 8,323,167 132,519
Net assets BEFE 15,294,886 15,311,856 (16,970)
Retained profits EIFEF (i), (iii) 11,784,317 11,801,287 (16,970)
Total equity MR 4BTE 15,294,886 15,311,856 (16,970)
The nature of the adjustments as at 1 January 2018 and the 2018 F1HA1HMARERMEE A LR
reasons for the significant changes in the statement of financial 2018F 12 A31 H B Ak W & M AL
position as at 31 December 2018 and the statement of profit Z2018F12A31B L FEMNEREK
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 are described HIRBESHNREZ O T -
below:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(¢) (continued)
(i) Accounting for sales of properties

In prior reporting periods, the Group accounted for
sales of properties when significant risk and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the customers on
delivery of a property in its entirety at a single time upon
vacant possession and not continuously as construction
progresses.

Under IFRS 15, the Group’s contracts with customers for
the sale of properties generally include one performance
obligation and the Group has concluded that revenue
from sales of properties should be recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery based on the contract
terms of existing sales contracts. Therefore, the adoption
of IFRS 15 did not have an impact on the timing of revenue
recognition.

In prior reporting periods, proceeds received from
customers for pre-sold properties were presented as
deferred revenue and no interest was accrued on the
advances received.

Under IFRS 15, for contracts where the period between
the payments by the customer differs from the transfer of
the promised goods or service, the transaction price and
the amount of revenue from the sales is adjusted for the
effects of a financing component, if significant. The Group
concluded that there is a significant financing component
considering the length of time between the customers’
payment and the transfer of properties to customers and
the prevailing interest rates in the market. The transaction
price is discounted to take into consideration the
significant financing component. The Group recognised
contract liabilities for the interest on the advances
received from customers with a significant financing
component. In addition, reclassifications have been made
from deferred revenue from the pre-sale of properties to
contract liabilities for the outstanding balance of advances
from customers.

The statement of financial position as at 1 January 2018
was restated, resulting in recognition of contract liabilities,
an increase in properties held for sale and a decrease
in deferred revenue from the pre-sale of properties
amounting to RMB1,280,812,000, RMB29,772,000 and
RMB1,251,040,000, respectively.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED f& 2B B2 G R A )

22 S BURNE B R I E (&)

(c) (&)
(i)

VEHEN G BIE
RBERSHE - FEARRRM
[B1 ¥R 1E 32 1< ¥ 5 P B R B0 15 TE
HENEREELE - AKER
MERHEETERTRIE - IR
B R ETT

IR BIPR B 75 S 22 Rl 52 1555
AREBERTPIMEHER L
BH—REFB-ABHRLT M
AEBEEGLAER  MEHSER
ANEREBEEZEHRERET PR
(BRI - WIHRERA
HEAKN A KR R -
It - BRANBIBR B 75 R 2RI ZE 15
SRR B A R R R E £ 7
@,

RBERESHE - stEEYES
BEPREGHNMERIEZISET
YA+ BRTUREA TR 48 FE S HE AR
FE o

R B B 75 5 RSB 1558
HRE PN HRAM R AN E
YRR E R PR TR AL
R HERLHE WA S EHRE
MEMAKI DT EETAE
(HER) - ZREN P NKER
EFPHEZEYE 2 HREFERE A
RHBHRITME  AEERS
ZEEHNFHEERREANK
n o XHERERBEAREH
PXEB D RREIR - AEEABE
REVEARE DB W EF P
MM SHERSHAE - 1o - B
EMEMBRLTEWAD HAREER
BRPBEREHRDEFTDRREN
afE-

2018F 1 A1HM P Bk R &
B DREHERENE
& AR #1,280,812,000 7T * #
ERECERMEEMARE
29,772,000t R TEEMEMISR
TR AR EE1,251,040,0007T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2018
2018412A31H

22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22&:tBRMEE NINE @)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(¢) (continued)

(ii) Consideration received from customers in advance

(c) (&)

Before the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group recognised
consideration received from customers in advance for
the sale of prepaid card as deferred revenue which is
included in deposit received, accruals and other payables
and accruals. Under IFRS 15, the amount is classified as
contract liabilities which are included in deposit received,
accruals and other payables.

Therefore, upon adoption of IFRS 15, the Group
reclassified RMB1,148,665,000 from deferred revenue to
contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018 in relation to the
consideration received from customers in advance as at 1

(i) FEREFCE

BR 4 [ R B 755 R 45 B R 55 15 5%
Al NEERSHE BN THTERK
BEPRERAELTWA - Wit A
BlIEE - BRTERANAREME
NHRALEER - RIZERE
BREERIESS - EECRE
DEREHAE - Wit AR
FERT & R N B AL e R

A b - BR 49 B BR B 7% 3k & 2E Al
F155: 1%  NEE B R 20184F
1TA1TEMEREFREARE
1,148,665,000 7T A & & W A =

January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, under IFRS 15, RMB1,306,714,000

FHMEA2018F1 A1ENAHNE

f& -

M2018F 12 H31H » R H

was reclassified from deferred revenue to contract liabilities BRI ISR S ERIE 155 @ $HE

in relation to the consideration received from customers in
advance for the sale of prepaid cards.

(i) Other adjustments

In addition to the adjustments described above, other
items of the primary financial statements such as tax and
finance costs were adjusted as necessary.

ENFONBEREFREARE
1,306,714,0007C & BIEL W A E
MoBEAEANEE

(iii) E A FHEE
B Eai ARSI AEBERS
FEBEBELRBEXNAEEBIE
MERMEAIER -

(d) Amendments to IAS 40 clarify when an entity should (d) EEREHERIR40% (BRI AV BRE

transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property. The
amendments state that a change in use occurs when the
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A
mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

BEKY X (BREZRERTYE)
BREIEHRQREMENRE © %
BRI ARSI - MEEFAXTENAE
BREVMENES - BAEEEHAE
HIR BB - ERGAERMEE
HEEREEEHMERZNERAZEFHT
RABHERGRARER - ZER]A
A 458 3 A 62 [ ) B IR 0 SR 3R B AR
2K

V=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(e) IFRIC 22 provides guidance on how to determine the date

of the transaction when applying IAS 21 to the situation
where an entity receives or pays advance consideration in
a foreign currency and recognises a non-monetary asset
or liability. The interpretation clarifies that the date of the
transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment)
or non-monetary liability (such as deferred income) arising
from the payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of
recognising the related item, the entity must determine the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. The interpretation has had no impact on the
Group’s financial statements as the Group’s accounting policy
for the determination of the exchange rate applied for initial
recognition of non-monetary assets or non-monetary liabilities is
consistent with the guidance provided in the interpretation.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

2ETHEMNEERINE @)

(e) BIRM B3RS

g8
HEA

E#%E@%E%ﬂ
SRIETEFA R &5 &R 2150 A
EE%M%MWW%&H%HRE&
BRIFEBEEERBENBATE
mx%E%MEtk#?l o g
BE REERSEREBEEE
M s A (SREFE S ) FTAmER
B XZABAERYTHEARRAS
U EFEMREMELNIFEEEE
E(FEM ) 3E gt a & (1

EEWRA) 2 B - HERA AR
L EFANFIRLTAWGRIA - BRERL
BENFIBRKEBEERHHH -

R S B TN ERIFEE LS
ESXFEB A B AEXNS R
REZRBEFRNES -2 MER
ﬁﬁﬁ%K%%Eﬁ%i&%?ﬁﬁZ%

g@ﬁiiﬁ%@@%ﬁﬁ

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business 2

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation 1

Amendments to

Sale or Contribution of Assets between

IFRS 10 and IAS 28

an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture 4

AR BN B R R TSI
518 R A SRR AT A1 3T IR B S
R

BRSHRSEAEN  EENEH
(B51%)

BEMEASAAROE  AGEENAY
(5T) 50
TRUBASNEY  AEERAEELT
REREHRAIERE  AAEAEIA
(B37%) HERIAEE

BRMBHREEAF 6 HE

IFRS 16 Leases '

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 3

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material 2
and IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

Settlement !

Amendments to IAS 28
IFRIC 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

FNE S R

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures 1

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS
12 and IAS 23"

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % B IZR B R A )

BRMEREREDE1TSE  RERAP
BRI E 1R EE TR
&’%@Eﬁ BI85
({BRIK)
B R R E 195 FTEIEET - R
(BETK) HE
B AR 085 REELFIRA &
({BRIK) PEARER
BREBRERERES  HEHEEY
F 235 TEE
S015FZ2017F AR BB BHEEL
FREN#E B35 EE
HEEAEI5

FNE S

B Ef) ‘
F12 KA
ERIZ235

#2019F 1 A1 H 32 & Fs e & E AR A2
7202051 A1H 5k 2 & s R FE HERE K
7202141 A1 B sk 2 B AAIFE B AR
SRR BEETE A TEA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create output.
A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove
the assessment of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the definition of
outputs to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of
a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

ﬁ@rﬁﬂiiﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ%iﬁ

|:|
B ERNARENZERRY RS
HRIHE—FERIAT

BB A RS B B3R (BT A ) BB ¥
%mm%&$ﬁﬁ@i%m$%%§°%
BRIAES  —HEAEHREERASE
DEF-ELHE—EAEE R AME
AHEHAIEREENERERTR -
FEeWRAE—EER AL RBEFEE
B2 BRRMIERT - KT
& - ZIEFABUEE IS HEERT A
EeE U BB 2T M B E A N E T TRAT
E Ak HEZNEDSEEN2RE8LE
BEMNEZBIZER LR AIE M6
IEREKRER o ZIEFTATMBE WA
T BEARFPRERHEMERIRE - &
BWASKIKRBHEEESHEMUA - 1t
G AR AR A BT M B BS B TE
ERBEANED - WIIABREEQAAE
BEEFAEAR A —HERBESH X
EERANBE—BEBETHENG - A&
BB ER I A 20204 1 B 1 B IR BIEEL A 3%
1BRTA ©

B B B s s 22 R 25 105% M BIRR @ 5+ 2R
%%%Uumn%ﬁlW%%ﬁiﬁw
1057 & BIBR 2 51 X BIZE 28 SR MY IR T R B2
ﬁ&é%ﬁﬁ%““T&A%ﬁ%ZWM
BELERTERFHNT U - ZFBE]
THEREELEBENRHEEDEY
MM EEHESTERBK— E%ﬁM-M
TEREREE - TR EENEER
: *%?¢%%%#&§%%%§%
R MEEUTHEREERZEE A F)K
BECENERABR - ZZFEBFIAERA
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31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 16, replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease,
a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property
in IAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment
to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability
and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees
will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the
lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all
leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. IFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures
than under IAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
The Group will adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group
plans to adopt the transitional provisions in IFRS 16 to recognise
the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and will
not restate the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply
the new requirements to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying IAS 17 and measure the lease liability at
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. The right-of-us asset will be measured at the amount
of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately before the date of initial
application. The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by
the standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12
months as of the date of initial application. During 2018, the Group
has performed a detailed assessment on the impact of adoption
of IFRS 16. The Group has estimated that right-of-use assets of
RMB2,811,870,000 and lease liabilities of RMB2,811,870,000 will
be recognised at 1 January 2019.
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of IFRS 9
only includes interests in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is applied and does not include long-term interests
that in substance form part of the net investment in the associate
or joint venture, to which the equity method has not been applied.
Therefore, an entity applies IFRS 9, rather than IAS 28, including
the impairment requirements under IFRS 9, in accounting for such
long-term interests. IAS 28 is then applied to the net investment,
which includes the long-term interests, only in the context of
recognising losses of an associate or joint venture and impairment
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments on 1 January 2019 and will
assess its business model for such long-term interests based on
the facts and circumstances that exist on 1 January 2019 using
the transitional requirements in the amendments. The Group also
intends to apply the relief from restating comparative information
for prior periods upon adoption of the amendments.

IFRIC 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current and
deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects
the application of IAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(ii) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes
in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of
hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application, without the restatement of comparative information.
The Group expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January
2019. The interpretation is not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest or generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate or
joint venture, the Group recognizes its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealized losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified

as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group. Liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
will be recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-
measured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognized for non-controlling interests, and any previously held
equity interests, over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other
items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognized in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment loss. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units
or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment
loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, FVPL and FVOCI
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset takes place either in the principal
market for the asset, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
value of an asset is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognized impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person (i) has control or joint control over the Group; (ii)
has significant influence over the Group; or (iii) is a member of
the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the Group (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same

third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost (or valuation) less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalized in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment
are dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the statement
of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to
the statement of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously
charged. An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to
retained profits is made for the difference between the depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained
profits as a movement in reserves.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

I3 - BE RRBURITE (80)

WEDREME - BFE RHBHEB MG
A {2 A 4 B PO LA B AR 3 1 EL PR AR 2 Rk
BEFESH - MLAMERNEERFTE
KT

Annual depreciation rate

FIER

Land and buildings + b & i&EF

Machinery and equipment #22 K 3% &5

Motor vehicles J5 &

Furniture, fittings and other equipment 5K B « 26 [z H Ath 3% &
Leasehold improvements 0 &4 2 5 1&

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period the asset is
derecognized is the difference between the net sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents properties under construction,
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

2.25%%9%
9% %219%
11.25% 2 19%
7.5%%19%
10%%220%
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or loss
in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in
use, and any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from inventories
to investment properties, any difference between the fair value
of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost, which include all
development expenditures, including land costs, interest charges
and other costs directly attributable to such properties.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the normal
operating cycle.

Properties under development are valued at the lower of cost and
net realizable value at the end of the reporting period and any
excess of cost over the net realizable value of an individual item of
properties under development is accounted for as a provision. Net
realizable value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business as determined by management with reference
to the prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected to
be incurred to completion and selling and marketing costs.
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POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortized. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease prepayments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements,
the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from 1
January 2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet the
definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, as described above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value profit or loss are also recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in cost of sales or other operating expenses for
receivables.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss in
other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable before 1
January 2018)” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has
the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future
or until maturity.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between the new
amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under IAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

— the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

— the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates, if and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not
reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognized in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and interest-bearing loans and
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under IFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets (policies under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)”;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognized as a liability in the statement of financial
position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible
bonds, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and
this amount is carried as a long term liability on the amortized
cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option
that is recognized and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option
is not re-measured in subsequent years. Transaction costs are
apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and equity components when the instruments are first
recognized.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under IFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under IFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of
merchandise is determined on the moving weighted average
method basis. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment
of the total land and buildings costs attributable to unsold
properties. Net realizable value is estimated by the directors based
on the prevailing market prices, on an individual property basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have
a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Coupon liabilities

Coupon liabilities are recognized based on the fair value of bonus
points or coupons granted to customers in accordance with the
announced bonus point scheme and the Group’s past experience
on the level of redemption of coupons and are recorded in other
payables. The revenue of the Group is deducted when the coupon
liabilities are recognized.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED f& 2B B2 G R A )

2.4 T ESEBERBE (@)

FE
FERFAEEMBANEY » WIKKAKA
g ] IR FE (ARIEE BE) R - B
A A B DIAE 1 AT & o n] B8 F(E
BT EBREZ T MNEERETFTELA
BRI AFTE -

Fi=3

BERSECERME
FAFECRTYRIEMAK A #R%E
(ABIEE BE)FIBR - KA AR EYEIE
B L R FRABER L PIETE © 7]
R FERESRRITNEAERENER
B -

RERBESEEY

AR RERMNS ReMReFE
YBFERE - AR IR RE NBERER
T - BEZHARGMENIGE B E
= AR AR REEIFR - WMEBEER
REENRITESANX  SAKEREE
BRI D EIEED

RAMIMAERME - ReRRSEFE
W EEM G ERFATFERS MIRTF

B
AN

B
FiBEEIAME LR T OEENHE
) ARl S A RFRNHERAET
BREM WA SEMEFTEENSES -
AR -

EUBRNTEBEAR  CRERNEES
BERRERMEHARUBETE TG AHDN
ARFIRE - B ERATELNCR
RIRER NS AGABERNBEN
AN o

RERMSEE

BE M5 AERREE AMED ZEF
gl TEPMED BEXBRSITMFOHR
RBEARASERE L RRS IR
REERRERR o WAt AR IR - AKE
B ARIR S ITNZ B BRI -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 €



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2018
2018412A31H

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24xXEE€:tHFEHME@@E)
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax g8t

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a) Direct sales of merchandise and sales of properties
Revenue from the direct sales of merchandise and sales of
properties is recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer.

(b) Commissions from concessionaire sales
Commissions from concessionaire sales are recognized upon
the sale of merchandise by the relevant concessionaires,
which is taken to be the point in time when the control of the
asset is transferred to the customer.

(c) Management fee income from the operation of department
stores is recognized when management services are
rendered.

(d) Administration and management fee income, promotion
income and credit card handling fees from suppliers and
concessionaires are recognized when services are rendered.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured, on the following bases:

(a) Commissions from concessionaire sales are recognized upon
the sale of merchandise by the relevant concessionaires.

(b) Direct sales of merchandise and sales of properties are
recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the merchandise or properties sold.

(c) Rental income is recognized on the time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

(d) Management fee income from the operation of department
stores is recognized when management services are
rendered.

(e) Administration and management fee income, promotion
income and credit card handling fees from suppliers and
concessionaires are recognized when services are rendered.

(f) Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

(g) Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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POLICIES (continued)

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received a consideration
(or an amount of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods
or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when
the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

Retirement benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are covered by government-regulated
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes under which
the employees are entitled to a monthly pension. The Group
contributes to these retirement benefit schemes on a monthly basis
at a percentage of the employees’ salaries. Under these schemes,
the Group has no legal obligation for retirement benefits beyond
the contributions made. Contributions to these schemes are
expensed as incurred.

Other employee benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Re-measurements arising from the defined benefit pension plan,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability)
are recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.
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POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Defined benefit plan (continued)
Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss at the earlier of:

e the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
e the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognizes the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
“employee expenses”, “other operating expenses” and “finance
costs” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

e service costs comprising current service costs and past
service costs

e gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements
e netinterest expense or income

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate of
7.05% has been applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24xXEE€:tHFEHME@@E)
POLICIES (continued)
Dividends BRE

Final dividends are recognized as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final
dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognized immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company and other investment holding subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands, the British Virgin Islands and
Hong Kong use the Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) as their functional
currency. The functional currency of the PRC subsidiaries is
RMB. As the Group mainly operates in Mainland China, RMB is
used as the presentation currency of the Group. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of subsidiaries outside Mainland China are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of subsidiaries outside
Mainland China which arise throughout the year are translated into
RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements:

e QOperating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out
on operating leases.

e (Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties
The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other assets used
in the department store operations. Some properties comprise
a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately or leased out separately under a
finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond
the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

e Usetul lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives are different to previously estimated,
or will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

e Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2018 was
RMB1,395,097,000 (31 December 2017: RMB1,409,574,000).
Further details are given in note 20.

e Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and other receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by
letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
other receivables (continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative
of customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and other
receivables is disclosed in note 29 and note 30 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of the cash flows.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued)

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31
December 2018 was RMB16,334,049,000 (31 December
2017: RMB12,890,379,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 18 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilized. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognized tax losses at 31 December 2018 was
RMB81,918,000 (31 December 2017: RMB89,086,000). The
amount of unrecognized tax losses at 31 December 2018 was
RMB1,972,479,000 (31 December 2017: RMB1,636,439,000).
Further details are contained in note 26 to the financial
statements.

Net realizable value of inventories and completed properties
held for sale

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling
expenses. Net realizable value of completed properties held
for sale is estimated by the directors based on the prevailing
market prices. These estimates are based on the current
market conditions and the historical experience of selling
merchandise of similar nature. It could change significantly as
a result of changes in customer taste or competitor actions.
The Group reassesses these estimates at the end of the
reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

Before 1 January 2018, the Group classified certain assets
as available for sale and recognized movements of their fair
values in equity. When the fair value declined, management
made assumptions about the decline in value to determine
whether there was an impairment that should be recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The carrying
amount of available-for-sale assets as at 31 December 2017
was RMB2,937,478,000.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based
on a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note
44 to the financial statements. The valuation requires the
Group to determine the comparable public companies
(peers) and select the price multiple. In addition, the Group
makes estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size
differences. The Group classifies the fair value of these
investments as Level 3. The fair value of the unlisted equity
investments at 31 December 2018 was RMB474,105,000
(2017: RMB694,307,000). Further details are included in note
25 to the financial statements.

Recognition of deferred tax liabilities for withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for withholding tax
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprise established in Mainland China.
Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax liabilities that can be recognized,
based upon the likely dividends declared. Further details are
contained in note 26 to the financial statements.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on the nature of their operations and their products
and services and has three reportable operating segments as
follows:

(a) the operation of department stores segment comprises
concessionaire sales, direct sales of merchandise and the
leasing out of commercial properties for the operation of
department stores by third parties;

(b) the property development segment is principally engaged
in the development and sale of commercial and residential
properties as well as the leasing out of commercial properties
other than for the operation of department stores; and

(c) the “others” segment comprises, principally, operations of
hotels, the provision of ancillary services, and the provision of
advertising services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss
attributable to owners of the parent.

Intersegment revenue and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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31 December 2018
2018512 H31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4. BE

5
D

EE R ()

Operation of Adjustments
department Property and
stores  development Others eliminations Total
REREE NERR Hft  ARREH @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TE  AR%Tr ARETn ARETz ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ2018F12A31ALEE
Segment revenue: AHBA
Sales to external customers HETINERP 4,820,945 1,115,408 180,894 - 6,117,247
Intersegment revenue DEERA - 6,864 - (6,864) -
Other income EflA 1,656,034 - 75,630 - 1,731,664
Cost of sales HERR (1,583,376) (624,431) (18,019) - (2,225,826)
Employee expenses BERY (501,199) (41,478) (65,419) - (608,096)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (643,714) (113,139) (44,579) - (801,432)
Operating lease rental expenses HERSRY (439,245) (1,137) (160) - (440,542)
Other operating expenses HipEEmT (1,098,249) (92,504) (81,895) 6,860  (1,265,784)
Other gains and losses Ltz REE 501,324 (1,052) (328) - 499,944
Operating profit BERE 2,712,520 248,531 46,124 - 3,007,175
Finance costs BERA (717,992) (292,196) - - (1,010,188)
Share of profits and losses of EiEBERTR
associates and a joint venture AEREER 29,082 (1,218) - - 27,864
Profit before tax BB 2,023,610 (44,883) 46,124 - 2,024,851
Income tax expense FrERiE% (689,908) (206,984) (738) - (897,630)
Profit/(loss) for the year REFE/ (BR) 1,333,702 (251,867) 45,386 - 1,127,221
Attributable to: AT ALZIEAGFE -
Owners of the parent SARIERFEA 973,586 (219,691) 45,508 - 799,403
Non-controlling interests FERRRER 360,116 (32,176) (122) - 327,818
1,333,702 (251,867) 45,386 - 1,127,221
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31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Operation of
department
stores
TEEERE
RMB’000
AEBFR
Other segment information: At HER
Impairment losses recognized in BRRTERNAESE
the statement of profit or loss 4,965
Reversal of impairment losses on YRR EEERE
accounts receivable (839)
Gain on deemed disposal of RIELE—FRE AT
shares in an associate alies (48,269)
Property, plant and equipment ER TG
impairment HRE 48,649
Goodwill impairment BERE 14417
Investments in associates N NG 2,129,808
Investment in a joint venture R-REELERE =
Capital expenditure* AREL 92,308

4. BETHER B

Property
development

LES
RMB'000

ARETR

1,703
1,490,326

Adjustments

and
Others eliminations Total
Hit  HEREH it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥Tr AR¥TxR

10,459
- - (839)
(48,269)

48,649
14,477
2,129,808
- - 1,703
1,583,054

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment,
prepaid land lease payments, investment properties, properties under
development, other intangible assets and completed properties held for

sale including assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, BEDFER @)
Operation of Adjustments
department Property and
stores  development Others  eliminations Total
BLR% NEER £t HEREH @z
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREFT ARETT ARETR  ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZ2017512A310LEE
Segment revenue: AHBA
Sales to external customers HETINPEP 4,632,329 936,685 187,625 - 5,756,639
Intersegment revenue DEERA - 7,153 - (7,153) -
Other income HiA 1,375,108 1,458 41,111 - 1,417,677
Cost of sales HEMA (1,551,098) (687,532) (17,240) - (2,255870)
Employee expenses BERY (505,780) (34,754) (55,352) - (595,886)
Depreciation and amortisation W& R (707,423) (143,949) (54,962) - (906,334)
Operating lease rental expenses TRy (422,344) (1,283) (410) - (424,037)
Other operating expenses HihiEemE Y (1,129,350) (142,020) (69,757) 7153 (1,333,974)
Other gains Eitlis 435,010 29,853 626,535 - 1,091,398
Operating profit/(loss) mEFE/(BE) 2,126,452 (34,389) 657,550 - 2,749,613
Finance costs BERK (635,340) (259,295) (29,981) - (924,616)
Share of profits and losses of EEBERTR
associates and a joint venture —HABLERR 27,707 (79) - - 27,628
Profit/(loss) before tax BRETHE /(58 1518819 (293,763) 627,569 - 18526%
Income tax expense FERm% (478,830) (106,985) 1,599 - (584,216)
Profit/(loss) for the year REFE/ (BB) 1,039,989 (400,748) 629,168 - 1,268,409
Attributable to: Dﬂ?/\ﬂﬁfﬁ IR -
Owners of the parent BRRERFEA 809,122 (366,828) 629,679 - 1,071,973
Non-controlling interests 3H R R R 230,867 (33,920) (511) - 196,436
1,039,989 (400,748) 629,168 - 1,268,409
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31 December 2018
2018%12H31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4. BRETHBER B

Operation of Adjustments
department Property and
stores  development Others  eliminations Total
LEREE NELE A PEREHS b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETr ARBTT ARETR
Other segment information: At HER
Impairment losses recognized in BRATEINAESE
the statement of profit or loss 11,600 - - - 11,600
Reversal of imparment losses on R EEEER
accounts receivable (1,221) - - - (1,221)
Gain on partial disposal of sharesin & ELFHA A
an associate iofhe - - (624,840) - (624,840)
Gain on disposal of equity investments ~ REAAA BEEAH
at fair value through profit or loss EH ABHN
EEREN G (89,605) - - - (89,605)
Gain on disposal of an avalable-for-sale & —TE A £ E#iEH
equity investment igflhes (312,441) - - - (312,441)
Goodwill impairment BERE 183,081 - - - 183,081
Investments in associates REERRRE 1839748 - - - 1839748
Capital expenditure* AR 214375 1,034,182 26,460 - 1215017

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment,
land lease prepayments, investment properties, properties under
development, other intangible assets and completed properties held for
sale including assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

The Group’s entire revenue is attributable to the market in Mainland
China. No analysis of geographical information is therefore
presented.

The Group has a large number of customers. However, no sales

to a single customer contributed 5% or more to the Group’s total
revenue.
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5. REVENUE 5.
2017
20174
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Revenue from contracts with customers B &KW
Commissions from concessionaire sales BHTEIBEHEERS 2,022,848 2,105,513
Direct sales BHiH 1,794,280 1,759,881
Sale of properties MEHE 1,001,608 871,873
Management fee income from KEAEENERE
the operation of department stores WA 755 2,002
Revenue from other source REHMERBERRA
Rental income from investment properties & Y%A S WA 412,928 306,488
Rental income from the leasing of LA ARES A
shop premises 710,026 566,498
Others Hith 174,802 144,384
6,117,247 5,756,639
Revenue from contracts with customers EZ2ESHWA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) HIFWAEH
The Group’s entire revenue of goods and services transferred is REBFRADERZNEY R REKA
recognized at a point in time. No analysis of timing information AE 2R A m25)F
is therefore presented. A ERDHT -
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised THRETTARESHY AL BELS
in the current reporting period that were included in the RNBE R ER B LS EAEZARN
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and RBEHANE R EESE
recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous
periods:
Revenue recognised that was included FFAmE YIS NEED

in contract liabilities at the beginning of BRI
the reporting period:
Sale of completed properties HECR I 1,828
1,828
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31 December 2018
2018%12H31H

5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(ii) Performance obligations

5. WA (#)

EFEHRA 8
(i) ERIELE

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Direct sales of merchandise and commissions from
concessionaire sales

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customers.

Sales of properties

For contracts entered into with customers on sales of
properties, the Group does not have an enforceable right
to payment prior to transfer of the relevant properties to
customers. Revenue from sales of properties is therefore
recognised at a point in time when the completed property is
transferred to customers, being at the point that the customer
obtains the control of the completed property and the Group
has the present right to payment and collection of the
consideration is probable.

The Group receives deposits from customers when they sign
the sale and purchase agreements. The Group considers
the advance payment contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method.

Management fee income

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when
management services are rendered.

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
December 2018 are as follows:

EAXREERBAOBETHERG M
T

EmEE ST EEREERE

BEELNRERERPR  BHOR
TERE—ESRIZNEMR -

MEIHE

HEEVMERTPIIUNAAMS
EEZEEEYETERPA - AEEY
B WCHR AN SR B0 AT o8 BT HE A -
bt HEMENRARBERIMES
ETEPHEEEER - AEPEE
B T ¥ aizEsiEm AR BB M
HRAH R 2 B2 BS54 61| 2 P] e M R (B A
Eitrﬁsﬁgﬁ °

AEBEREFPRERR MR REP
WERE - AEBRE - WA R
BERARERMEEE —FOPBEH
BB E RO - RIRIES OHERK
WABERERNELAENEGHE
R DNEY S FAST o

ERERA
BHOETNRHEEERERHD K

MR2018F 12 A3TBHDEZH TEA
ERCREREIIORER) R HE
3NN

Note
FaE
Within one year —F R 3,134,634
More than one year BiE—F 164,767
33(a) 3,299,401
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2018412 A31H

5. REVENUE (continued) 5.

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(ii) Performance obligations (continued)
Management fee income (continued)

The remaining performance obligations expected to be
recognised in more than one year relate to sales of properties
with a significant financing component that are to be satisfied
within two years. All the other remaining performance

WA (&)

EEAHWA (&)

(i) JERIE ()
EBBWAE)
BENBE —FRANGTENET
HEEEARMEID B ARMERNE
REEEMEERE - FTEEMBTE
HEETBHBER —FARER o AL

obligations are expected to be recognised within one year. BEMESET TSRS e 2L
The amounts disclosed above do not include variable 1B -
consideration which is constrained.
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HAug A
2017
20174
RMB’000
AREFIT
Income from suppliers and concessionaires 7 B 1 & i M 45 25 ERERI UL A
— Administration and management —fTHEREEERA
fee income 845,658 727,673
— Promotion income LN 545,359 443,116
— Credit card handling fees —(ERRFES 200,622 170,992
Interest income SN 64,395 33,327
Others Hith 75,630 42,569
1,731,664 1,417,677
7. COST OF SALES 7. SHERAK
2017
20174
RMB’000
ARETIT
Purchases of and changes in inventories ~ BB &Y REFS# &) 1,583,376 1,551,098
Cost of properties sold EEMERA 624,431 687,532
Others Hih 18,019 17,240
2,225,826 2,255,870
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31 December 2018

2018412 431H
8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 8. EEMX
2017
20174
RMB’000
ARETTT
Wages and salaries TENES 517,243 509,551
Retirement benefits RIRAEF) 66,359 63,028
Other employee benefits HEihfz 8EF| 24,494 23,307
608,096 595,886
Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year, FREERITETRAEBNERE FH
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) A BB D AMEHIZE383(1) @) * (b)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the C)RMMEARARI(FEBEEEFZER )
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) BIEEOERIRERLN N -
Regulation, is as follows:
2017
20174
RMB’000
ARETFT
Fees e 668 675
Other emoluments: HuiE 4 -
Salaries and allowances e KRR 1,320 1,352
Retirement benefits RIREF 42 36
1,362 1,388
2,030 2,063
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (continued)

8.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

EERX (@)
(a) BAKHITES

FRAENBILFATESTHEEN

the year were as follows: ™

Total
Fees remuneration
we Faa b
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F12A31HLLEE
Mr. Pao Ping Wing IR S 206 206
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen PERSE 154 154
Mr. Chow Chan Lum BRI A 308 308
668 668

Year ended 31 December 2017 HZE2017F12A31BLLFE
Mr. Pao Ping Wing IR S 208 208
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen PERSE 156 156
Mr. Chow Chan Lum BRI A 311 311
675 675

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors for the year ended 31 December 2018

(2017: Nil).
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8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (continued) 8. lEEBX (M)
(b) BITEE - —BFHTESERE

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and the

162

chief executive

BHITE

Salaries and Retirement Total
allowances benefits remuneration

FeREM BUBER HrENact
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETR AR¥ETR
Year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F12A31BLEE
Executive directors: WiTESE:
Mr. Zhong Pengyi EEE S~ 120 - 120
Mr. Liu Bo 2t 840 23 863
Non-executive director: FHTES
Mr. Wang Bin EakAE 240 19 259
Chief executive: BHEHNIE
Mr. Huang Mao Ru BRINEE 120 - 120
1,320 42 1,362
Salaries and Retirement Total
allowances benefits  remuneration
e REhs ROREF Hat
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFT  ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2017 EHE2017F12A31HILFE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Zhong Pengyi ElERLE 120 - 120
Mr. Liu Bo Bk k4 840 20 860
Non-executive director: EHTEE
Mr. Wang Bin IikAE 272 16 288
Chief executive: BEHTE
Mr. Huang Mao Ru BRILE 120 - 120
1,352 36 1,388

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the year ended 31

December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. TEEREFEER
The five highest paid employees during the year included one FNEE BT EERE—EES(2017
director (2017: one director), details of whose remuneration are F:—RBEF)  HIFWEN EXHFES -
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of FREMIEA(017F : IB)ReEHES
the remaining four (2017: four) highest paid employees who are (WIEARRBERHESITHAS) BN
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company for the year HEBWT
are as follows:
2017
20174F
RMB’000
AREBTT
Salaries and allowances e NoERL 1,810 1,492
Retirement benefits RIREF 68 70
1,878 1,562
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose HEMEBIA T RENIIEEESESHEE AR
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows: PIRNE
2017
20174
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 4 4
10. OPERATING LEASE RENTAL EXPENSES 10. REHESMAX
2017
20174
RMB’000
AREBTT
Operating lease rental KERE 429,130 410,006
Operating sublease rental s HEe 11,412 14,031
440,542 424,037
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31 December 2018

20184125318
11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 11 Hih Q&%
2017
20174
Notes RMB’000
BfaE ARETTT
Utility expenses UNZRY 153 411,141 403,605
Promotion and advertising EERESERY
expenses 132,654 139,484
Repair and maintenance HERY
expenses 97,011 114,666
Entertainment expenses R 6,992 18,407
Office expenses PN 44,368 48,876
Other tax expenses HibFiEMR X 364,265 370,480
Professional service fees HERBGE 70,554 91,098
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREN N & 5,400 5,400
Bank charges RITFEE 64,536 80,343
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) FEWE 5 BRFURE,"
of trade receivables CREREE) 29 (839) 3,901
Impairment of other receivables H Y EORE 30 10,459 6,478
Impairment of an equity investment LA AR BEETE B HES)
at fair value through profit or loss FFABRNEREERE 2,000 -
Others Hith 57,243 51,236
1,265,784 1,333,974
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

2. Bt SR EE

2017
20174
Notes RMB’000
gz ARETT

Loss on disposal of items of LEME - BB RREHEE

property, plant and equipment HEsia (3,560) (459)
Gain on deemed disposal of B AEDEHE QRN

shares in an associate Eollgss 23 48,269 -
Gain on partial disposal of shares ~ H&EEE QAT E S RRH

in an associate EolihEa 23 = 621,812
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net  SMNE(E18), Uz @ H5E (128,160) 50,727
Fair value gains on financial assets LA AR EETEHH

at fair value through profit or loss HH)ET ABZEH

EHEEA L BERKE = 52

Gain on disposal of financial assets HEUAAEEFEAE

at fair value through profit or loss FEET ABRNeRMEERS 7 89,605
Gain on disposal of an available- HERHEErEERE

for-sale equity investment Eoflens = 312,441
Fair value gains on REMERARBERE

investment properties 18 525,887 175,073
Dividend income from financial REUAREEFAZEH

assets at fair value through Bt ABZEAY

profit or loss THEREENREWA 6,551 -
Dividend income from equity REBEAUAAREBITZR

investments designated at fair E2EE AEMEEmKRER

value through other IR EMRRBMA

comprehensive income 36,362 -
Dividend income from available- KERAMHEENERRE

for-sale equity investments FIR B LA = 40,081
Impairment of property, Y% - BE KR ERE

plant and equipment (48,649) -
Impairment of goodwill EmERE 20 (14,477) (183,081)
Penalty accrued FERHEI S (46,273) (45,555)
Others Hip 123,987 30,702

499,944 1,091,398
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13.FINANCE COSTS 13. B E A
2017
20174
RMB’000
ARETTT
Interest on bank loans RITERF B 1,234,426 1,186,616
Interest expense arising from BUAEREF SR
revenue contracts 22,626 -
Total interest expense on financial liabilities 3ELA R BETER
not at fair value through profit or loss HEB)at ABEH
TR BN B A 1,257,052 1,186,616
Less: Interest capitalised B BEMEFE (246,864) (262,000)
1,010,188 924,616
14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FiB8iR X
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits REBAEFEKEARIMEREENTE
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the MR FTE £ EI T - IRE R
Group are domiciled and operate. WPTISH ©
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an ADRKIBFASES D RIARHESES T
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies e AEREEREMEAT - Bt - K
Law of the Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempt from the NRERPHNFEREREH -
payment of the Cayman Islands income tax.
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands, BEREBERRFSIEARESR  A&EH
the Group is not subject to any tax in the British Virgin Islands. BEMNEMRBHERRESIIE -
The provision for Hong Kong profits tax was calculated at 16.5% of BTG EEKIZE E2018412 A 31
the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 December HIEFEHETERTAEN16.5% (2017

2018 (2017: 16.5%). F:165%):THE -
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are
subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25%
(2017: 25%) of their respective taxable income.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including land use rights, borrowing costs and all property
development expenditures. LAT of RMB49,219,000 was charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: RMB24,164,000).

14. FrE8iBA < ()

REABBAERE - PENBRARARE
B R AR W A2 25% (2017 4F © 25%)
REATEMEMNCEMGH(TEMS
Bl o

o I E R ([ E B ) 1230%
EO0% TN EMREMER T HEEIZE
o (B EEEMERERBEELI
FRE BRREAEMEVERRAX
EFAMATHRES) B - BEARE
49,219,000 T Hy LB ET E R E Z=2018
F12ANHIEFEBHFAEBmRANNKR
(20174« AR#24,164,0007T) °

2017

20174

Note RMB’000

FEE ARETT

Current - CIT BNHE — (b EFTIS 686,316 536,995

Current — LAT BUHA — L (AR 49,219 24,164

Deferred JRIE 26 162,095 23,057

Total tax charge for the year FABBHRZBEE 897,630 584,216
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31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
income tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation
of the statutory tax rates to the effective rates, are as follows:

14. FREBLFA < (%)

BARE R E T BHIE QAR RDERE
[BSATE M R 5t B 2 BRI AT A B A P S 1
P IR BB U R E 2 ST
SHERR - RORE R R B BRI R AR
LN

2018 20185 Cayman lslands BVl Hong Kong Mainland China (]
BEHE ARERRER B L it
RMB'000 %  RMB'000 RMB'000 %  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR % ARMTRT ARBTT % ARETR AEETR

(Lossproft before ax Rif(ER)/fl% (334,365) (%) 137824 221472 2,024,851
Taxat the Statutory tax rate REEHEENE = - = - M 165 555,368 % 578,109 2
Effect o withholding tax at 5% on FEERERRLARTARAE

the dlistoutable proft of the Group's R ITEERIE

PRC subsidiaries EEHEE - - - - i 2 - - T 1
Lower tax rates for specific districts or FERESAZN

counties Bk - - - - (8% M (27 M @ )
Profts and losses atfrbutable fo BERIR-HAELERE

associates and ajoint venture HFERER - - - - - - (6,966) (6,966)
Income not subject o tax L Gl N - - - - - -1 -1 -
Expenses not deductole for tax R - - - - - - 49007 2 49007 2
Taxlosses not recognized RERINREER - - - - - - 108,246 5 108,246 6
LAT THEER = = = - - - 49219 2 49219 3
Taxeffect of LAT ARG S = = o S = - (12,303 (1) (12309) (1)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of Eafoldd

previous periods HEE - - - - - - 59,588 3 59588 3
Ottes it - - = - ) 6 s TR YT 4
Tax charge at the Group's effective taxrate RS EERHZHENHERT - - - - R4 A 865,15 39 897,630 I
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14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. RSB X (@)
017 N17% Cayman lslands BuI Hong Kong Mainland China Total
REHE AEABRES B hEAR it
RMB1000 % RMBIO0O %  RMBI00O % RMBOOO % RMBUO0O %

ARETRL % ARETRL % ARBTR % ARETR % ARBTR %

(Loss)/proft before tax HAIBE) /18 (11062) 5 (35279) 1898914 1852625
Taxat the statutory tax rafe RErHETENTE - - - - e 165 474729 % 468908 %
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on FEERENBARRTHRAE

the distributable profts of the Group's RROITEERIE

PRC subsidiaries Effpe - - - B (44) - - 1554 1
Lower tax rates for specifc dlstricts NEHBIERN

or countries Eig - - - - - - (20%) - (20%) -
Profis and osses atrbutable to BENER-FARLERE

associales and a joint venture WAEREE - - - - - - (B9) - (6%) -
Income not subject o fax ErzRenkL - - - - - - (346%) (2 (34699) @
Expenses not deductible for tax RHHR - - - - - -3 - 30 -
Taxlogses not recognized RERINHEEE - - - - 5821 (1) 85506 5 9137 5
LAT DEER - - - - - AL 1 24164 1
Taxeffect of LAT HAERNREYE - - - - - - (604) - (604 -
Adjustments in respect of current ax of HBEHRERA

previous periods fER - - - - 5463 (15) - - 5463 -
Others it - - - - 3,146 © 220 1 25,39 2
Tax charge at the Group's effective taxrale  RAEEERHREMBRET - - - - 4183 (68) 560,063 0 584216 R
The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to GERAMENHRIESEAARE
RMB14,757,000 (2017: RMB6,006,000) is included in “Share of 14,757,0007C(20174F = AR #6,006,000
profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated statement of TL)  EiRAEBuRERPREEIEEHE R
profit or loss. Az P -
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15.

16.

DIVIDENDS

1 5- Hﬁz%s

2017
20174
RMB’000
AREFIT

Proposed final - HK3.64 cents BN HARR B —
(2017: HK3.88 cents) BREBAR3.6481U

per ordinary share

(20174 : 3.88i#11L)

159,881

160,796

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent of RMB799,403,000 (2017: RMB1,071,973,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 5,140,326,000
(2017: 5,140,326,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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BRAEEEERAEARLER

B8R

BREABADEG AR L RERZRT
B AERFERFE AR 799,403,000
ot (2017 £ : A R ¥ 1,071,973,000
TC) RFE RN B BT E B A DN
5,140,326,000/% (20174 :5,140,326,000
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2018512 H31H

17.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. 9% - BMEKRRE

Furniture,
Machinery fittings and
Land and and Motor other  Leasehold  Construction
buildings  equipment vehicles  equipment improvements in progress Total
4 RER i1
THEET  RERRE - Rt EE RRIR a3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETR ARMTR  ARETn  ARMTn  ARMTR  ARETR
31 December 2018 018F12A31A
At 31 December 2017 and ROITE12A31AR
at 1 January 2018: 01851418
Cost i 10,638,584 608,758 17,057 219913 1,534,822 837,048 13,856,182
Accumulated depreciation ZiERAE
and impaiment (1825557)  (311371) (@319 (75773 (594,867) (6613 (2918500)
Net carrying amount GHAE 8,813,027 297,387 12,738 44,140 939,955 830435 10,937,682
At 1 January 2018, net of accumulated H01851A18
depreciation and impairment (MREFTERAE) 8,813,027 297,387 12,738 44,140 939,955 830435 10,037,682
Additions RE - 1,136 407 13,061 26,059 474,030 523,293
Disposels e - (1.879) () (5,765) (376) - (629
Depreciaton provided during the year FhERE (2211 (31,880) ©92) (848 (127,144) - (600556)
Transfer from properties held for sale tarEnzEA 12,849 = = = = = 12,849
Transfer to investment properties (note 18) SRTRENE(H8) (555,506) - - - - (272,89) (828,398)
Trangfer to other intangble assefs (note 1) EEZEZMEREE(HE1) - - - - - (18,827) (18,827)
Transfer from construction in progress HAERTREN - 593 - 1,684 25,192 (27,469) -
Transfer to properties held for sale ERTEERENE (50,280) - - - - - (50,280)
Impairment HE (48,649) - - - - - (48,649)
Exchange realignment B j A 60 (176) - n - - (44)
At 31 December 2018, netof acounulated  R2018F 128318
depreciation and impairment (MBZHTERRE) 7,749,387 M 11,881 34,774 865,686 95277 9,918,778
At 31 Decermber 2016 Ro01gE12R31
Cost Ak 9,950,247 606,470 15,572 213,508 1,540,686 991,889 13,318,372
Accumulated depreciation and impairment LNERBE (2,200,860) (334,697) (3,691) (178,734) (675,000) (6612)  (3,399,594)
Net carrying amount BETE 7,749,387 PIANIE 11,881 34,774 865,686 985217 9918,778
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20184512 H31H

17.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

17. 935 - BERRE @

Furniture,
fitings and
Land and Machinery Motor other Leasehold  Construction
buildings  and equipment vehicles  equipment  improvements  in progress Total
Fih RER g
TREF  BRRGE it EftiE V) fgIE e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR ARETR
31 December 2017 175128318
At31 December 2016 and R016E12A318 %
at 1 January 2017: M7F1A18
Cost i 11,717,098 590,787 20,339 228511 1,458,947 874794 14890426
Accumulated depreciation ZiERAE
and impairment (1436909)  (294.482) @5T) (229 (4087%2) 6807)  (2323610)
Net carrying amount GHAE 10,280,099 296,205 15,768 56,282 1,050,225 868,167 12,566,816
At 1 January 2017, net of accumulated RO17E1A1E
depreciation and impairment (MR ZHERRE) 10,280,099 296,25 15,768 56282 105025 868167 12566816
Additions HE 98,262 6,677 - 8,92 - 445,784 559,648
Disposels tE (5.780) (615) (1570) (2.281) (1308) - T
Depreciation provided during the year FRITERE (456,494) (26,002) (1719) (21846) (188,550) - (694,611)
Transfer to properties under development BRTURONE
(note 28) (Mzts) (93.279) - - - - (147009)  (4050)
Transfer to investment properties (note 18) ERTREME (1) (1,232,157 - - - - - (1.232187)
Transfer from investment properties (nofe 18) 1R &#TZE A ([i3i18) 13239 - - - - - 13239
Transfer to other intangible assets (note 1) ERZE AR EE (K1) - - - - - (11 (1,10)
Transfer from construction in progress it TEEN 21310 21,254 - 3045 79,588 (335,197 -
Transfer to properties held for sale BROEEGENS (24.484) - - - - - (24 484)
Transfer from propertes held for sale BEEFENEEL 3929 - - - - - 3929
Exchange realignment B (1618) 18 %9 15 - - (132)
At 31 December 2017, net of accumulated RO17TE12A31A
depreciation and impaiment (MR ZsHERRE) 8,813,027 297387 12738 44140 939955 830435 10,987,682
At 31 December 2017: ROITE12A3A :
Cost i 10,638,584 608,758 17,057 219913 1,634,822 837048 13,806,162
Accumulated depreciation and impairment SERAE (1825,557) (311371) (4319) (175,773) (594,867) (6613  (2918500)
Net carrying amount GRAE 8,813,027 297,387 12,738 44140 939,955 83043 10937662
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31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

17.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Amortisation of land lease payments of approximately
RMB16,084,000 during the construction period was capitalised
as part of the construction cost of the department stores under
construction of the Group, and was included in the above
additions.

The Group’s land and buildings are held under medium term
leases and are situated in Mainland China. Details of the Group’s
land and buildings pledged to secure the Group’s interest-bearing
bank loans are set out in note 34.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings
of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB186,100,000 as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
RMB191,921,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining the relevant

17. 95 - BERRE @

BERM S A A TER T TS O 8
ARH¥16,084,000TE T ARNEEERET
EEMEERA  BEELLIAER -

NEBMA T RIEF HIRIER REHE
B WRRPEARRE - REBEEIREERT
BIRTERMELE RN L REFFHIBTH
FIRAKIEES4 ©

REBIEBENE TEFOEEEDARLF
H ARG - ANERDESIE AR E
FBHFE - EREFER2018F 12431
B 445 A R#186,100,0007T (201745 12
A318 : AR#191,921,0007T) °

certificates.

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REW%E
2018 20184
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties at  construction
fair value at fair value Total
BAT i
BREWE RENE
(BDSREEB) (RAREE) #ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR%TxR
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 R2018F1 A1BMEHEE 7,350,050 5,540,329 12,890,379
Additions NE - 42,580 42,580
Transfer from completed properties REESECERDEEA
held for sale 204,285 - 204,285
Transfer to properties under ERERRAYE(M28)
development (note 28) - (9,671) (9,671)
Transfer from construction in progress HEEIRREA 272,892 - 272,892
Transfer from property, W% - BE REEEA
plant and equipment (note 17) (FzE17) 555,506 - 555,506
Recognition of change in fair value REREZREMENDE
of property, plant and equipment & D
upon transfer to investment properties N EEES 1,648,263 - 1,648,263
Transfer from prepaid land lease RN T A EFIESEA
payments (note 19) (H3E19) 203,928 - 203,928
Net gain from fair value adjustment IS EERESES e 437,439 88,448 525,887
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31 B MR HE(E 10,672,363 5,661,686 16,334,049
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31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

18. REWXE (&)

2017 20174
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties at  construction
fair value at fair value Total
B#%T =
REME REME
(BAnEE) (RRLEE) et
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETR
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 P2017F1B1EREREE 4,144,331 5,585,911 9,730,242
Additions NEY 298,917 - 298,917
Transfer to properties under ERERRRYE
development (note 28) UEZS) - (45,582) (45,582)
Transfer from property, plant and fem% - WE REEEA
equipment (note 17) (PzE17) 1,232,157 - 1,232,157
Recognition of change in fair value of property, — HEREEEREMENDE -
plant and equipment upon transfer Jﬂ%& LI
to investment properties DREBEED 840,676 - 840,676
Transfer to property, plant and BRENE - BELSE
equipment (note 17) (M5E17) (13,239) - (13,239)
Transfer from prepaid land lease fETE R TR EFIEEA
payments (note 19) (FEE19) 672,135 - 672,135
Net gain from fair value adjustment DA BEFAREFNE 175,073 - 175,073
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 R2017F12 831 BRI REE 7,350,050 5,540,329 12,890,379

The Group’s investment properties consist of commercial
properties in Mainland China. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties consist of
one class of assets, i.e., commercial properties, based on the
nature, characteristics and risk of each property. The Group’s
investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2018
based on valuations performed by Worldunion Appraisal, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, at approximately
RMB16,334,049,000. Each year, the Group’s management
decides to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for
the external valuation of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s management
has discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results once a year when the valuation is performed for
annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under

operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 40(a) to the financial statements.
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REE B I A W) 3 AT 5P B K B A 75 B
HE RARIEZSETARNAIMNEE N
YIER—BEEMAK  BERETEEERN
MHE - BREERNEAE - B
2018F12A31H » AEBEKREMENE
L ELY A ARBE16,334,049,0007T © 7%
BETIAB Y FHEE E KGR
EITHHEAKE - §F @ AEENEIE
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31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

18. REWXE (@)

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium term
leases and are situated in Mainland China. Details of the Group’s
investment properties pledged to secure the Group’s interest-
bearing bank loans are set out in note 34.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment properties
of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB2,919,338,000 as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
RMB2,778,079,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining the relevant

REBHKREDERBEFHRANES -
WA BEI AR - REE AR BRITE
FERANEE R EMENFBHIIR
B5E34 ©

AEEHBNE THREVMENTEE
BMARPREBERMEE  AEE
MEMRERBEBEENFE  EEEF
BER2018FE 12 A3 B A ARK?2
919,338,0007T (20175 12310 : AR

certificates. #2,778,079,0007T) °

Fair value hierarchy AREEEBR

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy REBHREDMENRNRBEEBRYI/RN
of the Group’s investment properties: T~

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018 using
2018F12A31B A AEEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Cf 2 TABE
EERMEHRE NEABAE WEXBAE
(B-#%) (E=#8) (B=4) s
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T AR¥TR ARBTRT
Commercial properties R E - - 16,334,049 16,334,049
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using
2017F12A3B AL BEEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ABR TABE
ERTSRE MEXBAE HNEABAE
(F—R) (BE=H) (=) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETFTT ARETT
Commercial properties PERME - - 12,890,379 12,890,379

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

(2017: Nil).
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18. REWXE (@)
LA 48 4 1) 23 17 1 (P FR (e P

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key

inputs to the valuation of investment properties: K EasE AENRE
Valuation techniques  Significant unobservable inputs Range
EERH EXTAEENBAE &E
2018 2017
2018% 20175
Commercial properties Discounted Estimated rental value RMB14-RMB680 RMB14-RMB616
A E cash flow method (per s.g.m. and per month) AR¥147m— ARE1470—
RREREE fEEt e (BEHK/BR) AR#6807 AR¥6167T
Rent growth (p.a.) 3%-5% 0%-3%
HEFHERE
Long term vacancy rate 1%-20% 1%-40%
ROZEX
Discount rate 6%-7% 6%-7%
i3
Residual method Budgeted construction cost to RMB85-RMB314 RMB99-RMB488
HnEEE be incurred (per s.q.m.) AR¥857T— AR
RELNBARRAA (BT K) AR¥3147 AR 488TT
Remaining percentage to completion 3%-50% 3%-34%
BTIEAL
Anticipated developer’s profit margin 12%-35% 25%
R AEE
Comparison method Market unit sale rate RMB9,400- RMB16,200-
HEUE (per s.q.m) RMB48,900 RMB53,000
minELEE(BTAK) AR®9400t—  ARE#16,2007T—
AR¥48,9007T AR 53,0007

RBEERBSREE - RAEEIEAR
BEFRANMAENZERBENERR
(BRERGBESSKKEBELMGER - &5
A RAMERE - RIBRERENTE
A o 50T A M REIR FE A IR RIER 2R

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value.
This method involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a
property interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the
projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of the 2 UEBRYEEEFENKERNE
income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally B - REWSEBEEEETHAARNE
separately determined and differs from the discount rate. fizpe gl
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18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. RE Y (50)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease
renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is
a characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow
is estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable
expenses, collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs,
agent and commission costs and other operating and management
expenses. The series of periodic net operating income, along
with an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the
projection period, is then discounted.

A significant increase in the market rent growth rate per annum in
isolation would result in a significant increase in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant decrease in the long term
vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would result in a
significant increase in the fair value of the investment properties.
Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated
rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar change in
the rent growth per annum and the discount rate and an opposite
change in the long term vacancy rate.

The residual method of valuation is commonly used in valuing
development sites by establishing the market value of the
properties on an “as-if” completed basis with appropriate
deduction on construction costs, professional fees, contingency,
marketing and legal cost, and interest payments to be incurred,
anticipated developer’s profits, as well as land acquisition costs,
interest payment and profit on land.

The fair values of investment properties are determined using
the comparison method by making references to comparable
sale evidence as available in the relevant market. Comparable
properties of similar size, characteristics and location are analysed
and selected for each investment property in order to arrive at a
fair comparison of their fair values. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the market unit sale rate.

fﬁ%//wiﬁfﬁif&lﬂ‘rﬁﬁ&mu}\ﬂ]//wﬂjE’]El\
R B ESRe - HAOBHEREHEE
B ERSBFEEMRE - BENF
BREERMHITR(RYERRN—EY
!”_{)Ffr TE o FHReREBREUWANR
ZE - TAROAX - WEEE - HeiR
B #EER RENESEARAME
EMERF AT - Z— R EHREW
NFRE - B RITEFH O TRRI HA AR AR I B B 4%
BEfiteE  MEERE-

MmiBHEFERX ﬁﬁ?ﬁfﬂéi“ﬂﬂagéﬁx
EMERAABEAEEN - RPZ=EXR
BEIREREBEFARRL S ’E@Z&éﬁ%%@ﬁ

BEAEEM - —&ME - SETHESE
R A # éébﬁifiﬂﬂiiiﬁﬁz’&ﬁﬁ

BEHRBELUSTRAEPHREHRYEE
HIRREEE -

FERHEERE MR —RRBOREEED
B% %ﬂ‘“ﬁ“ﬂmﬂjfr}I%%E’Jm%fﬁ
B BENRSEENERKN  BXE
A SAER - EIHNORRAAR TR
3K - BRAEAE - DU -
BRI L3RBT o

BREMENLABEBB2ERETSA
SRR L BHERE - RALBOATIA

E o BRAFUBREREMENERA(E
B SR RS T - B8 R AR
AILEEYE - R AR BEELAETIS
$HE BEARAERRR o

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED f% 2B iE G R A7)

177



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M =

31 December 2018
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19. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 19. FEft Lt HE R IE
2017
20174
Notes RMB’000
gz ARBFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1EMEREEE 4,979,491 5,886,381
Additions NS 2,068 57,940
Transfer to properties under development & 2= 28R R i) 2 28 (13,391) (94,633)
Transfer to investment properties B EEYE 18 (203,928) (672,135)
4,764,240 5,177,553
Amortisation provided during the year FEE RS (183,085) (198,062)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12A31 B ERAEE 4,581,155 4,979,491
Current portion included in FTAFERFIE -
prepayments, other HAtb EUGRIA R
receivables and other assets HihEEMRNEHD (164,013) (166,196)
Non-current portion FERNERER 4,417,142 4,813,295
The Group’s leasehold lands are held under medium term leases AKENHEE L0 SIRETRBOIE -
and are situated in Mainland China. Details of the Group's WA R EIREE © AERE B BRITE
leasehold lands pledged to secure the Group’s interest-bearing EERAH B EHHEE T FBEHT K T
bank loans are set out in note 34. 34 °
The Group is in the process of applying for the certificates for a FR2018%12A31H - AREKEAEL
land use right with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately Z%}\Eﬁg97,582,00075(_2017¢ 12H 31
RMB97,582,000 as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: B: }\ﬁﬁﬁ00,547,00075>E|’\Jii1131§ﬁﬁ$&
RMB100,547,000). B EPHES o
Included in the amortisation provided during the year was an Frofis s B 21 AK% 16,084,000
amount of approximately RMB16,084,000, which was capitalised E?@ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ?mf’ﬁ%\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘éﬁ@
as part of the construction cost of the department stores under E%W\$W*E‘Bﬁ : I\E\Eﬁ')\%% B &
construction of the Group and included in the additions of BERAESTP (E17) -

property, plant and equipment (note 17).
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2018412A31H

20. GOODWILL 20.HE
2017
20174
Note RMB’000
BfaE ARETT
At 1 January: m1A18 :
Cost B AN 1,685,973 1,685,982
Accumulated impairment ZETRIAE (276,399) (93,318)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 1,409,574 1,592,664
Cost at 1 January, A1 A1B A
net of accumulated impairment (HIB R2sHEE) 1,409,574 1,592,664
Impairment provided during the year S RIBERE 12 (14,477) (183,081)
Deregistration of subsidiaries RN NG - (9)
Cost and net carrying amount at R12 831 BRI
31 December NEREDFE 1,395,097 1,409,574
At 31 December: M12A318 -
Cost AR 1,685,973 1,685,973
Accumulated impairment ZETRIAE (290,876) (276,399)
Net carrying amount BREDSHME 1,395,097 1,409,574
Impairment testing of goodwill BENREIR

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following cash-generating units (“CGUs”) for impairment

testing:
e operation of department stores
e property development

e others
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31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

20. GOODWILL (continued)

20. & (®\)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by management. The discount rates applied to the cash flow
projections ranged from 12% to 14% (2017: 12% to 14%). Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rate of 3% (2017: 2% to 3%). The key assumptions
adopted on growth rates and discount rates used in the value in use
calculations are based on management’s best estimates.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, a decrease in the growth
rate by 10% to 15% would cause the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit to exceed its recoverable amount by approximately
RMB26,031,000 to RMB49,167,000, and any reasonably possible
change in the other key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based would not cause the cash-generating unit’s
carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the CGUs
are as follows:

Operation of

EENRERE (&)
%ﬁ@éiﬁﬁ%ﬁ%@%ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ@
STEEMT c ZetEAFERAUEER I
EABRRAFNYBEEAEENRERE
FEA - EARRESRETEAMEIRENR
12%E14% (20175 : 12%E14%) - I
A FRIRE RERB MR RI%HLE
(20174 - m@ﬁ%)ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁh%
AREERRMREMRANEE®RE
REREM&REMET ©

ARREERE BEERTRIO%E
15% @ AJRE SR ReELEMMERE
B H Al e el £ 5 49 AR #26,031,0007T
= AR#49,167,0007T » KAl U (El & 58 AT
KB EMF EBRENER SR e
TeFEReELENMEREBRAED
W B 4EE -

SRETEHREEEEUNEEREENT
T

department Property
stores  development Others Total
BEERE NEBR Hite st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT NS ARBTT ARBTT
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A4318 1,393,544 14,477 1,553 1,409,574
At 31 December 2018 ®2018F12A31H 1,393,544 - 1,553 1,395,097

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the CGUs
for 31 December 2018 and 2017. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — Management has determined the
budgeted gross margins based on past performance and its
expectations for market development.
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20. GOODWILL (continued)

21,

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

Discount rates — The discount rates used are after tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the respective units.

Purchase price inflation — Management has considered the
possibility of increases in purchase price inflation ranging from nil
to 5% (2017: nil to 5%).

The values assigned to the key assumption on market development
of CGUs, discount rates and purchase price inflation are consistent
with external information sources.

Management performed impairment testing of goodwill annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. During the year ended
31 December 2018, due to the operating performance continuing
to decline among business units which affected the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units of Shenyang Anli Real
Estate Co., Ltd, which is engaged in property development and
a hotel operations in Shenyang, Liaoning Province, goodwill of
approximately RMB14,477,000 was impaired.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. &5 & (&)

REIRE —PTAMBER XEHIRHIA - R
BR G BB L 04T TE LR

BEEGRR-EEERABEEERLA
BRI M BT E£5% (20174 : BEE5%) ©

BRGELFUNNSER  RIRELE
BEBRNEZERAAAEERINER
HIR—2

EREESTHTEERENR  IREER
EHBEREE - BRREER LR ER
B A E1TRIE - Eil=2018F 12 A
1HIEFE  AEBKBMMEERFIFE
TREERGLIBXEEHRETRAT
(REELBGHEMELRLBIEEE)
MIRSEEBMNMARESEE  BHERE
#) NR¥14,477,0007T °

21. Htv BB E

Computer software

SFERERY
2018 2017
20184 20174
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BtEE AR¥T T AREFTT
Cost at 1 January, net of 1A 1B
accumulated amortisation (¥R 2xtHEE) 39,594 48,292
Additions nE 838 2,507
Amortisation provided during the year 9 PR §5 75 (8,648) (12,315)
Transfer from construction in progress £ T8 A 17 18,827 1,110
At 31 December M12H31H 50,611 39,594
At 31 December: M12H318 -
Cost B AN 109,715 90,050
Accumulated amortisation RETHEGH (59,104) (50,456)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 50,611 39,594

Computer software is amortized on the straight-line basis over five
years.
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22.INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

2. AEEEMNRE

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
A20184F 20174
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT

Share of net assets B EEFE

1,703 921

1,703 921

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:

AEEREREFBIIRET

Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of registration attributable
Name issued shares held and business to the Group  Principal activities
BAENERT atft TEEES
AEER RiR1E REEwE FEEEREONL TEXH
Jiangsu Qinghehong Beverage Ordinary shares of PRC/ 50%  Beverage industry
Management Co., Ltd. (“Qinghehong Beverage”) RMB1 each Mainland China HRTE
TE R MARMERARAR(EMAKRE]) AREATL/ LRk B AR

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

23. RENRINRE

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

20184 20174
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT

Share of net assets EIEEEFEE 1,136,865 897,456
Goodwill on acquisition g Es 992,943 942 292
2,129,808 1,839,748
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

23. REHE QR RIRVRE (30)

Particulars of the material associates are as follows: BERERAFEITROT
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of registration attributable
Name issued shares held and business to the Group  Principal activities
BENERT KEEES
ARER RGFE MR EEHH FEREREIL TEXH
Shenyang Commercial City Co., Ltd. Ordinary shares of PRC/ 24.22% Operation of
(“Commercial City”) RMB1 each Mainland China department stores
BSEFIRNERDA (¥R ARBAT/ LRk HE /B ARE KEBEE
Zhongjiabochuang Information Technology Co., Ltd.  Ordinary shares of PRC/ 22.49% Information
("ZJBC” formerly, Maoye Communication Network RMB1 each Mainland China transmission and
Co., Ltd.) AREAT/ LRER HE /R EARE IT services
PREEIEERIRNERAR (T EEA] - EREHRITRE
Al 3 RIKEBERERHBRAR)
Shenzhen UGO E-Commerce Co., Ltd (“UGO”) Ordinary shares of PRC/ 50.14% Electronic commerce
FEREETEEERAR([EKE]) RMB1 each Mainland China ETEK
AR/ LBk el B ARE
(i) Commercial City (i) BIEE
Commercial City, which is considered a material associate of EEPERAREENEEHRZE N
the Group, is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the A AASKENETEXENEEBYT

retail industry and is accounted for using the equity method.
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31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(i) Commercial City (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Commercial City adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:

23. R E N RINRE (|
(i) P
TRIVREERE B &5 R A ER
Z 7l K B A B IS R MY BRI 4R
FHRABRENMBERME

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
20184 20174
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARBTT
Current assets mEEE 1,379,805 1,185,249
Non-current assets JEMENEE 2,197,021 2,289,703
Current liabilities mEEaE (2,702,982) (2,460,493)
Non-current liabilities IEREAE (11,111) (12,433)
Non-controlling interests of the associate B4 A R FEIE AR AR BE A 2t (308,479) (308,454)
Net assets BEFE 554,254 693,572
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEFE TEsHE 554,254 693,572
Reconciliation to the Group’s ERZRER B PR N A Y
interest in the associate: AT TH AR -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership INEE B BG5BT B RE L 17 24.22% 24.22%
Group’s share of net assets of AREBEENBEANREEFE
the associate, excluding goodwill TEEHE 134,240 167,983
Goodwill on acquisition Ly Bt B g 2 32,412 32,412
Carrying amount of the investment HERREE 166,652 200,395
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. REE&E N BIVIRE (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

(i) Commercial City (continued) (i) BEHE(E)
2017
20174
RMB’000
ARBTT
Revenue WA 338,814 332,507
Loss for the year FAEE (139,319) (140,634)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNEGAEIBRRE (139,319) (140,634)
Fair value of the Group’s investment NEFBKEN AL EER 274,381 470,675

(ii) ZzJBC (i) PEEA

In 2018, Maoye Communication Network Co., Ltd. has
changed its name to ZhongdJiaBoChuang Information
Technology Co. Ltd (“ZJBC”).

On 24 April 2018, ZJBC entered into an acquisition agreement
with Liu Yingkui, Ningbo Jiayuchunhua investment Partnership
and Ningbo Jiahuigiushi Investment Partnership (the
“Vendors”) for the acquisition of Beijing Zhongtian Jiahua
Information Technology Co. Ltd. (“Zhongtian Jiahua”).
Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, ZJBC agreed to
purchase and the Vendors agreed to sell a 100% equity
interest in Zhongtian Jiahua by issuing 47,275,097 shares
of ZJBC to Liu Yingkui and pay RMB754,800,000 to all the
Vendors. The shares were listed on 15 October 2018. After
the issue, the shareholding in ZJBC held by Zhongzhao, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, had been diluted
from approximately 24.2% to 22.49%. Zhongzhao still has
significant influence over ZJBC. So ZJBC is still considered
an associate of the Group and were accounted for using the
equity method.

R2018%F @ KERBEWEBRMHARA
AR AT RIBAIEE RO AR
REN([hEHEAD) -

MR20185F4 524 H - Hhr 5= 1H Al G U iE
IERARREEEERINBERAR(H
REHE|)HPLE  BREEAKIERS
EEREERCERERRTERE
MEREGRLCE(ERD YK
Bz o BIBWERZ  REEa
AEREEmMEFRENERREE
M2 ERE - F AR IR T
47,275,097 % & 5= 18 B I (0 30 17) AT
BEH I ARBT754,800,0007T °
ZERMHR2018F 107150 £ ©
REETTIR - KREI2EHBARFIK
R SEIHEIFTF AR D B 424.2%
BSEE00.49% o AR E R =E
BIEHERNTE - it =iEa10%E
B AEREB A E R AR E A
/EE °
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31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. REFE R RN IRE (#|)
(ii) ZJBC (continued) (ii) PEBLI(#E)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRINTHEHEIE RS EERNE
information in respect of ZJBC adjusted for any differences in A ZER R LR E M SRR REEY
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in IRVEL ARENITEERRE -

the consolidated financial statements:

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

20184 20174
12831H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T AREFIT

Current assets RENEE 1,995,203 1,171,242
Non-current assets IERENEE 4,911,806 3,493,545
Current liabilities mENAE (2,246,504) (1,029,039)
Non-current liabilities EREBE (226,440) -
Non-controlling interests of an associate B4 A R 3EIE IR IR s - -
Net assets excluding B FEIE AR AR R A R LA SN

non-controlling interests HEEFE 4,434,065 3,635,748
Goodwill of an associate e S/NSIONEES (793,787) (793,787)
Net assets, excluding goodwill EEFE TEEHE 3,640,278 2,841,961
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest EAREEREE A RRERS

in the associate: HEITHR -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBERTEFTERELHI 22.49% 24.20%
Group’s share of net assets of REEEEBEAREEFE -

the associate, excluding goodwill TEEEHE 818,699 687,755
Goodwill on acquisition Uk B R g 2 818,527 880,756
Carrying amount of the investment KERREE 1,661,902 1,568,511
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(ii) ZJBC (continued)

23. R E D RIRVIRE (@0
(i) EEAl(H)

2017

20174

RMB’000

ARBTT

Revenue WA 3,361,086 2,105,547

Profit for the year FERFE 213,074 108,452

Other comprehensive income Hib2muikas - -

Total comprehensive income for the year FA2 N EEE 213,074 108,452

Dividend received EUAR B 5,569 7,938

Fair value of the Group’s investment AEBRENALEE 1,535,211 2,007,816
(iii) UGO (i) BB

UGO is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the
electronic commerce industry. In 2018, Maoye Commercial
purchased a 38.24% of the shares in UGO at a consideration
of RMB218,279,300. Subsequesnt to the share purchase, the
Group directly and indirectly holds 50.14% of the shares in

UGO.

There is no change in the composition of the board of directors
subsequent to the share purchase. Management determines

that the Group does not have control over UGO.

UGO is still considered an associate of the Group and was

accounted for using the equity method.
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31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. NEFE A RIRVIRE (40

(i) UGO (continued) (i) B X EE (&)
TRIREXRED LS BERNEMA
ZRI R BT E BB IRER AR AL R
TER RGN EEREE

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of UGO adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
20184 20174
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT

Current assets RENEE 242,446 198,822
Non-current assets IERENEE 112,298 45,950
Current liabilities mENAE (68,017) (20,963)
Non-current liabilities ERBALE (96) -
Non-controlling interests of an associate B4 A R 3EIE IR IR s - -
Net assets excluding non-controlling PR FETEAR AR SR A 2 DA SN
interests & EFE 286,631 223,809
Goodwill of an associate P& AR E = -
Net assets, excluding goodwill EEFE TEsEE 286,631 223,809
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in  EAZANEE [E 7B & A a) Y
the associate: e HETTHIAR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEE TG FT AL 50.14% 18.64%
Group’s share of net assets of the REEEEBEAREEFE -
associate, excluding goodwill TEEEHE 143,717 41,718
Goodwill on acquisition U B A g 2 142,004 29,124
Carrying amount of the investment KERMRAEE 301,254 70,842
2017
20174
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Profit for the year FRF)E 25,057 26,214
Other comprehensive income Hi2muss - -
Total comprehensive income PENEBTE 25,057 26,214
Carrying amount of the Group’s REEREE N RIRER
investment in the associate BEmE 301,254 70,842

188 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED & 2 BB TR AR A A

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F /& 4



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 o B =

31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

24 ML HENERRE

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

20185 20174

12A31H 12H31H

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

FEE AR¥ET T ARETT

Listed equity investments, at fair value — FH#RIEE (AL BE) (i) - 1,566,255

Unlisted equity investments, at cost JE L TRERRIEE (IR AK) (i), (i) - 1,371,223

- 2,937,478

Notes: B e

(i) Upon adoption of IFRS 9, the Group has reclassified this investment from () MEMERGKIREEREIGRE - AEEH

available-for-sale investments to financial investment at equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, respectively (note 25).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s listed equity investments with a
carrying amount of RMB777,305,000 and an unlisted equity investment
with a carrying amount of RMB521,570,000 were pledged as security for
the Group’s bank loans respectively.

(i)  As at 31 December 2017, these investments were stated at cost because (ii)
the investments did not have a quoted market price in an active market. In
the opinion of the directors, the fair values of such investments cannot be
measured reliably and the underlying fair values of these investments were
not less than the carrying values of these investments as at 31 December
2017.
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BZEREAHAIREERESESTHEAS
BIRE - HRREEAREAREBENEZERH
FEALMEEARENERIRE RARR
BEAEEEEHT ABENSEBEE (Wit
25) °

M2017E12A318 » AEEEREREAARE
777,305,0007TH) FifERRE LEEEERA
R 521,570,000 CH)3F L HERIREE 5 5l
VEAREBIRITERAIE

H2017F12A31H + ZFIREILM AT -
RARZERENERMIBLEMISHRE -
EERE  ZERENDREEEE ST
EARSHRENHEA A BEMIRZEE
AR2017F12 A31BMEREE °
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31 December 2018
2018%12H31H

25.FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

25. £ @MKRE

SRRl 31 December
2018 2017
20185 20174
12H31H 12H31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
hEs AR¥T T ARBTFT
Equity investments designated EEANUAREEER
at fair value through other HEFHir ARMEMEKE
comprehensive income: KR E -
Listed equity investments LEhEREE (i) 838,810 -
Unlisted equity investments FE R E () 474,105 -
1,312,915 -
Financial assets at fair value through UAanEETER
profit or loss: HEEEFTAERN
SHEE :
Listed equity investments FERSEE (i) 144 212
Other unlisted investments EfIE EmRE (iii) 208,080 -
208,224 212
1,521,139 212
Notes: 5T

(M)

(i)

The equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the Group considers these investments to
be strategic in nature.

In 2018, the Group sold its equity interests in Dashang Co.,Ltd. and
Shenwanhongyuan Group Co.,Ltd. as these investments no longer
coincided with the Group’s investment strategy. The fair value on the
date of sale was RMB394,032,000 and the accumulated loss in other
comprehensive income of RMB95,856,000 was recognised. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Group received dividends in the
amounts of RMB15,390,000, RMB13,217,000 and RMB7,756,000 from
Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd. and Dashang Co.,Ltd. and the rest of companies,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s listed equity investments with a
carrying value of RMB103,036,000 and unlisted equity investment with
a carrying amount of RMB762,660,000 were pledged as security for the
Group’s bank loans as further detailed in note 34(c)(v).

The financial investments at 31 December 2018 were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

The unlisted investments at 31 December 2018 were wealth management
products issued by banks in Mainland China. They were mandatorily
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.
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(i)

HRARERAZERABRREILRE
F Ut #E 25 %8 A R e E RIA A LB
FAEAEEHH AR MEEKE -

20184 - AEBHEENAERHERA
ARBEBLRREERNDERAAIMNRE R
AAZERETHREAASENKRERE -
REE BB AR EEARARES394,032,000
T THERHEMEE RS ZTEBARE
95,856,0007T ° H E2018F 12 A31H [L 4
B AEESFIARRBRITRHVDERAF K
KRG AR A RIARE b A RIEURR B A
R#15,390,0007T + AR #13,217,0007T &
AER#7 756,0007T °

7K2018F12A31H * AEEREABEAARE
103,036,000ty E =it & REEEEAA
R¥762,660,000THI3E L TERIEECER
REERITE KA A FE34(c)(v)iE—
HEt) o

K2018F 12 A31 B S RIEE FER F -
WABANAARBEFEEEEEHH ABRE

M2018F 12 A31AMIFE L TIRE AP BIRRE
RIRITEITHEMER - ARESHNBEESR
ETEEAINAERIE  AHZERE
Wkl ERA A BEFEAEZBFTA
BEMESEEE -
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

26.DEFERRED TAX

26. IEIEFI B

Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year UTRFNREEHBEEEBEREENESEF
are as follows: W
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIRAE
Fair value Deemed
adjustment  Revaluation disposal of Amortisation
arsingfrom ~ of available-  Revaluation available-for- ~ Deemed ~ Deemed of prepaid Capitalisation
acquisition of for-sale equity of investment  saleequity ~ disposalof  disposalof  landlease  Withholding  of borrowing
asubsidiary investments  properties investments  asubsidiary anassociate  payments faxes costs Total
WEREAT RRRE
EEY BRTALE THEE  BRRE  BRRE Bt Exf,
MEEEE NERRE EMRRNR  BERE  MEOW  BRLT EEAGEE  ROER RENX it
RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMWBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBIOOD
ARET ARETR  ARETT  ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETRm ARETn ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2017 H0NTE12A1R 1429211 2423 1083715 7380 23,781 - 530 18,086 01 3221867
Deferred ax debied(credied) /iR /(30
fo equity during the year g R - (W9m) 210169 - - - - - N it
Deferred tax charged(cedieo)  ERIGABRR
{o the consolidated statement 3 /(H )Y
of proft orloss during e
the year (note 14) (Fa14) (386%) 78110 02148 - (Be%) - - 15,563 31473 18974
At 31 Decgmoer 2017 and HOTE12A31ER
1January 2018 21851818 137063 64608 1336032 7380 1740% - 530 33649 404374 3416085
Efectofadopton ofIFRS9 RIS AR g
FENTE - 1676 - - - - - - - 1676
At January 2018 (restated) — R0IBF1RIRI(ER) 1,370,636 81374 1,336,032 7380 174,09 - 25,310 33,649 404374 3,432,851
Deferred tax debied(creited)  EA¥IR /(311)
fo equity during the year g R - (14207 38728 - - - - - -85
Deferred tax chargecl(credied) R4 EES
tothe consolidated Sitement 118/ A )8
of proft orloss during e
the year nofe 14) (F4) (65,724) - 133458 - - 12,067 - 27,175 5185t 1648
At31 December 2018 H01BE12A31R 1304912 (32833  1,868218 7380 174,09 12,067 %310 60,824 462225 3,862,199
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31 December 2018
2018%12H31H

26.DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. IEAEBIH ()
Deferred tax assets FEIERIEEE
Losses
Revaluation availablefor  Unrealized

Provisionfor  Impairment  offinancial  Expensed offsetting  intercompany
Provisions ~retirement  ofcurent  assets held contract againstfuture transaction  Advance from

and accruals benefits assets fortrading liabilities ~ taxable profits profit  customers Total
s
R EfiRARE BXE  ARERE i £

RERR EABUAR MDRENE MOBEE QKRR WENER ABEENR  EPWR it
RUBOD  RWBOI  RWBODD  RWBOD  RMBOD  RMBOOO  RMBOO  RWBOO  RUBON

ARETR  ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2017 R7E1R1A 9.%7 2459 12,656 14545 - 147216 375,251 18533 580,617
Deferted tax credied(charged) ~ EhEAEESE

othe conolidated statement 5 /(1B )4

of proft o loss during e 0

year (note 14) (Mek14) 45,985 (208) (931) (14.545) - (58,130) 9,187 14559 (4,083)
At 31 December 2017 and R0TEI2ANAR
1January 2018 N18%151A 55,042 2,01 1,725 - - 89,086 304438 33092 576534
Efectofadoptonof FAS9 ~ FBEMREHKHLE]
Fwnze - - 8169 - - - - - 8169
At 1 January 2018 (restated) R018E A1R(E) 55,042 2,251 19,604 - - 89,086 384,438 33,002 584,703

Deferred tax crecied/charged)  ERREABRR
{othe consolidated statement ~ 3tA /(11 )é
of profitor loss during the EiiE
year (note 14) (Hist1a) 14,468 1 313 - 5,857 (7,168) 13,486 (26,856) 27

At 31 December 2018 #0185 12731R 10410 2,265 23,025 = 5,057 81,918 397,924 6,236 587,435
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

26. IEIEFIE (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

The Group had tax losses of approximately RMB2,300,151,000 as
at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: RMB1,992,783,000),
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the
following items:

AEBR2018F12A31BEAHARE
2,300,151,0007C (2017412 A31H : A
R #1,992,783,0007T) (T IEEE - 2%
FARME $5 2R 2R FE SR B A B B TB B B
—ZERFAEW °

BT TR E EWEL 5178 B AETTHER -

31 December

31 December

Tax losses HiIEEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
1,972,479 1,636,439

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilized.

The Group has recognized deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses of approximately RMB8,063,000 in 2018 (2017:
RMB12,076,000), the utilisation of which is dependent on future
taxable profits in excess of the profits arising from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences. The amount of deferred
tax assets is based on the profit forecast approved by the
management of the Group.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
application rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

As at 31 December 2018, the deferred tax liabilities of undistributed
profits not provided for amounted to RMB396,010,000 (31
December 2017: RMB332,602,000).

WERZFEIRERECREEE © JIA
ELEENHEQRIEEE —RER - I
RN A R RES B L R S FE SR B LA
HIHTIREE

AREE 20184 s Hi 1B B B FERIR T 18
BEHNRES 063,0007T(20174F : AR
#12,076,0007T) @ ZIELEHIBEEE R
IR KRR ERRFEBBRERN
JERTR TR R R T EANF)E - BT
HMEBEEEMNSBENGAEEETIEENE
HNEMTFERETE -

RIBFR B EERE - SN E B AL
R BEAEAIINERECEESNRES
IHBB10% M T RIEITEIRATIERL - AR T
R20084F1 A1 HMEAER - 8 AR 20074F
12A31 B EF] o 8 R ERFTEEZINEA
REEE A EEREFEERKGE - 7@
RAREBERAEHME - REBEAH K
5% o At ANEEE R AP B K FE AR S /Y
BB AR FER2008F1 A1H ZREAR
B9 RIS B AN TEIRFTSHR ©

MR2018F 12 A31H » A IREHEH
AOMANBEEHBEEAARE
396,010,0007T (20175 12A310 : AR
#332,602,0007T) °
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31 December 2018

20184128310
27.INVENTORIES 27. %78
SRRl 31 December
2018 2017
20185 20174
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBFT
Merchandise for resale A EE R 241,810 243,043
Provision against slow-moving inventories & BB HHE (6,940) (6,940)
234,870 236,103
Movements in the provision against slow-moving inventories are as FENKERBEIWT
follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
At 1 January 1 A1H 6,940 7,004
Amount written off during the year FRIZEH = (64)
At 31 December M12A31H 6,940 6,940
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

28. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 28. BEHPWE
2017
20174
Notes RMB'000
FisE ARBTT
Land lease prepayments, at cost T AERAROERA)
At 1 January W1A1H 2,268,788 1,965,694
Additions NE - 208,461
Transfer from prepaid land lease payments WEN T ERIBEA 19 13,391 94,633
Transfer to completed properties held for sale  BEEERAFED AR E (437,156) -
Transfer from investment properties RIEBEMEEAN 18 9,671 -
At 31 December M2A31H 1,854,694 2,268,788
Development expenditure, at cost 2 H (RAA)
At 1 January W1A1H 3,617,281 2,884,730
Additions NE 1,014,339 446,461
Transfer from property, plant and equipment  #491% - BiE RFEHEEA 17 - 240,508
Transfer from investment properties SEE=EIETYN 18 - 45,582
Transfer to completed properties held for sale BB E A FED ERK Y% (800,044) -
At 31 December MW12A31H 3,831,576 3,617,281
5,686,270 5,886,069
The Group’s properties under development are held under medium AEBENERPMEDREFRBAHEORES
term leases and are situated in Mainland China. B WA BEARE o
Details of the Group’s properties under development pledged to ASRE R BRI ERERRNE H 7R
secure the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are set out in note BRAPYENIEE M4 o
34.
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B M =

31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

29. TRADE RECEIVABLES 29. BN E 5 KIE

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

20184 20174

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFT

Trade receivables FEWE 5 IR 26,935 27,329
Impairment BB (20,135) (19,338)
6,800 7,991

The Group’s revenue from the direct sales of merchandise are
mainly on a cash basis. The credit terms offered to customers
of the Group’s sales of properties are generally three months to
one year. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice dates, is as follows:

AEBERHEENMNRATIENRER
HE - AEBENMEHER(TELPNE
ERN—RR=EAZ—F BUTFHE
EREERE - AEESREREERK
FRRORFSBRARTE S - WRRA (5 E 12 HIEEFT
REEERR - 2RERESE iR
BHEEER - ER AT RARBIE YR
RESRABEREPNEE A
BEAKTEERR - A& E L ELREK
BHRIBSZHEHREA TAER R AT
RIEERER - BKRESFIATHE -

REIEHR - BRE S FRIZER B BN
BREG DTN -

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

20185 20174

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTFT

Within 60 days 60H A 3,836 4,658
61 to 90 days 61£290H 1,464 422
91 to 180 days 912180H 445 579
181 to 270 days 181&270H 531 145
271 to 360 days 2712360H 532 566
Over 360 days #B3E360H 20,127 20,959
26,935 27,329
Impairment BB (20,135) (19,338)
6,800 7,991

The balance of trade receivables mainly relates to sales of
properties.
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B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2018
2018412A31H

29. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 29.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

FEW & Z RO (%)
FEWE 5 BRR R ER IR R EEE T

2017
20174
RMB’000
AREFIT

At 1 January R1A1H 19,338 15,744
Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 RAN BB B 75 5 £ RI S 957

B8 1,636 -
At 1 January (restated) MW1A18 (EE7) 20,974 15,744
Impairment provided/(reversal) (note 11) ER M (BEED) (BEE11) (839) 3,901
Amount written off during the year GENEE % = (307)
At 31 December M®12A31H 20,135 19,338

Impairment under IFRS 9 for the year ended 31 December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by product
type and customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

EUBR BT 75 2R & 2E Bl 9% IH T L 2 20184F
12831 H I F/ZH76E

MERE B BRYRAREEBETRED
W UTEBEHEEEIE -  BERDE
RBEEUBEEANNZEAZP S A
(BNERER - BPERIRFR)MEEA
HETE - ZATERMNSRE BHAESMNE
BBESEM - &R AR R EAR R TE
BIE A RAISEER -

TG R4 B R R R B
R 5B HER AR -

Past due
B

1to6 6 months 1 year Over
months to1year to3years 3 years Total
1268 6EAZIF 1235 HBE3F st

Expected credit loss rate BHEEEERNX 0.1% 0.2% 0.5% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BRE#AZE(ARETT) 5,745 1,063 - 20,127 26,935

Expected credit losses (RMB'000) TEHRZ Ef51E
(ANR®ETFT) 6 2 - 20,127 20,135
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 FZ & MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2B ERIERERE A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M =

31 December 2018
2018%12H31H

29.

30.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
Impairment under IAS 39 for the year ended 31 December 2017

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables, which was measured based on incurred credit
losses under IAS 39, as at 31 December 2017 was a provision
for individually impaired trade receivables of RMB19,338,000
with a gross carrying amount before provision of approximately
RMB27,329,000.

The individually impaired trade receivables as at 31 December
2017 related to customers that were in financial difficulties or were
in default in both interest and/or principal payments and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

The carrying amounts of the remaining trade receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

29.

30.

FEWL & 5 7RI ()

B @ E B E 3945 IE N 22017 F 12
HA31H IFF/EHEE

R2017%F 128318 » LiiiREEE &5
AERIE35IB N EEAEEEEEMNE
WE SFIBRIRERES - BIEERIRE
E’Jﬁ’ﬂﬁl%ﬂ% RIE B 4 AR %519,338,000

CRERENE S RIEREN R AE
m%)\ﬂ%z? 329,0007T °

362017¢12H31 B @R ENEKE

Iﬁﬁiﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬂ‘kl%&ﬂﬁkﬂ E)Si/&
zl&ﬁﬁ R EE AR FEEEIS D EWE
%/T/\IE\TL/\L&@ ©

AREER TR AR RME HO B B U
B{EHH ) ﬁH&ﬁme?‘@KEﬂﬁ
B -

A RKIE
BE

HRIBFRE
REE P

Hit W RER E M

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
20184 20174
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBEFIT
Non-current assets ERFEE
Prepayments TERSRIA 424,646 357,358
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments TERFRIA 587,427 480,512
Deposits and other receivables e R E b EREIE 2,806,770 2,676,703
Loan to a third party BT —RE=ZANER 10,000 70,000
3,404,197 3,227,215
Impairment of other receivables H fth FE W R IERE (21,352) (17,561)
3,382,845 3,200,654

The loan to a third party of RMB10,000,000 (2017: RMB70,000,000)
bears interest at 10% per annum and is repayable in two and a
half months.
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

30.PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 30.Fa{JZ1E - HittEWZE R E#b

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

OTHER ASSETS (continued)

The balances due from related companies included in the above
are as follows:

BEW®
EXCTE RN 2 RS R T

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

20184 20174

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

Associates i NN 147,681 87,802

Fellow subsidiaries EEJ)EVNG] 213,240 238,978

Non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries /& A &8 3EFE A% IR 507,555 408,351
A company significantly influenced by —REXARAEE

a director of the Company E:WN-7Z JS0UNC] 487,138 516,013

1,355,614 1,251,144

Included in the balances due from associates is an amount of
RMB147,502,000 due from Commercial City which includes
the loan amount of RMB138,306,821 (31 December 2017:
RMB75,660,000) and the related interest payable. The loan
bears interest at 6.5% per annum and is repayable in one year.
During the year, the interest income generated from the loans was
RMB8, 182,000 (2017: RMB3,266,000).

Included in the balances due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries is an amount of RMB399,933,400 (31 December 2017:
RMB399,933,400). The loan bears interest at 10.5% per annum
and is repayable in one year. During the year, the interest income
generated from the loans was RMB39,508,000.

The remaining balances due from associates and other related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2018, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets were in Stage 1,
and a provision for impairment of RMB21,352,000 was provided.
Details of impairment assessment of financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 44.

The carrying amounts of the remaining other receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to other debtors for whom
there was no recent history of default.

FEUREE & N RlaE P BIEEN R ER 2 &
5 AR 147 502,0007T © £ BIFEER
&% A R1#138,306,8217C (20175 12 A
31H : AR¥75,660,0007T) M FE{S 8
B - BEFIRFFNER65%E  BAR
—FRER - FA - BEREAENF B
ABAREES 182,0007T (20174 : AR
3,266,0007T) °

FEUR BT B A Rl RO FEFEAR IR R 45 e P B 45
4 %8 A R 399,933,400 (20174 12 A
31H : AR#¥399,033,4007T) - B Ri%
FRRI105%HE - BBER—FRNER -
FRN - BERMEENFBRABARE
39,508,0007T °

JE Wbt 2 B) e ELA RRESE R BISNIARIER T
BB MBI - B RN EREEE -

MN2018FE 12 A31H » st AFER A -
HERRELEMNEENSREER
RE—BE  BiRAEEBEBEARE
21,352,0007T ° B ##E E£20184F 12 A 31
BIEFERTATEMNRIE - EMbEUERIE R
HEmEEMNSREERNREGEFBIR
Bi3E44.

AR B ER TR A BB O TR R B A FE MR IR R
BEREAT N BB RN ROES
ABR -
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B M =

31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

31.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 31.H&RRESEEYURIKEER

DEPOSITS
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
20185 20175
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Cash and bank balances e MIRITES 3,304,911 1,456,783
Time deposits EHEH 201,948 310,322
3,506,859 1,767,105
Less: Pledged bank balances for construction 3 : AR ITIZEMNRTES
in progress (106,666) (137,475)
Pledged time deposits for housing AEE AR ETHEAN
fund loans THER (53,719) (11,132)
Pledged bank balances for mortgages BRI AR TR (31,563) (14,915)
Pledged bank balances for bank loans ARITEFERRRTER (10,000) (135,000)
Pledged time deposit for bank RRITAR ERE R
acceptance bills THER = (11,800)
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 3,304,911 1,456,783
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits AEBERR e RASSEMUARERTER
were denominated in the following currencies: THATHIEEESR -
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
20185 20175
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARBFT
RMB AR 3,495,967 1,724,400
Hong Kong dollar BT 5,138 7,434
United States dollar =TT 5,725 35,262
Great British pound s 10 9
Singapore dollar rngo 19 -

3,506,859 1,767,105
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

31.

32.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB3,495,967,000
(31 December 2017: RMB1,724,400,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one month and six months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
time deposit rates. The bank balances and bank deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

31.

32.

BERBESEEYURBHFER
(%)

HERSHR  AEEUARKIED
He MiR1THE % A AR 3,495,967,000
T (2017 F12 A 31 H : AR
1,724,400,0007T) - ARBE LB R H B
REMER - KM - B BRE(NE
EIBIEF) RCLEE - EERNEEER
EY AEEEEBBIEREETINESE
ERRITIEARE S ABEMER -

RITHSRRE RRITFARN ERRIEH
B o EMERHRNF1=6EA TS -
BEAREBENEERSFRME - WA
& ) TE HA T SR R BRERA 8. = SRTTAEERAN
RITFAREFALHLERRSL - FER
SFEYIRTTAR ©

BENESRERE

BN B ZFRRRBEREHRRERA
HERER DTN -

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

201845 20174

12831H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Within 90 days 90KRLAR 3,211,374 2,298,222
91 to 180 days 91K E180K 133,195 117,409
181 to 360 days 181K ZE360K 152,632 130,795
Over 360 days 360K A £ 260,628 407,065
3,757,829 2,953,491

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled within 90 days.

The Group’s bills payable amounted to RMB678,700,000 as at 31
December 2018 (31 December 2017: RMB18,000,000).

ENESHIEAREE  —RNIORNE

8o

R2018F12H31H » AEBEMENEE
A AR #678,700,0007T (201712 A 31
B AR®18,000,0007T) °
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B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

33.DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 33.28Wi#%¢ - Bt ERARHMES

PAYABLES =hig
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
20185 20175
12A31H 12A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE AR®T T ARETT
Contract liabilities SHBEE (a) 4,606,115 -
Deferred revenue ELEWA 114,158 2,549,296
Deposits received Blize 628,865 527,278
Accrued operating lease rental expenses  TEIREET SR YT 89,728 76,006
Accrued utilities TBIR A AR 26,221 36,129
Accrued liabilities TERRER 160,102 140,817
Accrued staff costs BIREEFRY 52,159 65,063
Provision for coupon liabilities W5 aERE 87,911 137,036
Value-added tax and other tax payables IBER K E A FE N R TE 309,407 297,639
Payables for construction ERTEENFE 1,553,899 1,804,407
Loans from a fellow subsidiary RA—BRZENBARRBANZKE (b 139,219 388,573
Loan from a company significantly AXARAREEERATEN
influenced by a director of the Company RNAfEARER (b) 491,495 408,902
Loans from the non-controlling shareholders ] — &1 Fi B A ) EH2 A%
of a subsidiary R EAHER (b) 156,530 156,530
Other payables H A ERRIR (c) 838,240 995,998
9,254,049 7,583,674
Notes: MFE

(a) Upon adoption of IFRS 15, the balance of deferred revenue of
RMB4,606,115,000 were reclassified to contract liabilities. Details of
contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018 are as

(a) FRABBRMBHREENE155HE - BERA
A AR 4,606,115,000TEFH DB AAH
B & - P2018F 12531 H K2018F151H

follows: REHNAEFBENT
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
2018%12H31H 20181 H1H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBEFTT
Sale of properties HeEEE 3,299,401 1,251,040
Sale of repaid card HEREMNF 1,306,714 1,148,665
Total contract liabilities afaEast 4,606,115 2,399,705

Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver properties and
presale of prepaid cards. The increase in contract liabilities in 2018 was
mainly due to the increase in short-term advances received from customers
in relation to the sale of properties at the end of the year.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % B IZR B R A )

AHBEBERERR T YERBE AN RUE
RIEAR - 2018 F AN ABEREIEARTFR
MEEMERRNE PR RGN -
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

33.DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 33.8BWix4d - B EEA R HipEHS
PAYABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

The balances due to related companies included in the above are as
follows:

FIR ()
FiiEE : ()

(b)

FEAEXHEN BB AR AR

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

PINEESPIZESREN 2017412 A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARETT

Associates i /NS 453 153

Fellow subsidiaries BEIGIEINGT 149,886 390,957

A non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary — M A B A FEFEAR AR R 156,530 156,530
Companies significantly influenced by a director TN EEBEATE

of the Company 491,495 408,902

798,364 956,542

Included in the balances due to fellow subsidiaries is an amount
of RMB139,219,000 (31 December 2017: RMB240,778,000) which
includes the loans from Maoye Department Store Investment Limited of
RMB70,397,000 and RMB63,885,000 and the related interest payable. The
loans of RMB70,397,000 and RMB63,885,000 bear interest at 3.24% and
3.29% per annum, respectively, and are repayable in one year. During
the year, the loan interest expenses amounbted to RMB9,506,000 (2017:
RMB43,818,000).

Included in the balance due to companies significantly influenced
by a director of the Company is an amount of RMB491,495,000 (31
December 2017: RMB408,902,000) which includes a loan amounting
to RMB200,000,000 and the related interest and penalty payable. The
loan bears interest at 8.79% per annum and an interest penalty at
0.05% per day. During the year, the loan interest and penalty expenses
were RMB17,833,000 and RMB46,273,000 (2017: RMB 17,833,000 and
RMB45,552,000), respectively.

The remaining balances due to related companies are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and will generally be mature
within one year.

(€

EHRAMBARAGEHFTREARE
139,219,0007C (2017 12 A31H : AR
240,778,00070) * ZeHBERBEXETER
BEERAAIRHERARE70,397,0007T &
AR #63,885,0007T & FETHERBIF B - B
AR #70,397,0007T & A R #63,885,0007T
D REFF|FT3.24% K%3.29%5TE - BAR
—FEBRE - £ BRELNTEH
¥ B ANR9,506,0007T (20174« AR
43,818,0007T) °

BNSARRREEERATENAREHBTE
EARM491,495,0007T(2017F12A31H -
AR 408,902,000T) *+ ZeBERIEER
A B #200,000,0007T X F& 1+ F BA F B & 57
& o BFRIEFEF KRG 79% B M EFKXK0.05%
B - TR BERFBERESIEDRA
A R # 17,833,000 70 & A R # 46,273,000
JL(20174F « AR ¥ 17,883,000t K A RHE
45,552,0007T) °

FERT AR A RSSO T BB D REIER - 2
B RERFEE -

HMBENFARARE » —RR—FREIH -
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31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

34.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER 34.5tER{ITERREMMER

BORROWINGS
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
2018512A31H 20174128318
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRAI= ERFI%
(%) HER  AR%TR (%) I8 ARETR
Current il
Interest-bearing bank SFEBTER
loans - secured -HHE 3.59-7.90 2019 3,300,341 3.59-7.00 2018 4,608,376
Current portion of long term REGEBRIERN
interest-bearing bank ENEER
loans - unsecured —BER - - - 4,00 2018 481,263
Current portion of a corporate A aIESEIANEHH
bond - unsecured (a) —&if#(a) 4,50 2019 1,710,955 - - -
Current portion of long term REGTEBIERN
interest-bearing bank EDEE S
loans - secured ~EHH 5.15-7.01 2019 2,072,125 4.66-6.83 2018 1,103,326
Other borrowings - secured HipEF—AHR - - - 590 2018 569,970
USD senior note - secured ERAZE-BER = = = 7.00 2018 1958,697
7,083,421 8,721,632
Non-current FEEDE
Non-current portion of interest-  sHE8R{TE ZHEENER
bearing bank loans - secured By-HHEA 5.15-7.01 2020-2033 9,621,850 5.10-8.50 2019-2032 9,322,502
Corporate bond - unsecured (a) A AlEH—EK#(a) 450 2021 3,020 450 2021 1,694,889
USD senior note - unsecured (b)  ETEEZE - EEH (D) 13.25 2020 1,533,632 - - -
11,158,502 11,017,391
18,241,923 19,739,023
KRR TLT 1@ 31 December
2018 2017
20184 20174
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT
Analysed into: DU ¢
Bank and other loans repayable: RITREAMEEEER
Within one year —FR 7,083,421 8,721,631
In the second year WNE—F 6,191,002 2,800,849
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZFE2EAF(ZEREAN) 3,142,000 6,982,543
Beyond five years PRFE 1,825,500 1,234,000
18,241,923 19,739,023
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

34.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

On 6 January 2016, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha completed the issuance
of a corporate bond with a total principal amount of RMB1,100,000,000
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC. The corporate bond carries
interest at 4.0% per annum, payable annually on 5 January in arrears,
and has a term of up to 3 years at maximum. On 27 December 2017,
Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha redeemed part of the corporate bond with a
principal amount of RMB618,619,000 from the open market. There was no
gain or loss from the redemption. On 5 January 2018, Shenzhen Maoye
Shangsha redeemed part of the corporate bond with a principal amount of
RMB457,735,000 from the open market. There was no gain or loss from the
redemption.

The carrying amount of the corporate bond at 31 December 2018 was
RMB23,404,000.

On 6 January 2016, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha completed the issuance of
another corporate bond with a total principal amount of RMB1,700,000,000
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC. The corporate bond carries
interest at 4.5% per annum, payable annually on 5 January in arrears,
and has a term of up to 5 years at maximum. The bond is embedded with
a right for the issuer to adjust par interest rate and a right for investors to
repurchase the bond at the end of the third year.

The carrying amount of the corporate bond at 31 December 2018 was
RMB1,690,571,000.

On 27 September 2018, the Company issued a senior note with principal
amount of US$150,000,000 (the “2018 Senior Note I"). The 2018 Senior
Note | bears interest at 13.25% per annum, payable semi-annually on 27
March and 27 September, and will mature on 27 September 2020, unless
redeemed earlier. The offering price is 100% of the principal amount.
The carrying amount of the 2018 Senior Note at 31 December 2018 was
RMB1,034,277,000.

On 27 October 2018, the Company issued a senior note with principal
amount of US$100,000,000 to be consolidated with the 2018 Senior Note
| (the “2018 Senior Note II"). The 2018 Senior Note Il bears interest at
13.25% per annum, payable semi-annually on 27 March and 27 September,
and will mature on 27 September 2020, unless redeemed earlier. The
offering price is 100% of the principal amount. On 14 November 2018 and
17 November 2018, the Company redeemed part of the 2018 Senior Note
II'with a total principal amount of RMB191,996,000 from the open market.
There was no gain or loss from the redemption. The carrying amount of the
2018 Senior Note Il at 31 December 2018 was RMB499,355,000.

The 2018 Senior Note | and the 2018 Senior Note Il are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

4. ERITERK

H &R (&

MG

()

#2016 F1A6H - FIKEFERPE L
BEHFRGNERETASBEAARYE
1,100,000,0007C ) A EIfES ° A RIEFIEF
FEA40%:ME - REF1ASEXM - B&AK
HABR A3 - 2017412 278 @ FIIKE
PERARMIBIUALEEARKE18,619,000
TR S A RIES o Ml R K EEE AR
REIE - 20181 A5  FIIEEEER
’D\ﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬂ%bﬂiﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬂw 735,000 CEE Al

I ARIES - BRIAREETAUREREE -

20185 12A31H » &
R #23,404,0007T °

AEAFHNEREEERA

M2016F1A6H  FIKERENFT R LE
BERGMERBETR—HASBEAEAR
#1,700,000,0007CH R BIESH © A RIEFHIZ
FREL5%EHE - REF1ASEYN - B&

AHRBEF - EHEBETANRBRE@A
KR - REREENE=FFERAIBEIE

FHORER

K2018%F 128318 » ARIEHFHEAEAA
R #1,690,571,0007T °

PR2018F9HA27H » RRFRIET— I ASHE
%44150,000,0003 T 1B 7 =% ([ 2018 F
BEERI]) - Z2018F B EEZHIRFH X
13.25%:8 » M3A27TER9A2TEEH¥4E
TR BRIERATER - & AR 20205F
9QR27AE|H - BE1TER100% A& o 1N
201812 A31H * Z2018F B EHEMER
E{E{E A ARE1,034,277,0007T °

MR2018F10H27H * RRRIEITES— A&
%44100,000,0003 7T 1 {E 7 =15 ([ 2018 F
BEZEEN]) - H1A2018FEELEEI - 2018
FEREZRINRERR13.25%:T 8 - R3A27
EI&QHNEEiEiH W BRIERRIIE

» AR 20209 A27 A BIHF © %’f‘%f‘f
7/%100%2K$%‘E 201811 A14H & 2018
FURAI7TEARBAIR A ARMMGER AN A5
B AR #191,996,000 7T B 3 59 2018 F & %t
ZRI - BRIAREERZHEE - R2018F
12A31H ' 2018 F EAERBINEmMERBA
AR #499,355,0007T °

2018 F B L ZEINM2018FEALZIBNERE
BARXSMERAR LM -
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31 December 2018
2018%12H31H

34.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(c) Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

(i) certain land and buildings of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB3,171,431,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB2,841,756,000);

(i) certain investment properties of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB7,693,131,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB5,283,735,000);

(iii) certain land lease prepayments of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB409,306,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB1,219,418,000);

(iv) certain properties under development of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB704,348,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB149,646,000); and

(v) certain stocks of Maoye Commercial with carrying amount of
RMB6,002,401,000, ZJBC with carrying amount of RMB1,320,401,000
and Bank of Chengdu with carrying amount of RMB103,036,000.
And certain equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income with carrying amount of RMB762,660,000.

In addition, Zhongzhao, Shenzhen Maoye Group, Maoye Commercial,
Shenzhen Maoye Investment, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha, Shenzhen
Hezhengmao Investment, Mr. Huang Mao Ru and Mrs. Huang
Jingzhang (spouse of Mr. Huang Mao Ru), have guaranteed certain of
the Group’s bank loans up to RMB8,585,540,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB5,215,125,000) as at the end of the reporting year.

(d) Except for the 13.25% unsecured USD senior notes of RMB1,533,632,000
(81 December 2017: RMB1,958,697,000) and the 3.59% secured bank
loan of RMB80,840,000 (31 December 2017: RMB83,591,000) which are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, all borrowings are in RMB.

(e) Except for bank loans with a carrying amount of RMB10,352,488,000 (31
December 2017: RMB13,351,624,000) at fixed interest rates, all borrowings
bear interest at floating interest rates.

The Group had the following undrawn banking facilities at the year end:

4. FTERITER K EMLER®)

fieE - ()

(©

REBOETRITERBIA T EEEIR -

() 2&EEBREEFEHNAARE
3,171,431,0007C(20174 123318 : A
R#2,841,756,0007T ) W T+ ity 2 48
F

iy "EEBEEBDFEHDAEARE
7,693,131,0007T (20174124310 = A
R #5,283,735,00070) (#E TR E 14D
EN

(i) AEBEBREEFEHNAARE
409,306,0007C (2017412 A31H : A
K#1,219,418,00070) W& F i fAE
TR

vy A EBEEFEOHDAARE
704,348,0007C (2017412 A31 8 = A
R¥#149,646,0007L) A TEHERY
¥k

(v) TREBE - PRIGEIRKAEITERER
B 5 7 A AR ¥ 6,002401,000 7T -
A R ¥ 1320401000 T & A R
103,036,000 L& TR - REREE
A ANR762,660,000THE THEE A
DAREEFEBHES AL BEE
W R E -

BEAN  RBEFER - P FIEKEE
) - RERE - FIKERE - RKED
B ORNEEREE BRmEEFRFL
T(ERNEENRE) BAEERSAARE
8,585,540,0007T (2017412 A31H : AR
5,215,125,0007T) 80 T ERITE IR HIER -

B A R #1,533,632,0007T (2017 4 12 A 31
H @ AR#10958697,0007T) #)13.25% &
WA EITLE TR B & AR 80,840,000 7T
(20174124318 : AK#83,591,0007T)4)
3.59% F IMFRITERAB LA © BT A
EBEREBARE -

% AR {E A A R ¥ 10,352,488,0007T (2017
F12A318 : AR#13,351,624,0007T ) K
IRITERIREE MR BIN - FIEERER
FEFREE o

FR - REEFETIIAERNRITRERE

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018%F12A31H 20174 12A318
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T T AREFT

Amount of undrawn banking facilities WAFEANRITREEE

1,410,000 727,373

206 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % 3 B FRE R B R A &)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F /& 4



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

35. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS

35. RN EF B 1E

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

20184 20174

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTF T ARBFIT

Defined benefit obligations REBHEML 9,049 8,944
Long-term retirement benefits REGRIKAER] 11 59
Less: current portion of retirement benefits J&, : —&F A ZE T HIRIKET] (812) (870)
8,248 8,133

The Group and the Company provide certain of the eligible staff
with post-retirement benefits pursuant to a retirement benefit plan.
The plan is funded solely by the Group on an actual payment
basis.

The latest actuarial valuation of the plan was carried out on 31
December 2018 by the Willis Towers Watson Company, using the
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

AREE KA RN AR AR &R A 15
) B TIREURKTER - T8l A
SEREREHEERMES

5T &) 89 &% ¥ 48 B 4 (B & | Willis Towers
Watson Company 2018412 431 H{E
FRIEEBEM EEREMEEEE -

RIREBIRATERAN E ERBERZEHTI
T~

31 December

31 December

Discount rate (%) IR R (%)

2018 2017
20185 20174
12A31H 12A31H
3.25% 4.00%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at
31 December 2018 is shown below:

Increase in
rate%

L= EH%

Discount rate PR = 0.25%

R2018%F12A31H » EARENTEER
RREDIPRUT ¢

Increase in
net defined
benefit
obligation
REBH
EEFEEM

decrease in
net defined
benefit
obligation
REBH
BEEFERED

Decrease in
rate %

L= T %

(186) 0.25% 194

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on
a method that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period.

HlSRE SRR E BRENHRE B
REENSEEHHATENELFEZ
AN T AMAETE ©
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20184512 H31H

35. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

35. 3R KR I 4 ()

REFABERR REA2ERERERNE

The total expenses recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in respect of the plan are as follows:

Bt T

KFE TN 1@ 31 December
2018 2017
20184 20174
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Interest cost FLER R 34 350
Net benefit expenses B FEE 34 350
Recognized in finance costs TRRLE AL ANFE R 341 350
The movements in the present value of the defined benefit AERANEENBEZZOT -
obligations are as follows:
2017
20174
RMB’000
ARBTFT
At 1 January W1 A1H 8,944 9,003
Interest cost FLE A A 341 350
Pension payments made ERKE (919) (847)
Benefit expenses recognized in other P ELMh 2 E W R FERR Y
comprehensive income B 683 438
At 31 December »12HA31H 9,049 8,944
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35.PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)  35. B {K{ERIE & (&)

The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value REBMNEERTEEEA L BEEEWN
of plan assets are as follows: I
2017 20174
Pension cost charged to proft or loss Remeasurement gains in other comprefensive income
STARRMEKERE AR ENENEREYE
Actuarial
changes Sub-otal
arising from ncluded
Sub-tota changes in other
1January Net included in Beneft infinanciel Bxperience  comprehensive 31 December
017 nterest ~ profitor loss pad  assumptions  adustments income 017
REHRR
RooirE A 2L FARMEE  RanE

1A HERE BEMIME  SMEH BRET  SRER MEGNE 1ANE
RWBOD  RWBOO  RWBOMD  RWBON  RWBOD  RVBOO  RMBOO VB
ARETT  ARETL  ARRTR  ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Defned beneft obliations RERHER 9,003 30 30 847) 43 - 3% 8944
Benefi iabilty G 9,003 30 30 847) 1% - 4% 894
2018 201845

Pension cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains in other comprehensive income
TARRMEK AR TARRRENRNENRYE
Actuarial
changes Sub-total
arising from included
Sub-total changes in in other

1 January Net ~includedin Benefit financial  Experience comprehensive 31 December

218 interest profit or loss paid  assumptions  adjustments income 2018
RAHER

HaoteE ifA RERFLY TARMRE  Raoie

1818 HERE  BRENNGE EfvEA RS SRE  UENTE 12831A

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARRTr ARBTx ARBTz ARRBIx

Defined beneft obligations RERMERE 8,04 Kl K1) (19 683 - 663 9049

Benefit iabilty Eiak 8,944 k0 k| (919) 683 = 683 9,049
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2018%12H31H

36.ISSUED CAPITAL

36.ERITRAE

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

20185 20174
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBFT

Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
5,140,326,000 5,140,326,000/%

(31 December 2017: 5,140,326,000) (2017412 A31H : 5,140,326,000/% )

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREE10E T AR 514,033 514,033
Equivalent to RMB’000 FEARETTT 460,153 460,153

During the year, there was no movement in issued capital.

37.RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 82 to 83 of the financial
statements.

(i) Contributed surplus

On 12 June 2015, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha, Shenzhen
Demao Investment Enterprises (Limited Partnership) and
Shenzhen Hezhengmao Investment Enterprise (Limited
Partnership) (collectively, the “Vendors”) entered into a
framework agreement and a compensation agreement with
Maoye Commercial that the Vendors agreed to sell the
entire issued share capital of Shenzhen Maoye Department
Store Company Limited, Shenzhen Maoye Department
Store Shennan Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Maoye Oriental Times
Department Store Co., Ltd., Zhuhai City Maoye Department
Store Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Maoye Department Store
Huagiangbei Co., Ltd. (the “Target Entities”) to Maoye
Commercial at a total consideration of 1,161,542,889 shares of
Maoye Commercial.
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37. %%

AEBRAEN EF 2 RESEIEHN
MEMRFCEBAZ AR EPRE
5I) o

(i) BHRAE

M2015E6 128  FINKEEE -
FEEEECE(BRAEE) LRI
BERBECX(ERER) (BEA
[ZEER|)EXERET LIERD
ZhHERE NAEEZSEAF
EMEEFELERIEZETEER
AR RV TEEABEFHEAERA
A RYTERERSBEREEERA
A BTN ERERRAT R
EEBEZERILERAG(BESRE
B2 BITHRA  EREA
1,161,542,889/ X M 1p -
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37.RESERVES (continued) 37. & (#)

BRDE(E)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

According to the special audited accounts of the Target
Entities for the year ended 31 December 2017 audited by
Ruihua Certified Public Accounts, the total net profits of the
Target Entities amounted to approximately RMB762,212,400,
without taking into account the effect of non-operating gains
and losses. The amount was lower than the 2017 Profit
Guarantee by RMB17,009,800. Therefore, the 2017 Profit
Guarantee has not been met. According to the compensation
agreement, Maoye Commercial should be entitled to
repurchase 8,479,892 compensation shares at the cost of
RMB1 from the Vendors, representing approximately 0.73% of
the total consideration shares (“the Repurchase”).

However, the resolution to the Repurchase was not approved
by the shareholders of Maoye Commercial at the shareholders’
meeting held on 9 April 2018. Accordingly, on 17 May 2018,
pursuant to the terms of the compensation agreement, the
compensation shares of 8,479,892 should be transferred
from the Vendors, respectively, to the shareholders of
Maoye Commercial (other than the Vendors) as listed on
the shareholders’ register of Maoye Commercial as of the
close of trading on 27 March 2018, in proportion to their then
shareholding in Maoye Commercial, for no consideration. The
carrying amount of Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha’s investment
in the compensation shares of 7,980,979 was recognized as
a deduction of the contributed surplus. Upon completion of
such transfers, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha’s shareholding
in Maoye Commercial has decreased from 1,414,838,703
to 1,406,857,724 shares, representing a decrease in the
percentage of shareholding from 81.69% to 81.23%.

(ii) Statutory surplus reserve

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current year and the prior year are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 82
to 83 of the financial statements.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiary of the Group is required to allocate 10% of its profit
after tax to the statutory surplus reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiary.
Subject to certain restrictions set out in the PRC Company
Law, part of the statutory surplus reserve may be converted to
increase paid-up capital/issued capital of the PRC subsidiary,
provided that the remaining balance after the capitalisation is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

(i) Contributed surplus (continued) (i)

(ii)

BERESTMEBEZBEE
BREZE2017F12A31 B L FE
LEIZEE © BIZERFFBEEY
A AR 762,212,400 7 (5B 3E&
EHBmFE)  SEENR2017F
BFRMRE - BE AR 17,009,800
7T o At - 2017 FEBAR B K iE
o IRIBHEDR  RERESBHE
BARBATHKAEZEEHDE
8,479,802 ER K © HIMHARE
B 150.73% ([ ZE#E ) -

A ZOEBRRAZRRL REXE
AR N 20184 A9 R 8 1THY
fR AR e EHfE o At - R20184F
5178  BEHEHRKER @
8 B% 17 8,479,892 f% 15 LA & K B #%
R2018F3A27THX FERE K E
GEXIEERIF EEGELEESD
BRE(ZEBEFTGRIN ERFRXES
ENRELIERSEFDRIEE
FZEMRE o 747,980,979 A% 7 B A%
HARFERYIEERERENREER
BREEHRBORIE -2 SHE:E
TkE O RYEERERKEEE
Z R E H1,414,838, 703/ A &
1,406,857, 724 1% + A& R H5 A% L
F181.69% N[£%81.23% °

EEBBRAE
AEERKER FF2 EBERE
BRI HRE TR FEB2ELIA ZirAE
BnEHKRET -

REHBEIRFNE - ANEE T BN
DA AR E R R R A 2 10% E
EEBBAE  BEZABEITH
BB A~ AL M AR AR 2 50% © RIEH
REVEM# 2 ETRS] - BIEER
PHRNERBRIEMEB A RNBREE
A/BBETRA - ERNMORBED
B EMBAR 225%
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20184512 H31H

38.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38.#%& R & RERMHT
CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

METBHELEENED

2018
20185
Loans from
Bank and usp afellow  Dividend Interest
other loans  Senior note  subsidiary payable payable  Accruals Total
BIEES
RITR it WEAR
BER  BARE BANER  EARE  EMNE  EHRE a5t
RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2018 R2018%1R1R 17,780,326 1,958,697 388,573 - 148,012 - 20,275,608
Changes from financing cash flows  REBAB ST EHES (1,073,004) (425065  (180501)  (177,548) (1,214,756)  (119,922) (3,191,696)
Interest expense 5 1,869 - - - 1,008,319 - 1,010,188
2017 final dividend D17ERERS - - - 177,548 - - 177,548
Non-controling interests JERAR R RS - - - - - 119,922 119,922
Interest capitalised S &R - - - - 246,864 - 246,864
At 31 December 2018 #2018%125831R 16,708,291 1,533,632 208,072 - 188,439 - 18,638,434
2017
0175
Loans from
Bank and Usb afellow Dividend Interest
otherloans  Senior note subsidiary payable payable Total
AAZ
BITR e MBAR
HihER BERE  BANER ERRE RS @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2017 12017615818 17,626,305 1,530,087 1,237,497 - 158,357 20,552,246
Changes from financing cash flows ~ RERERERENEE 146,483 428,610 (848,924) (13341)  (1189423)  (1,476,595)
Interest expense FlERS 7538 - - - 917,078 924,616
2016 final dividend 0165 RERE - - - 13,341 - 13,341
Interest capitalised MEERL - - - - 262,000 262,000
At 31 December 2017 R2017%125318 17,780,326 1,958,697 388,573 - 148,012 20,275,608
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2018412A31H

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

39. RREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

On 14 December 2011, Taizhou First Department Store Co., Ltd.
(“Taizhou First”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into the
Property Lease Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Liyang Fenglian
Property Development Co., Ltd. GEZ LB E £ ERE GE 2 7))
(“Fenglian Company”), pursuant to which, Taizhou First will rent the
property of Fenglian Company to operate Maoye Department Store
Liyang Pingling Square Branch (52 8 5 &5 FEE%H)E) (‘Liyang
Store”). On 19 December 2014, Fenglian Company filed a lawsuit
at the Changzhou Intermediate People’s Court (& M T # & A RS
Bt ) (the “Court”) over the unilateral termination of the Agreement
by Taizhou First. On 17 July 2018, Fenglian Company amended
its litigation claims, requiring an order that Taizhou First shall pay a
property use fee of RMB81,126,129, a rental loss of RMB14,316,376,
a commercial service fee of RMB239,700 and interest from 1
February 2012 to 30 November 2014.

On 28 November 2018, the Court adjudicated that the lease
agreement and supplemental lease agreement entered into
between the two parties were terminated on 30 November 2014
and that Taizhou First shall compensate Fenglian Company for the
use of its property in the amount of RMB66,611,996, the interest
from 1 December 2014 to the date of full settlement which shall be
calculated at the prevailing lending rate stipulated by the People’s
Bank of China, and the handling fee relating to the case. The court
judgment also rejected the other litigation claims from Fenglian
Company. Both Taizhou First and Fenglian Company appealed
against the court judgment.

Upon consulting with the external counsel, the management of
the Company is of the view that Taizhou First exercised its right by
closing the store in advance, instead of committing a breach of the
Agreement. The trial is still in progress and the management of the
Company is unable to estimate the potential loss or gain from the
case at the present stage.

MR2011F12814 8 » XEBE 2 F 27
ZME—BEHERDERRA (AT
M EMN—F ) REGEMEEERE
ERARI(ATEBE 8B AT ]) &5
(EERERZ)) (U THEEHE]) - @
TIN—BAAHLEATERRANKE K
X¥AERGTFRESE(ATEEES
JE1) - 2014125198 » L8 QA LA
FIN—BEFEERBEAEBRRBEMT
AR ARARIRE R - 201847
A17BE B RGBSR - ERHS - T
—AX 201242 A1HE20144%11 830
H#EE £ A ERMB81,126,1297T -
£ B 5RMB14,316,376 7T * B9 X RBE &
RMB239,7007T &2 I &. o

ZEFFATA2018EE 11 A28 H HLS — & 4
REINTTAR R AREREAE S E R
E AR BEN2014E 11 B30B @ -
ZMN—ERELYHR AR EEEFER AN
& FARMB66,611,9967T * B2014512 A1
AREPBRARRBITRBERFEFES
HEZBIENFBAREGHRETFES -
RO QAR MRSk - TM—E R
WHE N R RAR—F IR - WHBERE
gﬁ o

EENATSBRNER  ANEEER
BN — B RA SR TR - L3
—BHROBIES - MREAREAZ
BRE - —FHRMKLN AR EEE
R 1 B S B A RS S B A
it o
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31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) As lessor

40. REHEZHE
(a) EAHAA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 18)
and subleases its leased assets under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from
one to fourteen years.

The Group had total future minimum lease receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as
follows:

REERBESEHEZHEHREY
2 (WE18) R ABEAYE - HEM
BN F1FEN45F -

AEBRBEBPRIN NIIFRE
HEO D R RUH AR S TR AY Y R R A KA
EHOREENT

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
20184 20174

12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Within one year —F R 674,517 691,953
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZFRF(BEEENFEAN) 1,191,295 1,288,601
After five years HFIE 624,531 587,494

2,490,343 2,568,048

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its department stores and
office premises under non-cancellable operating lease RETEEEMERBRAEYE - %
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms EYMEROOBERBANF1FE14
ranging from one to fourteen years. Fo

(b) ERFEBEA
AEBRBETAEBECLROLHR

R EARIB T 51 R BR 2 B &0 A AT 4
HE L RN R REEENHEERK
BRI

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

20184 20174
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T

Within one year —F R 334,861 420,541
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EZFhF(BEEREMFLEA) 1,331,287 1,429,706
After five years hF% 2,178,355 2,524,595

3,844,503 4,374,842
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41. COMMITMENTS 41, &GE
In addition to the operating lease commitments as set out in note B L 3l B 3 40(b) AT 51 B9 45 & 70 49 F 58
40(b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments at Gh s KREBRBREFERE NHE KK
the end of the reporting year: ¥’

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

20184 20174
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT

Contracted, but not provided for, BT RIBFETA -
in respect of land and buildings BRVEREE 2,213,924 2,649,667

42.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42 BAEAXZEELER
BALANCES

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (@) R - BRI RS B35 Pt 32
financial statements, the Group had the following material SH0 - AL BT HET T NAE
transactions with related parties during the year: AR

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R AREFTL

(1) Recurring transactions (1) REMERS

Operating lease rental expenses charged by: THARWBNEEESHS

Shenzhen Maoye Group (i) & (vii) RINBEE (S B (i) & (vii) 27,082 25,909
Zhong Zhao Investment (Group) Limited FIKIRE (EE)ERAF

(i) & (vi) (i) & (vi) 19,790 19,790
Shenzhen Oriental Times Industry Co., Ltd. FIMEFERESEE

(i) & (vii) BRAF) & (vi) 75,891 75,891
Shenzhen Maoye Property Business Co., Ltd. YT Y EREER AT

(i) & (vil) (i) & (vil 7,565 7,566
Chongqing Maoye Real Estate Co., Ltd. EEXFHWEBRAF

(i) & (vil) (i) & (vi) 32,765 32,765

163,093 161,921

Management fee income from the operation REREERRNERERA

of department stores:
Wuxi Maoye Property Co., Ltd. Shopping EHREBEERRATENL
Centre Branch (i) & (viii) 2R A1) & (viil) 755 2,002

755 2,002
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

42.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42 BEA5X5HEER @)

BALANCES (continued)

(a) (continued)

(a) (&)

2018 2017
20185 20176
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
(2) Non-recurring transactions (2) FEEMRS
Loans to: BUTEFREER
Commercial City (ii) PSR i) 120,000 -
Victory Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. BSFIRBIERER DR\
(BZNREERBBRRF) (v) - 399,933
Mr. Zou Zhao Bin (vi) & (ix) SRR (Vi) & (%) 399,933 -
519,933 399,933
Repayment of loans by: UTEAEEN
Commercial City (ii) EEA() 66,000 112,646
Victory Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. HZ R ERERARAR(Y)
(B %FIREEREBRAT) (v) 399,933 200,000
465,933 312,646
Interest income on loans to: BUTEFREERNFIZWA
Commercial City (ii) [EEA() 8,182 3,266
Victory Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. ESTUREERERAF(v)
(#ZFIRERRBRRA) (v) - 26,148
Mr. Zou Zhao Bin (vi) & (ix) PRI A (vi) & (ix) 39,508 -
47,690 29,414
Loans from: BUTEEEANER :
Shenzhen Maoye Group (i) FIIZE(ER)() 223,000 -
Maoye Department Store Investment Limited REREREBRAFE ()& (x)
() & (x) 61,769 232,328
Maoye Group Limited (i) KEEEERAT () 144,370 -
429,139 232,328

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % B IZR B R A )
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31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

42.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42 55 HEER @)
BALANCES (continued)

(a) (continued) (a) (&)
2018 2017
20185 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
Repayment of loans to: BUTEFEEEN
Shenzhen Maoye Group (i) AYEE(RE) ) 316,224 1,081,252
Maoye Group Limited (i) REEBBRRF () 144,370 -
Maoye Department Store Investment Limited REBEREBRDA ()& (x)
(i) & (x) 149,046 -
609,640 1,081,252
Interest expense on loans from: BUTEFEAERNFSHY :
Shenzhen Maoye Group (i) AIEE(EE) () 1,632 35,947
Maoye Group Limited (i) EEEEERRA () 1,188 -
Maoye Department Store Investment Limited REBEREBRDOA () & (x)
() & (x) 7,028 5,995
9,848 41,942
Banking facilities guaranteed by: THBHAEROBTER
Shenzhen Maoye Group (i) & (xi) RINBE (R ED () & (xi) 1,780,000 1,469,500
Shenzhen Demao Investment Enterprises RIERRELE(BRAR) A
(Limited Partnership) & Shenzhen YIBIERIRBLE(BRAR (i)
Hezhengmao Investment Enterprise & (xi)
(Limited Partnership) (iii) & (xi) 50,000 35,000
Mr. Huang Mao Ru and Mrs. Huang ER A RRE T (KR RE
Jingzhang jointly and severally (iv) & (xi) A(iv) & (xi) 1,485,540 1,581,591
3,315,540 3,086,091
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31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

42.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42 BEHAERZEER @)

BALANCES (continued)

(a) (continued) (a) (&)

(iy They are fellow subsidiaries of the Company.
(iiy Commercial City is an associate of the Company.

(i) Shenzhen Demao Investment Enterprises (Limited
Partnership) and Shenzhen Hezhengmao Investment
Enterprise (Limited Partnership) are companies
significantly influenced by a director of the Company.

(iv) Mr. Huang Mao Ru is a director of the company.

(v) Victory Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. is a non-controlling
shareholder of Inner Mongolia Victory Commercial
(Group) Management Co., Limited, Maoye Commercial’s
subsidiary.

(vi) Mr. Zou Zhao Bin is a non-controlling shareholder of Inner
Mongolia Victory Commercial (Group) Management Co.,
Limited, Maoye Commercial’s subsidiary.

(vii) The operating lease rental expenses charged by the fellow
subsidiaries of the Company were determined based on
the underlying contracts as agreed between the Group
and these fellow subsidiaries.

(vii)The management fee income from the operation of a
department store was determined based on the underlying
contracts as agreed between the Group and the fellow
subsidiaries of the Company.

(ix) In January 2018, Mr. Zou Zhao Bin borrowed loans from
Shenzhen Department Store Co., Ltd with an aggregate
amount of RMB399,933,000, which bears interest at 10.5%
per annum. The loans are repayable in one year.

(x) The Group borrowed loans from Maoye Department
Store Investment Limited with the principal amounts
of RMB61,769,000 in July 2018, which bear interest of
7.00% per annum and have been repaid in September
2018. During the year, the Group repaid loans to Maoye
Department Store Investment Limited with the principal
amounts of RMB87,277,000, which bear interest of 3.29%
per annum.

(xi) Certain of the Group’s bank loans were guaranteed by a
fellow subsidiary of the Company, Mr. Huang Mao Ru and
Mrs. Huang Jingzhang jointly and severally.

(i) WERARBNRRMEAF -
(i) BERSARRFHEE AT -

(i) FIEERELE(ABAE)A
R ERRELE(BERAE)
HARAAREEEALENA
E—J o

(iv) EXMEERRRRIES -

(v) #ZFREZERERAB[EKE
BEMBRRARLGESMEE
Eﬁ%)*ﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁ?ﬁ@*%iﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂﬁ

(vi) BHEEEERKEBENE AR
ARGHHEZMEX(RE)ARA
A — R IFEACR -

(vii) A B[R Y B A s UL ER By 48
EHEFAIBREBEAEEHRZSE
@%WE@E%%%W@%%%
EO

(vill) B I2 B G JE i W B IR B IR A
BREAEEEARNRRRZMER
Al RAERE A KR

(ix) A20184F1 8 » GAM I ER *
JEEXEBEERARIBAER
% %A AR ¥ 399,933,000
TC O IRENERA05%ET R BR
BERHA—F -

(x) R2018%F7H » REEBHKXKER
EREERAGBAER  Ad
A ANREB1,769,0007T @ RFE
FE7.00%51 8+ WER20184F
QREE - FRN  AEBEMXE
BEREERAREEER &K
& E B ANREEST 277,0007T © #%
FRE3.20%5H 2. ©

(xi) ETAEBBRITERH KA
REWERMBAR - FXME
R REF LT HR RAERER o

The related party transactions in respect of items 42(a)(i) RIE EMRBIE14AE - B L3042(a)()
and 42(a)(ii) above also constitute connected transactions or K 42(a)(ii) B /Y BAES 75 22 5 INE R BE R
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A SRIFERBER S o

of the Listing Rules.
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

42.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42 55 HEER @)

BALANCES (continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related
parties as at the end of the reporting period are included in
note 30 and 33 to the financial statements.

(c) Compensation of key management

(b) BERAEETT HURMEBAER
RER B R s BR H AR U7 R (B
AR BRI M R AMIFEI0 /33 °

(c) EEEEAEHM

2017
20174
RMB’000
AREF T

e Mo
RIREF

Salaries and allowances
Retirement benefits

4,158 3,833
134 191

4,292 4,024

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8.

(d) Commitments with related parties

The Group leases certain of its department stores and office
premises from related parties under non-cancellable operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to fourteen years.

The Group had total future minimum lease payments to related
parties under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

E=MenE—SFHEHNM ST -

(d) E2RAEE S AR
AEBRBETTRECEHEL R
M HEETEER/EMHAE
Fr - MEMFELTE B1E145F -

RERERIEA T 51 R 2 B &9 A Al 5
SO R T AR RERE
HENRERWT -

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

20184 20174

12A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Within one year —FR 156,234 162,078
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZERF

(BIEEEMFENA) 622,591 544,676

After five years FHFEUE 1,468,701 1,514,240

2,247,526 2,220,994
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MYt

31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

43. cRMTENDSE
RIS IR SIS /T AR EEBESIR
JUNNE

2018 20185

Financial assets at FVPL
NAAEEFTEEHEE
TABRNEREE
Financial
assets at
amortised
cost

Designated

as such
upon initial
recognition

Equity
investments
designated

at FVOCI
UAAEE
GTEEHEE
STARMZE
WENEERE
RMB’000
ARBTT

Held for

SREE trading

Financial assets

BBERA
SR
SREE Eh
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  AR%®TR

Ra%
BREIEE
RMB’000
ARBTR

BIERS
RMB’000
ARBTR

Equity investments

HERURAEEFER

designated at FVOCI HEHFAELMZE
WammigsRE - - 1,312,915 - 1,312,915
Trade receivables [ENE 5308 - - = 6,800 6,800
Financial assets included 5 ATERTFRIE
in prepayments, Hib IR R
other receivables and HiEENSREE
other assets - - - 2,449,261 2,449,261
Financial asset at FVPL WRAEEMEREED
FABERSREE 208,080 144 - - 208,224
Pledged deposits [REREEEE - - = 201,948 201,948
Cash and cash equivalents 4 RIEEZEY - - - 3,304,911 3,304,911
208,080 144 1,312,915 5,962,920 7,484,059
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities SRIEE amortized cost
SEH
SREE
RMB’000
AR¥F T
Trade and bills payables ENESFIEREE 3,757,829
Financial liabilities included in other payables SHAHMEMNFUENETEANSREE
and accruals 4,124,241
Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings =+ E3RITE X R A MER 18,241,923
26,123,993
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

43.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43.£BmTEMNSE@Em)
(continued)

2017 20174
Financial
assets at
fair value Available-
through profit for-sale
or loss held Loans and financial
Financial assets ERMEE for trading receivables assets Total
LR REE
ERHE
FFABE
BER S Rk Al S
SREE FEUTAR X TRIEE HRET

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARETT ARETT ARBTET

Available-for-sale equity — AJfft HEREFRE

investments - - 2,937,478 2,937,478
Trade receivables EUE B FA - 7,991 - 7,991
Financial assets included s+ AFE{JEIA -

in prepayments, HAth EUGRIA 2

other receivables and EMEENTRIEE

other assets - 2,515,138 - 2,515,138

Equity investments at fair LA QA (BETE A HE S
value through profit or FFABENERRE

loss 212 - - 212
Pledged deposits BEAFR - 310,322 - 310,322
Cash and cash equivalents IR & NIR&EEY - 1,456,783 - 1,456,783

212 4,290,234 2,937,478 7,227,924

Financial

liabilities at

Financial liabilities PREE amortized cost
big: £ [N

FEM

TRIBE

RMB’000

ARETIT

Trade and bills payables ENESFIEREE 2,953,491
Financial liabilities included in other payables SAHMEMNFUENETEANSREE

and accruals 4,599,702
Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings ~ +ERITE X R A MER 19,739,023

27,292,216
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2018
2018%12H31H

44.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF M4.¢ B TEMNAABERAAEHE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts
REEE

31 December
2018

20185
12A31H
RMB’000
AR¥TR

Financial assets SREE
Equity investments designated 18 E AN A A BEER
at fair value through other HEH AL M2E

31 December

B n

AEEemTA(RAGEHEAABES
BREEERINNEEEEEQREET]
TREATR ¢

Fair values
ARERE

<R o8 31 December
2017 2018 2017

20174 20185 20174
128318 12A31H 12A31H8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T ARET AREFT

comprehensive income WS RS E 1,312,915 - 1,312,915 -
Available-for-sale investments A it HERE —
- listed equity investments  _FiERRE - 1,566,255 - 1,566,255
Financial assets at fair value AR BESTE B HEE)
through profit or loss SABEHEREE 208,224 212 208,224 212
1,521,139 1,566,467 1,521,139 1,566,467
Financial liabilities cHaE
Interest-bearing bank loans ~ :F BRITER R EMER
and other borrowings 18,241,923 19,739,023 18,241,923 19,739,023
18,241,923 19,739,023 18,241,923 19,739,023

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, the current portion of pledged deposits, trade
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, amounts due
from/to related parties, dividend receivable and amounts due from/
to subsidiaries approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the value of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % B IZR B R A )

BEEMNGER B RASEFEY O
HERF RO D - BUE H R
RN ESFBARTE « FEARMNFE - &
MR R M EENTREE 5T A
HitENRBEREERNSRAE &
Y, REAS AR T IR - RS MBI,
BB ARRETIRZRSRGE NS
HEMAREBERREREEMRS

AEBBHPFIEMBEENEETEE
ETABRTALAEBEFENBRRK
BFr o BB REBRER M BAEMESER
BeaWmeE - ABERSE AY - MDY
e TABENES  WiEEHETR
FMERBAE - REACVHEEEZ
Bk o SRR EI R FEPERRME - FF
ARETREERMAERF RERETE

DRIRE R ©
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

44.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

MERITENAARAEBEERAAEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The fair value of the liability
portion of the convertible bonds is estimated using an equivalent
market interest rate for a similar convertible bond.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income,
which were previously classified as available-for-sale equity
investments, have been estimated using a market-based valuation
technique based on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires the
directors to determine comparable public companies (peers)
based on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and calculates an
appropriate price multiple, such as price to book (“P/B”) multiple
and price to earnings (“P/E”) multiple, for each comparable
company identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the
enterprise value of the comparable company by an earnings
measure. The trading multiple is then discounted for considerations
such as illiquidity and size differences between the comparable
companies based on company-specific facts and circumstances.
The discounted multiple is applied to the corresponding earnings
measure of the unlisted equity investments to measure the
fair value. The directors believe that the estimated fair values
resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The
Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by
using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market
interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.

&4 (&)

BrpsRE s s e - TREENMAE
MARBENERENRX TR LT
BT AMNHHSEII - W TITE
REBRBARFE AR EIE

AHEER M EMERN QA EERBETE
HARREREEBABRLUGH - 8
[E\Be K g T B HARR M) TE B A@ M r Lt
TEITIRRETE - AR ARIESZNE
B8 0 D EERBRCIAHRAE 7785
MERTISHEETHE

iR EN AR BEREMSRET
B -BERARARBEFEAEEH
AR 2 HEKENAR EmERRE (KA
WOBERAHEERDZRE)WRAEE
EAERT SN EERMERRIL T FE
AEEMES R T ABAMETHE -
HEERESERETE - AR - BIRER
KRR A LM AR AR (FZ) - A5k
BRI LR AR EEENERE
2o mmERR((MERER])BEHEETAEX
([HBRRDEH - ZEHRRLEATLLERAR]
MEEEERABNFTEENE - X518
FERARBRRFEEERBRALL
BARZENRBERREEREE ER
ETUIHR - KITREBERANIE LR
aREMNHEANGTEBUFELAE
B - EFRR  RBEEFEPHIRARDN
B ERMTELENEE AR EEMGCRE
Hp2EREN A EBEEHEEHES
2 IRRZEREAEREPRESE
EREE-

AREEFEFLEHRE - BHEAMIERTT
BITNEMER - AEECRAERAS
RO M R B ) T AR IS5 A RT3
RefERAGEAZFIRLTRENAAR
EBE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M =

31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

44.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 4. ¢TI BN AREBEERAAEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) =ENE )
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the T X A20184F K2017F 12 H31H &
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative BT EEEMANERNTABRE AEBN
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2018 and 2017: SFREST
Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
FEE R M EXTABERAAE B DAEEHBAENSRE
5% increase in multiple would
Unlisted equity Valuation Average P/E multiple result in increase in fair value by
investments multiples of peers 19.74-115.21 RMB2,815,000
B 5% HEE N BEEM
EETRRRE RERH EESSENp- g 19.74-115.21 AR#2,815,0007T
5% increase in multiple would
Average P/B multiple result in increase in fair value by
of peers 0.76-2.79 RMB4,360,000
EE 5% BB AR BEEM
EESSENi:p 0.76-2.79 AR #4,360,0007T
5% increase in multiple would
Discount for lack result in decrease in fair value by
of marketability  13.21%-16.67% RMB1,330,000
BFE A% MEH AR BEMD
ERA TG RBEmTR  13.21%-16.67% AR #1,330,0007T
Fair value hierarchy RABEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TRHAPAEESHTAENAALBEFE
of the Group’s financial instruments: [E4
Assets measured at fair value RARBETENEE
As at 31 December 2018 7A2018512831H

Fair value measurement using

AREETRER

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

EXTEE EAFUEER

SEERMSRE WAE WAE
Level 2 Level 3

E B=M

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR®T R

Financial assets at fair IAREEFTEAEEZE)
value through profitor loss T ABZHEREE 144 - 208,080 208,224
Equity investments designated 5 A A4 BESEER
at fair value through other HEFS:TAEMEE
comprehensive income WEHERE 838,810 - 474,105 1,312,915
838,954 - 682,185 1,521,139
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

44.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF M. 4B TEMNAABERAAEHE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Assets measured at fair value (continued)
As at 31 December 2017

8 4% (&)
BAREBEFENEEHE)
MR2017F12A31H

Fair value measurement using

R BETERR
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BERAEE  BEANAUEER
ERTIGME WAE BAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ FEH E st
RMB’00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTFT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets at fair value AR A EES 2B HE
through profit or loss: FABRMEREE
Trading securities BEZES 212 - - 212
Available-for-sale equity A ERRRE
investments:
Equity shares = Eatan) 1,566,255 - - 1,566,255
1,566,467 - - 1,566,467

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F &3k

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into and out of Level
3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2017: Nil).

MR2018F 12 A31H » AN&EBE W E(L (IR
AREBEIFENSHEE(2017F12A31
= ﬁ) °

RER - SHEELRSREBENRE KL
FomzEBEAREEEE  NEET
F =R ASE T (20174F : &) ©
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31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

45.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank loans, amounts due from/to related parties, and
cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of the interest-
bearing bank loans of the Group are set out in note 34 above.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact of
floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity during the year.

45. B ¥ E ke B B EMBUR

AEBNHTESHMIABEASRITE
R U R RERE T SRIA R 2 KR
SEEY ZELMIANFZANRESR
FAEBNKEEBEEES - AREERE
FEUE 5 508 ) e 8 SR Y 218
HiheMEERABREERELARKER
% o

AEENEMTAMELZ TERREBTE
MEER - SNERRR - FERR - REIE
R M BERRE - EFESEZ NG EEER
BEREARNBE - HERRERLDT -

AR ERg
AEEAX T BZEAEE BN EREHE
EHRENTISNXEEER -

AR B BARTTE R BRI R F& R I%
KRB EXH5E34 ©

TRIRIA B B8 F 2 A 5 B R B A A
GEBFEEBRNTE) MAKE RN
BHMESEFITENER THMENS
IERJRERBMGRE -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/

(decrease) in profit (decrease)

in basis points before tax in equity*

2B R A1 FIE s

#m,0h4)  #@iCR2) B GEd)*

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETFT
31 December 2018 2018%F12H831H

RMB AR 100 (126,907) -

RMB AR (100) 126,907 -
31 December 2017 2017512 A31H

RMB ARHE 100 (89,784) -

RMB AR (100) 89,784 -
*  Excluding retained profits * TREBTFER
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45.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

45. Br b E 1 B RN BUR (&)
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AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily relates
to the Group’s foreign interest-bearing bank borrowings, the
currencies of which are different from the functional currency.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
US$ exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities).

SN LB

AR B 5 B e 51 B [ By = 22 B £ [ B )
BERITIERAR  RFERRAEINEE
EETRNEREE -

TNREURR s BARAN R BRI ABE
PrA BB BRI N E R BN TEETTE
KBRS ENEREERBED
AR EBEEZSHHHZVE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in US$ rate before tax
EnEXR RR A A1
LA (TRE) i (D)
% RMB’000
% ARETT
2018 20184
If RMB weakens against the United
States dollar MARBHETRE (5%) (187,466)
If RMB strengthens against
the United States dollar AR R IETIEE 5% 187,466
2017 20174
If RMB weakens against the United
States dollar MAREHFETEE (5%) (98,006)
If RMB strengthens against the United
States dollar AR R IETIEE 5% 98,006

Credit risk

The Group’s sales of merchandise are mainly on a cash basis.
For credit sales, the Group trades only with recognized and
creditworthy third parties. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December 2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2018. The amounts presented
are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

FERR
AREBEEEARS T AHERm - B
HER - AREEEER N REERFN
FZTETRS o I - REEREEE
FEYRIRAE SR - BRERIALTEK -

R20184F 12531 H 89= Ak O % F K &
B4
TRETN2018FE12A3TAERNKEER
SERR(FEERNBAMBER ' BRIE
BHREBZRASE AN ERNEME
BB SHMNEEEZRERNEERK
WMARFERBEESTE - 2B AR
BEMNKRBEEE -
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31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

45.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45.BiiSEMEE B ZEMBGE (@)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) FERR(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December 2018 R20184F 1231 H 895= A O K& F K [E
(continued) B ()

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=@A
AHEEEE AEAEHEREREER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—RRE ERE EZRE a1k st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®Tr AR%Tr AR®TRT AR¥TR
Trade receivables* FEUN B 5 IE* - - 6,800 6,800
Financial assets included &t AJEfHF0IE
in prepayments, Hoth e R IE )2
other receivables and HithEER
other assets CREE
— Normal** —F&E* 2,142,471 - - 2,142,471
- Doubtful** — A& 306,790 - - 306,790
Pledged deposits BEMER
— Not yet past due — M ABER 201,948 - - 201,948
Cash and cash ReMREEEY
equivalents
— Not yet past due — WA He 3,304,911 = = 3,304,911
5,956,120 - 6,800 5,962,920

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
notes 29 to the financial statements.

*x

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which mainly
comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale equity
investments, amounts due from associates and fellow subsidiaries
and other receivables, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
financial assets.

Since the Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as the
customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are dispersed.
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are disclosed in
notes 29 and 30, respectively.
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* BAKEEASCEETRENENEKE
SREMS  ERBEEBNER R ISER
KM EOWEE o

o RTAENFOR - B EUGRIA R A E ER
CREEEYRBHERANBREERY
EEVSERARBRE EARERAEE
BRIER] - B ZEeREENERY
ERR R AR o

R2017F 12531 H e K 4

AEBMEMEREETERIERS LI
SEEY  THEEEREE - B
EWNCINEES )N S EY S E =R e A
H EEZERBEARRSHFENG
%-ﬁ%ﬁﬁuﬁ%%%%ﬁ&%%ﬁ

AR AREERER AT MEBRIFNE=
HETR S BUEFERHAENMm - H
RAEERWE Z AN TP ERE DA
BAEENEERRIESEET - A
B U E 5 5008 N B FE MR IR EE A
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31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

45.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and have available funding through bank and other
borrowings to meet its working capital requirements.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables)

and projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

45. B i R b B 38 B A BUR (@)

RBEAR
AEENREARBERASRECEE
W - AR REE R AT AEE
BEARES -

AEBEZRAEEERBE S E TANAE
HETRERNER - AT AZES/MT
ANEREE(PIInEKE Z 582§
BARKERHNERERE °

RB|EAR - ERAOERMBN RS
BRABENIMERMT

31 December 2018
2018%F12H31H

Less than
On demand 1 year Over 1 year
BER —FR —FHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR¥T T AR¥T T
Trade and bills payables JERTE 5 FUE R ENZHE - 3,757,829 - 3,757,829
Deposits received, accruals DIk S - EFERK
and other payables HAth FET B - 4,124,241 - 4,124,241
Interest-bearing bank and  FHBIRITER R EAMER
other borrowings - 8,304,754 12,749,500 21,054,254
- 16,186,824 12,749,500 28,936,324
31 December 2017
2017%F12A31H
Less than
On demand 1 year Over 1 year Total
BREK —FR —FE Fae
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT ARETTT ARETT
Trade and bills payables e E SR RENEEK - 2,953,491 - 2,953,491
Deposits received, accruals SUiES - EtER KL
and other payables HibER A - 4,599,702 - 4,599,702
Interest-bearing bank and ~ FHBIRTTER R EAMER
other borrowings - 9,711,751 12,169,881 21,881,632
~ 17264944 12,169,881 29,434,825
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45.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45.BiiSEMEE B ZEMBGE (@)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the level of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income (note 25)/available-for-sale
equity investments (note 24) and individual equity investments
included in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(note 25). The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on
the Shenzhen and Shanghai stock exchanges and are valued at
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges, at the
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end

R 15 L B

P (B [ g 2 TR s e 4 B S B M8 Bl 35 5
EBEZBEXNRAEFEZFLAEBE KN
g o A5 B S 0 IR B RRR B 16 E S
AR BEMEEEZSH AR MBEEK
R E (MH25) ATt Sk
B (M5E24) MAR A BEFTEREZE
AR S BE E R E R R & (M
25) - NEMEM EMESRENRIIKL
BREFXZ LT - RIEHRIRPT RS
BatE -

RERNREIRE RO H B S EERRE
REREF - TOIRESHR 5 FrH) 5 A HE 8L

LEZBRFAN SRS REERNT

of the reporting period, and their respective highest and lowest
points during the year were as follows:

Year ended Year ended

SRR LT oS e B ETT o T8 31 December 31 December

2018 2018 2017 2017

HZ20185 BE20175F

20184 12H31H 20174 12A31H

12A31H LFE 128318 LFE

High/low High/low

&/ =/ 1K

Shenzhen — A Share Index — JEJI|—AR&IEEL 1,326 1,333/1,315 1,986 2,149/1,834
Shanghai - A Share Index /8 —ABRIEE! 2,494  2,505/2,478 3,463  3,614/3,159
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45.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45.BEEMSEBEMBE @)
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AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as interest-
bearing bank loans and other borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and pledged deposits. Capital includes the liability
component of convertible bonds and equity attributable to owners
of the parent. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2018 and
2017 were as follows:

EXEE

AEBERNERN T E B IR SEREMER
SBRERAEEFRMIBMENEARLE - Ux
FHEBL BBERAERAER -

AEBIRBLEM D OEE A R AEEE
HERSSEIEFAEEEAREE - A1
B ABREARERE  AEBNGARLA
FREEMME « M ERIEE AN KEEITH
% o REBNZEA SN M N E AR E
R - RE 220186 K 2017F12H31H
HFER EAEERE BEREEFIT
EERTMES -

AREFKBERNE B REITER - Z
RIGEEFERUNERN N FEBEFEZ
METE - BIEFHEIFTBFEITERREM
ERRRE MRS EEY R EEBERE
E - BABEABEAREEFNA G
NEAREA AR ER - NEEKECK
EEERBELREFREIEAIKE - B
20184 K 2017F12 A31BEME R A EL,
R

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
20184 20174
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Interest-bearing bank loans and FTRRITERREMBER
other borrowings 18,241,923 19,739,023
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and B ReMIREEEY R
pledged deposits BEEER (3,506,859) (1,767,105)
Net debt BEIEFEE 14,735,064 17,971,918
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BN AR AEIHER 12,300,008 11,072,182
Adjusted capital L E R 12,300,008 11,072,182
Capital and net debt BRREIRFE 27,035,072 29,044,100
Gearing ratio BARAELE 55% 62%
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31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

46.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Pursuant to the relevant terms of the prospectus of the
corporate bonds issued on 5 January 2016 by Shenzhen
Maoye Shangsha, Maoye Shangsha has redeemed (1)
the First Tranche of Bonds in the principal amount of
RMB1,076,354,000 with its accrued interest of RMB44,000,000
on 5 January 2018; (2) the remaining First Tranche of
Bonds in the principal amount of RMB23,646,000 with its
accrued interest of RMB945,840 on 7 January 2019; and
(3) the Second Tranche of Bonds in the principal amount of
RMB1,696,969,000 with its accrued interest of RMB76,500,000
on 7 January 2019 (the “Redemption”). Upon completion
of the Redemption, Maoye Shangsha has Second Tranche
of Bonds of RMB3,031,000 in issue as at the date of the
announcement.

On 15 February 2019, the board announced that Baotou Maoye
Dongzheng, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
acquired on the market in a series of transactions conducted
between 23 March 2018 and 15 February 2019 a total of
25,956,157 shares in Maoye Commercial, representing
approximately 1.5% of the issued share capital of Maoye
Commercial as at the date of the announcement. at an
aggregate consideration of approximately RMB149,900,000
(exclusive of transaction costs). The average purchase
cost of each Maoye Commercial’s Share is approximately
RMB5.78. After the acquisition of the shares, the Company’s
shareholding in Maoye Commercial has increased from
81.69% 10 82.73%.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % 2B =R GR A T

46. HEHREIR

BRI ZEEER20165F1A5H
BITMRARESFEEHAZEHEBIK
o EERBEDAG) 201851 A5H
BERARESRE—AEBARE
1,076,354,0007C *© N 3 1~ & fE & 7
B AR%44,000,0007T ¢ (2) 20194
1A7HERRRESRE—FpAE
%8 AR #23,646,0007T © M fHEE
TR BARM945,8407T ¢+ M(3) 2019
F1ATHELOQARGBESRE-A%
| A R 1,696,969,0007T © & X+
HpEst R B AR 76,500,000t ([ &
) REERIERE  KEFEEZE
ZAEREMAE ARES3031,0007T
NENEHTE BT ©

MN2019FE2 8150  EF €5 - A
NANEENBARBEXERLER
201853 A23H 201942 A 150 Hf
M ERMGLEET—EERS - W
BEREBENRG S 25,956,157
B - (X EBEHEAQNSBHE %
TRAG15%  BEREHEARE
149,900,000 (N BEIER G A) -
SRR ERER OB AL
BARES 78T - WEKMKHE - KA
BIRNREBHENFRE EH81.69%
HHNZE82.73% °
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31 December 2018
2018412A31H

47.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 47. & RBEMRRE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

FoaT

ARARARRERRY KRR G ER

<RI I8 31 December
2018 2017
20184 20174
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTBARIEKE 139,761 139,761
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR RRIE B B At EUCRRIE 2 46,844
Dividend receivable JEHAR B 1,228,192 1,168,383
Due from subsidiaries FEUR P /B A R FRIE 2,383,694 3,032,659
Pledged deposits BEFFR = 10,867
Cash and cash equivalents R RAEEEY 4,515 31,492
Total current assets MENE AR 3,616,403 4,290,245
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREAE
Other payables and accruals HA R RIERER B A 152,569 28,846
Due to subsidiaries FERTHI B R BIFRIE 466,575 158,016
Due to the immediate holding company R B IR A BIFE 64,574 173,807
Interest-bearing bank loans and other FTRRITER R EMEK
borrowings 80,840 2,181,924
Total current liabilities MENEEERE 764,558 2,542,593
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERHE 2,851,845 1,747,652
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBERE
LIABILITIES 2,991,606 1,887,413
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Interest-bearing bank loans and other SHERITER R EME R
borrowings 1,533,632 -
Total non-current liabilities EMBEEERE 1,533,632 -
Net assets BEFR 1,457,974 1,887,413
Equity #Em
Issued capital BT 460,153 460,153
Reserves (note) D) 997,821 1,427,260
Total equity Rt AEER 1,457,974 1,887,413
Huang Mao Ru Liu Bo
=R 2%
Director Director
= EE
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31 December 2018
20184512 H31H

47.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 47. &2 BB N E (&)

COMPANY (continued)
Note: B EE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RATRFEENEERSOT -
Equity Retained
Share  component Capital Exchange profits/
premium of convertible  redemption  Contributed  fluctuation (accumulated
account bonds reserve surplus reserve losses) Total
TRRESH BHE7/
RPEER Ends RABERGE BARH NERBRE  (RHER) @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTZ ARMTRE ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2017 Ho01741 1AM 1,575,565 55,538 27,770 152,671 (23798)  (205334) 1582412
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FR2AFRER - - - - (144,090) (11,062) (155,152)
At 31 December 2017 #2017512A318 1,575,565 55,538 21,170 152,671 (167,888) (216,396) 1,427,260
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FR2EFRESE - - - - (95,074) (334,365) (429,439)
At 31 December 2018 12018 12A318 1,575,565 55,538 21,110 152,671 (262,962) (550,761) 997,821
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of RAREHRRIEFTWFENE A RRO R E
the shares of the subsidiaries acquired, over the previous nominal value of the BEBRARARRREMBEITZRNBARAEZZE
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor. o
48. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 48. BT ISR R BV HE B
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue SRR EN2019F3F14HEE= S
by the board of directors on 14 March 2019. IR REEEAT o
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